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December 28, 2020 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, 
and Citizens of the City of Denham Springs 

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the close of 
each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a 
firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the 
comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Denham Springs (City) for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2020. 

This report consists of management's representations conceming the finances of the City of Denham 
Springs. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all 
of the information presented in this report. T o provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, 
management of the City of Denham Springs has established a comprehensive intemal control framework 
that is designed both to protect the govemment's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile 
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City's financial statements in conformity with 
GAAP. Because the cost of intemal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive 
framework of intemal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that 
the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best 
of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

Hannis T. Bourgeois, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has audited the City's financial 
statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements of the City of Denham Springs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, are free of material 
misstatement. The independent audit involved performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected were based on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. The audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. The independent auditor's opinion on the 
primary govemment was unmodified in that the financial statements of the primary govemment of the City 
of Denham Springs present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position included in each 
of the components of the financial statements. During the current fiscal year, the City was required to 
undergo a single audit in conformance with the provisions of the revised Single Audit Act of 1996 and 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
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Principles, and A udit Requirementsfor Federal Awards. Information related to this single audit, including 
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, Findings and Recommendations, and the Auditor's 
Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting is included in a separately issued 
report and is available upon request. 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany 
the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter 
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's 
MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

Profile of the Government 

The City of Denham Springs, incorporated in 1903, is located on the western side of Livingston Parish and 
is adjacent to East Baton Rouge Parish, which contains the state's capital city of Baton Rouge and is a 
major industrial area. The City currently occupies a land area of 7 square miles and serves a population of 
10,295. The City of Denham Springs is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal 
properties located within its boundaries. It also is empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits 
by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing council. 

The City of Denham Springs has operated under the mayor-board of aldermen (city council) form of 
government since 1903. Policy-making and legislative authorit}-' are vested in a governing council 
consisting of five council members. The governing council is responsible, among other things, for passing 
ordinances, adopting the budget, and appointing committees. The mayor is responsible for carrying out the 
policies and ordinances of the governing council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the 
government, and for appointing, with the approval of the city council, the heads of the various 
departments. The mayor and the city council are elected at large. The mayor and the five council members 
serve four-year terms. 

The City of Denham Springs provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection, 
maintenance of streets and drainage, maintaining landscape beautification, animal control, cemetery, 
general administrative services, planning and zoning, building inspection, main street program, tourism, 
recreation, health services, gas services, water services, sewer services, and recycling and solid waste 
disposal. 

A deteimination of the financial reporting entity to be included in this comprehensive annual financial 
report (C AFR) is made through the application of criteria established by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB), Statement 61. A complete explanation of the financial reporting entity is 
included in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

The City of Denham Springs financial reporting entit}-' consists of the following; 

• The Primary Government — This is the City (all funds under the auspices of the Mayor and the City 
Council). 

• Legally separate component units - These units of government are legally separate from the City 
government but have a sufficiently close relationship with the government to warrant inclusion in 
the consolidated financial report. 



The financial statements included in this CAFR are as follows: 

> The City of Denham Springs Primary Government 
> Denham Springs Sewerage District No. 1 Blended Component Unit 
> City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II Discrete Component Unit 
> Marshal of City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II Discrete Component Unit 
> Denham Springs Economic Development District Discrete Component Unit 
> Springs at Riverside Landing Economic 

Development District Discrete Component Unit 

An explanation of the accounting policies of the City of Denham Springs is contained in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements. The basis of accounting, fund structure, and other significant information on 
financial policies is explained in detail in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's financial planning and control. All agencies of 
the City of Denham Springs are required to submit requests for appropriation to the government's city 
treasurer. The city treasurer uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget. The 
mayor reviews the proposed budget for revisions and budget message. The city treasurer then presents this 
proposed budget to the city council for review. The city council is required to hold a public hearing on the 
proposed budget and to adopt a final budget by no later than June 30, the close of the City's fiscal year. 
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and department (e.g., police). 
Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations 
between departments, however, require the special approval of the governing council. Additional details on 
the budget process are explained in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual govemmental fund for which 
an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund the comparison is presented in 
Exhibit B-5 as part of the financial statements of the govemmental funds. The only other govemmental 
funds with an annual appropriated budget are the Capital Projects Fund and the Witness Fee Special 
Revenue Fund. These funds are considered nonmajor funds. The budget comparisons are presented in 
Exhibit D-3 and D-4 as part of the financial statements of the govemmental funds. 

As authorized by the Mayor-City Council, the Accounting Department is entmsted with maintaining 
accounting systems for the City of Denham Springs in accordance with the best-recognized practices in 
govemmental accounting. It keeps the records for, and with the authority of the Mayor, exercises financial 
and budgetary control over each City department. 

In developing and evaluating the accounting system of the City of Denham Springs, the Accounting 
Department considers the adequacy of intemal accounting controls. Intemal accounting controls are 
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against 
loss from unauthorized use or disposition and regarding the reliability of financial records for preparing 
financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that the cost of control should not exceed benefits likely to be derived and that the valuation of 
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City of Denham Springs govemment is 
responsible for ensuring that adequate intemal controls are in effect. All intemal control evaluations occur 
within the framework described. The Accounting Department believes that the intemal controls of the City 
of Denham Springs adequately safeguard and provide reasonable assurance of the proper recording of 
financial transactions. 
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Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

Economic Condition and Outlook 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered 
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Denham Springs 

Local economy. The Cit}-' of Denham Springs continues to enjoy a favorable economic environment and 
local indicators point to continued stability. The region has a varied industrial base that adds to the relative 
stability of the unemployment rate. Major industrial areas located within close proximity include the petro­
chemical manufacturing plants and the companies supported by these plants such as suppliers, contractors, 
professionals and financial institutions. Add to this the state governmental job availability in the 
suiTounding areas of Baton Rouge, the state capital for the State of Louisiana, and the businesses supported 
directly and indirectly. 

Located within the City of Denham Springs are several financial institutions, phannacies, varied retail 
outlets, retail discount stores, and restaurants and fast food chains. There is still vacant land available for 
growTh within the Bass Pro Development area. 

The factors new residents consider when relocating to Livingston Parish continues to be lower crime rates, 
a respected school system and various quality of life benefits offered such as recreation, arts, antiques, 
local music concerts, and theater productions. Though investment dollars are limited, retailers continue to 
follow the population growth and are locating or expanding operations wdthin the City of Denham Springs. 
Long-term economic outlook and availability of commercial properties with city services including police 
and fire protection are major factors with retailers deciding to locate here. 

The region (which includes the Cit}-' of Denham Springs and the surrounding unincoiporated area within 
Livingston Parish) has an employed labor force of approximately 59,618. This is according to the 
Louisiana Department of Labor June 2020 employment numbers. The City's central business district 
continues to maintain its current 97-100 percent occupancy rate with a variety of stores, specialty shops, 
and commercial businesses. 

Major Initiatives in 2020 

Long-term financial planning. 

The City will continue to improve serv ices and upgrade infrastructure. Projects planned for the future 
include; 

Highway Infrastructure Improvements 

> Road Transfer Credits — The City entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with the State of 
Louisiana in November 2016 that transferred ownership of state route LA 1030, known as 
Cockerham Road, from North Range Avenue east to the end of the corporate limits and state route 
LA 3282, known as Centerville Street, from North Range Avenue to Hatchell Lane. In 
consideration for acquiring these roadways, the State issued $856,318 in road transfer credits for 
the City to use on current and future road projects undertaken with the State. These road transfer 
credits can be used to fund the City's cost share of the road projects. As of June 30,2020, the City 
has utilized $357,493 of the road transfer credits. 
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> Benton Lane overlay. This project is to repave Benton Lane. This project is in the design phase, 
with $143,485 being spent as of June 30,2020. The project will be funded 80% by the state with a 
20% City share. It is anticipated that the City's cost share will be covered by available Road 
Transfer Credits. 

> Hatchell Lane (LA Hwy. 1031) sidewalk/drainage proj ect. The City has been awarded funding for 
the construction of sidewalks on the west side of Hatchell Lane from Cockerham Road to Denham 
Springs Junior High through the Safe Routes to Schools federal funding program. The City's 
financial responsibility is limited to design costs. Through June 30,2020 the City has spent $3,339 
on engineering costs related to this project. 

> Centerville Street sidewalk project. The City has been awarded funding for the construction of 
sidewalks on the north side of Centerville Street from Summers Street to Denham Springs Junior 
High through the Transportations Altematives Project program. The City will have a cost share for 
construction costs of 20% and will also be responsible for costs related to design and construction 
administration. As of June 30,2020, the City has not incurred any expenses related to this project. 

> Yellow Jacket Boulevard overlay. This project is to overlay the roadway and shoulders to restore 
and rehabilitate the deteriorating asphalt. The City will be responsible for the engineering cost for 
this project. The City is also responsible for 20% of the construction costs. It is anticipated this 
cost share will be covered by available Road Transfer Credits. 

> East Railroad Avenue. This project is to overlay the roadway and replace existing subsurface 
drainage, as necessary. The City will be responsible for the engineering cost for this project. The 
City is also responsible for 20% of the construction costs. It is anticipated this cost share will be 
covered by available Road Transfer Credits. 

> Cook Road Extension. Final right of way the Cook Road and Pete' s Hwy intersection. This 4-lane 
curb and gutter roadway with a grass median is a State and Parish Project and will provide access 
between Pete's Highway and Juban Road (LA 1026) that is expected to be an economic catalyst in 
the immediately surrounding area. This is a project expected to require a minimum of five years to 
complete between utility relocations and upgrades and the construction work. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable H. Gerard Lanchy, Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

Denham Springs, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, the budgetary comparison 
statement of the general fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Denham 
Springs, Louisiana as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. We also have audited the financial statements of the City's nonmajor internal service fund and 
each of the governmental funds presented in the accompanying combining financial statements and the 
budgetary comparison schedules of the Capital Projects Fund and the Special Revenue Fund as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2020, as listed in the table of contents as exhibits D-1 through D-4. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit 
the financial statements of the Marshal of City Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two and the City Court 
of Denham Springs —Ward 11, which represent 1.36 percent, .58 percent, and 14.12 percent, respectively, 
of the assets, net position, and revenues of the discretely presented component units. Those statements 
were audited by another auditor whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it 
relates to the amounts included for the Marshal of City Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two and the City 
Court of Denham Springs — Ward 11, are based solely on the reports of the other auditor. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 



The Honorable H. Gerard Landry 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Denham Springs, Louisiana 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of another auditor, the financial statements refeixed to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana, as of June 30, 
2020, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the 
budgetaty comparison statement of the general fund for the year then ended in confoimit}-' with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the financial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
non-major internal service fiind and each non-major governmental fund of the City of Denham Springs, 
Louisiana, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable 
cash flows thereof and the budgetary comparison schedule of the Capital Projects Fund and the Special 
Revenue Fund (exhibits D-3 and D-4) for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Reqinred Supplementajy Infoj^matioyi 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability by plan, and the 
schedule of contributions by plan on pages 5 through 19 and 114 through 120 be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such infonnation, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the LTnited States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 



The Honorable H. Gerard Landry 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Denham Springs, Louisiana 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The introductory section, the 
capital assets schedules. Exhibits E-1 through E-3, the supplementary schedule of insurance coverage in 
force. Schedule 3, and the statistical section, Schedules 4 through 23 are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The capital assets schedules. Exhibits E-1 through E-3, and the supplementary schedule of insurance 
coverage in force, Schedule 3, are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the capital assets schedules. 
Exhibits E-1 through E-3, and the supplementary schedule of insurance coverage in force, Schedule 3, are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory section on pages iv through xi and the statistical section. Schedules 4 through 23, have 
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 28, 
2020, on our consideration of the City of Denham Springs' internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City 
of Denham Springs' internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Respectfully submitted. 

Denham Springs, Louisiana 
December 28, 2020 
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As management of the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana, we offer readers of the City of Denham 
Springs, Louisiana's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of 
the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana, for the fiscal year ended June 30,2020. We encourage readers to 
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished 
in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages iv-viii of this report. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City's primary government exceeded 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 
$24,195,948 (netposition). 

• The primary government's total net position compared to prior year of $19,444,484 increased by 
$4,751,464. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $6,677,573, an increase of $1,461,854 in comparison with the prior year 
combined ending fund balances of $5,215,719. Approximately seventy-seven percent of this total 
amount, $5,111,739, is available for spending at the government's discretion (unassigned fund 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $5, 111 ,739 
or 39 percent of total general fund expenditures. 

• The City's total liabilities decreased by $954,001 during the current fiscal year. Governmental 
Activities liabilities increased $393,161 while liabilities for Business-Type activities decreased 
$ 1,347,162. Significant to this decrease were decreases in accounts payable and accrued expenses 
of $143,693 for Governmental Activities and a decrease in liabilities due in more than one year of 
$1,822,284 for Business-Type Activities. These decreases were partially offset by increases in 
Governmental Activities net position liability of $558,928 and Business-Type activities accounts 
payable of $403,593 

• The City's total deferred outflows of resources decreased by $94,400 during the current fiscal year. 
Governmental Activities saw an increase in Deferred Outflows-Related to Pensions of $63,230 that 
was offset by a decrease in Business-Type Activities Deferred Outflows-Related to Pensions of 
$59,087. Additionally, Business-Type Activities saw a decrease in Deferred Amount on refunding 
of$98,543. 

• The City's total deferred inflows of resources related to pensions decreased by $385,022 during the 
current fiscal year. Governmental Activities decreased by $327,933 while Business-Type activities 
decreased by $57,089. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Denham Springs's basic 
financial statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report 
also contains other supplementary infoimation in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-widefinancial statements (see Exhibit A-1 and 
A-2) are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Denham Springs's finances, in a 
manner similar to a private-sector business in that all governmental and business-type activities are 
consolidated into columns which add to a total for the primary government. The statements combine all 
governmental funds and internal servdce funds current financial resources with capital assets and long-term 
obligations. Also presented in the government-wide financial statements is a total column for the business-
type activities of the primary government. Component units are separate legal governmental entities to 
which the City of Denham Springs may be obligated to provide financial assistance and are presented as a 
separate column in the government-wide statements and as individual activities within the basic financial 
statements. All City of Denham Springs discretely presented component unit agencies issue separate 
independently audited financial statements. 
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The Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A-1) presents infonnation on all of the City of Denham Springs's 
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Cit}-' of 
Denham Springs is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities (Exhibit A-2) presents information showing how the government's net position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, 
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods. For example, uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave result in cash 
flows for future periods. The focus of the Statement of Activities is on both the gross and net cost of 
various activities which are funded by the government's general tax and other revenues. This is intended 
to summarize information and simplify the user's analysis of the cost of various governmental services 
and/or subsidy to various governmental and business-type activities and component units. 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Denham Springs that 
are principally supported by taxes, licenses, permits, fines and intergovernmental revenues (governmental 
activities) from other fiinctions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through 
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Denham 
Springs include general government, public safety, highways and streets, health, and culture and 
recreation. The business-type activities of the City of Denham Springs include a natural gas and water 
distribution operation, a sewer disposal operation, and a contracted solid waste disposal operation. In 
addition, on January 26,2009 the City of Denham Springs created Denham Springs Sewerage District No. 
1. This sewer district encompasses unincorporated areas in Livingston Parish that the City provides natural 
gas and water services. Denham Springs Sewerage District No. 1 was created in accordance with 
Louisiana Statute and approved by resolution adopted by the Livingston Parish Council. Denham Springs 
Sewerage District No. 1 is a blended component unit. Blending is the method of reporting the financial 
data of a component unit to present the component unit's balances and transactions in a manner similar to 
the presentation of the balances and transactions of the primary government. All business-type activities 
are included in a single Utility Enterprise Fund. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Denham Springs itself (known as 
the primary government), but also a legally separate City Court of Denham Springs Ward II and a legally 
separate Marshall of City of Denham Springs - Ward II for which the City of Denham Springs is 
financially accountable. In addition to the state constitutionally defined agencies included above, the City 
has created two Economic Development Districts under Louisiana Statute, the Denham Springs Economic 
Development District and the Springs at Riverside Landing Economic Development District, to assist the 
City and surrounding area in the creation of economic development, to improve employment and to 
otheivvise improve the economic condition of the City of Denham Springs and surrounding areas. Financial 
information for these component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for 
the primary government itself. 

The government-wide financial statements are presented in Exhibits A-1 and A-2 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Denham Springs, like 
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Denham Springs can be divided into 
three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 



Governmental funds. Governmentalfimds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported 
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental flind financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows 
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the govemmenf s near-term financing decisions. 
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmentalfunds 
and governmental activities. 

The City of Denham Springs maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, which is the City's major fund. Data from 
the other four governmental funds (capital projects, debt service, permanent, and special revenue) are 
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The City of Denham Springs adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and the capital 
projects fund. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the general fund and the capital 
projects fund to demonstrate compliance with its budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements are presented in Exhibits B-I to B-5 of this report. 

Proprietary funds. The City of Denham Springs maintains two different types of proprietary funds. 
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. The City of Denham Springs uses enterprise funds (Utility 
Enterprise Fund and Denham Springs Sewer District Number 1) to account for its natural gas and water 
distribution operation, sewer disposal operation, and contracted solid waste disposal operation. Internal 
seivicefunds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's 
various functions. The City of Denham Springs uses an internal service fund to account for fuel and 
maintenance cost for its fleet of vehicles and equipment. Because these seivdces predominantly benefit 
governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities 
in the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary flinds provide the same tj-pe of infonnation as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the enterprise funds 
consisting of the natural gas and water distribution operation, sewer disposal operation, and contracted 
solid waste disposal operation, which are considered to be major funds of the City of Denham Springs. 
Conversely, the internal service fund is a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fimd f inancial 
statements. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements are presented in Exhibits C-1 to C-3 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and flind financial statements. 



Cash management policies and practices of the City of Denham Springs conserv^atively invest idle funds in 
public funds interest bearing checking accounts through Capital One, N. A. All cash and investments are 
collateralized with securities pledged by the financial institution and held in our name by an approved 
third-party custodial bank. Procedures followed and securities pledged are in accordance with the Statutes 
of the State of Louisiana. The average yield on the public funds interest bearing checking account was 
0.10% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, management believes the City is fully insured for all major 
risks, such as General Liability, Worker's Compensation, Employee and Public Official Fidelity Bonds, 
and Fire Extended Coverage and Flood Insurance. The City maintains no self-insurance program at 
June 30, 2020. 

Additional information on the City of Denham Springs cash management policies and practices and risk 
management can be found in the notes to the financial statements on pages 42-112 of this report. 

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, the combining 
statements, and the individual budgetary comparison schedules referred to earlier in connection with non-
major governmental flmds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. The 
combining and individual fund statements and schedules are presented behind the notes to the financial 
statements as Exhibits D-1 to D-4 of this report. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the City of Denham Springs, assets exceeded liabilities by $24,195,948 at the close 
of the most recent fiscal year. 



The following table reflects the Condensed Statement of Net Position for June 30,2020 with comparative 
fieures from 2019. 

City of Deiiliain Springs 
Coudomed Statement of Net Position 

June 30,2020 and 2019 

Gowrmnenlal 
Acti\ities 

Business-T^pe 
Activities Total 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 
.^sets: 

Cur rent and Other 
^Vssets 

Restricted Assets 

Capital Assets 

$7,804,642 

11,073,059 

$6,579,814 

9,414,293 

$ 6,921,303 

2,444,506 
55,228,072 

$ 6,270,341 

2,445,651 
55,254,642 

$ 14,725,945 

2,444,506 
66,301,131 

$ 12,850,155 

2,445,651 
64,668,935 

Total ^^sets 18,877.701 15,994,107 64,593,881 63,970,634 83,471,582 79,964,741 

Deferred Oiitflov\^ of Resources; 
Defened Aniomit on Reforiding 

Deferred Outflows -
Related to Pensions 2,738,946 2,675,716 

5,134,397 

574.820 

5,232,940 

633,907 

5,134,397 

3,313,766 

5,232,940 

3,309,623 

Total Deferred Outfio\w> 

of Resources 2,738.946 2,675,716 5,709,217 5,866,847 8,448,163 8,542,563 

Liabilities: 
Current Liabilities 
Long-Term Liabilities 

1,354,473 
10,745,266 

1,503,684 
10,202,894 

4,361,472 
49,917,203 

3,905,442 
51,720,395 

5,715,945 
60,662,469 

5,409,126 
61,923,289 

Total Liabilities 12,099.739 11,706,578 54,278,675 55,625,837 66,378,414 67,332,415 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Deferred Inflows -

Related to Pensions 1,198,043 1,525,976 147,340 204,429 1,345,383 1,730,405 

Net Position: 
Net Investment in 

Capital Assets 

Restricted 
Unrestricted (Deficit) 

11,073,059 

1,303,809 
(4,058,003) 

9,414,293 

1,226,795 
(5,203,819) 

12,520,637 

3,356,446 

10,804,788 

3,202,427 

23,593,696 

1,303,809 
(701,557) 

20,219,081 

1,226,795 
(2,001,392) 

Total Net Position $8,318,865 $5,437,269 $15,877,083 $14,007,215 $ 24,195,948 $ 19,444,484 

For more detailed information see Exhibit A-1. the Statement of Net Position. 



June 30,2020 Net Position 
25.000.000 

20.000.000 

15.000.000 

10.000.000 

5.000.000 

(5,000,000) 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 98% Restricted Assets 5% Unrestricted Assets 

By far the largest portion of the City of Denham Springs's net position, $23,593,696, reflects its net 
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment, less any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Denham Springs uses these capital assets to 
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the 
City of Denham Springs's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted 
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of the City of Denham 
Springs' net position, 5 percent or $ 1,303,809, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions 
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of ($701,557) represents unrestricted (deficit) net 
position. The City's overall negative balance in unrestricted net position was caused by the implementation 
of GASB 68 in the year ended June 30, 2015. With the GASB 68 reporting change, the City recorded its 
proportionate share of retirement liabilities for the plans it participates in. The plans are The Firefighters' 
Retirement System, Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System, Municipal Employees' Retirement 
System of Louisiana, and Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System. 

The City's net position increased by $4,751,464 during the current fiscal year as compared to 2019's 
increase of $534,773. Attributable to this increase is an increase in net investment in capital assets of 
$3,374,615, an increase in restricted net position of $77,014, and an increase in unrestricted net position of 
$1,299,835. 
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The condensed statement below provides a summary of the changes in net position for the year ended 
June 30, 2020, with comparative figures from 2019. 

Governmental 

Actrvities 

Busmess-Tyf« 

Activities Total 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

Revenues: 

Pro^ain Revenues: 

Cliarges for Services $ 405,671 $ 508,010 $ 11363392 $ 11,518,916 $ 11,768,963 $ 12,026,926 

Operating Grants and 

ContiTbutions 1,74L444 1,050,857 240,603 169,950 1,982,047 1320,807 

Capital Grants and 

Contributions 2,287.877 344,415 1.369.021 715,543 3,656,898 1,059,958 

General Revenues: 

Sales Taxes 7,687,752 7399,855 - - 7,687,752 7,399,855 

Other Taxes 2,0.50,149 2,026,895 - - 2,050,149 2,026,895 

Miscellaneoiis 771,851 453,842 22,095 23,965 793,946 477,807 

Other 44.647 58,048 178,070 21396 222,717 79.344 

Total Revenues 14,989391 11,841,922 13,173,081 12,449,670 28,162,472 24,291,592 

Excuses: 

General Government 2,639,104 2,412,412 - - 2,639,104 2,412,412 

Public Safety 7,292,904 7,390,688 - - 7,292,904 7,390,688 

Hi^iways and Streets 1,961,810 2,077,107 - - 1,961,810 2,077,107 

HeaMi 35,587 34,409 - - 35,587 34,409 

Culture aiKl Recreation 178,390 142,881 - - 178,390 142,881 

Gas - - 2.724.211 2,916,493 2,724,211 2,916,493 

Water - - 2330302 2358,904 2330,902 2,358,904 

Sewer - - 5,507,610 5,597,303 5,507,610 5,597,303 

Sanitatbn - - 840,490 826,622 840,490 826,622 

Total Ejqjenses 12,107.795 12,057,497 11.303.213 11,699,322 23,411,008 23,756,819 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 2,881,596 (215,575) 1,869,868 750,348 4,751,464 534,773 

Net Position - Beginning of Year 5,437,269 5,652,844 14,007,215 13356,867 19,444,484 18.909.711 

Net Position - End of Year $ 8,318,865 $ 5,437369 $ 15,877,083 $ 14,007,215 $ 24,195,948 $ 19,444,484 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Denham Springs's net position by 
$2,881,596. Key elements of this net increase are documented below. 

Total revenues from Governmental activities increased by $3,147,469 over the prior year caused mainly by 
the following: 

• Sales taxes increased by 3.9% or $287,897 during the fiscal year. 

• Charges for services decreased $102,399 during the fiscal year. This is largely attributable to a 
decrease in fines collected. 
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operating grants and contributions increased $690,587 during the fiscal year. This net increase is 
mainly attributable to funds received from Louisiana Office of Community Development, Disaster 
Recovery Unit related to the debris cleanup in response to the August 2016 flood. This funding is 
reimbursement to the City for the share not funded by FEMA. 

Capital Grants and Contributions increased by $1,943,462. This is mainly attributable to an 
increase in reimbursement from FEMA for the purchase and remodel of the new City Hall 
building. Animal Shelter repairs, and replacement equipment purchased. 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

Charges for Services ^ OperatlngGrants and 
3% / Contributions 

12% 

Other Taxes-
14% J ^ ^^Capital Grants and 

Contributions 
15% 

Miscellaneous and Interest 

Total expenses from Governmental Activities increased by $50,298 primarily due to the following reasons: 

• Total salaries charged to governmental activities decreased from $5,142,964 to $4,967,161 for a 
net decrease of $175,803 or less than 3%. 

• Related payroll taxes and employee benefits charged to governmental activities decreased from 
$2,793,995 to $2,534,818 for a net increase of $161,697. 

• General Government, other than salaries and benefits, increased approximately $25,000. The 
increase is primarily related to increases in office supplies and insurance and a decrease in flood 
expenses. 

• Public Safety activities other than salaries and benefits decreased approximately $144,000. The 
decrease is primarily related to approximate decreases in flood expenses of $28,000, insurance of 
$26,000, equipment expense of $20,000, animal care of $25,000, and uniforms of $26,000. 

• Highways and Streets activities not related to payroll and benefits increased approximately 
$32,000. Increase is related to approximate decreases in contract services of $50,000, and 
equipment expenses of $56,000 and approximate increases in miscellaneous expense of $20,000 
and street maintenance of $116,000. 

• Culture and Recreation activities not related to payroll and benefits increased approximately 
$36,000. This increase is mainly attributable to an increase in maintenance costs at Old City Hall 
and Kidz Komer playground 

• Depreciation expense for Governmental Activities increased by approximately $26,709. 

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Denham Springs's net 
position by $1,869,868. Key elements to this net increase are documented below. 
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Overall charges for services for business-type activities decreased $155,624 compared to the prior 
fiscal year. Gas charges for services decreased $475,497, water charges for services increased 
$136,559, sewer charges for services increased $176,061 and sanitation charges for services 
increased by $7,253. Gas charges for services decrease is attributable to decreased usage related to 
the mild winter experienced. Partially offsetting the reduced gas sales are increased charges for 
new customers across all lines of business as a result of new subdivision development just outside 
of the city limits but within our service areas. 

Business-type activities expenses decreased $396,109. 

o Gas Department expenses decreased $192,282 compared to the prior fiscal year. This 
decrease was primarily attributable to a reduction of $244,980 in the amount of natural gas 
purchased in response to the milder winter and a disposition of obsolete pipe of $ 105,950 in 
the prior year. These decreases were offset by increases in direct labor of $119,800 and 
payroll taxes and benefits of $23,826. 

o Water Department expenses decreased by $128,002 compared to the prior fiscal year. The 
decrease in Water Department expenses is primarily due to expenses related to 2016 flood 
recovery charged in the prior year of $60,700 and a decrease in direct labor of $34,679 and 
payroll taxes and benefits of $12,369. 

o Sewer Department expenses decreased by $89,693 compared to the prior fiscal year. This 
decrease is mostly related to a decrease in maintenance costs of the sewer collection system 
and treatment system of $91,5 81. 

o Sanitation Department expenses increased $ 13,868 compared to the prior fiscal year. This 
was the result of an increase in sub-contractor costs. 

Business-type program revenues - operating grants and contributions increased $70,653 largely 
related to grants received from FEMA emergency repairs needed during and immediately 
subsequent to the August 2016 flooding event. 

Business-type program revenues — capital grants and contributions increased $653,478. The 
increase is attributable to increases in FEMA grants received related to equipment purchased and 
utility infrastructure repairs. 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business Type Activities 

6,000,000 

5,000,000 -

4,000,000 -

3,000,000 

2,000,000 

1,000,000 

Gas Water Sewer Sanitation 

• Expenses • Revenues 
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City ofDenham Springs uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental funds. The focus of the City ofDenham Springs's governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflow, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in 
assessing the City ofDenham Springs's financing requirements. In particular, imassigned fund balance 
may serv^e as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the 
fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Denham Springs's governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $6,677,573, an increase of $1,461,854 in comparison with the prior 
fiscal year. In accordance with GASB #54, the governmental fund reporting includes classifications for 
Nonspendable, Restricted For, Committed To, Assigned To, and Unassigned. Approximately 77% of this 
total amount, $5,111,739, constitutes unassigned fiind balance, which is available for spending at the 
government's discretion. Nonspendable Rind balance is $1,326,250 or 20%. Nonspendable fund balance 
classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable fonn or (b) 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The City Nonspendable classification meet both 
(a) and (b). Prepaid Insurance meets Nonspendable (a) and Pennanent Fund Principal meets Nonspendable 
(b). Permanent Fund Principal is established to generate income to pay for the perpetual care of the 
municipal cemetery. Restricted Rind balances are restricted to specific purposes (witness fees and Lakeland 
Acres Subdivision 1994 paving certificates debt service). Restricted fund balances are $166,561 or 2%. 
Assigned fund balance is constrained by the City Council's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are 
neither restricted nor committed, except for stabilization arrangements. Assigned to Capital Projects ended 
the fiscal year with a fund balance of $72,993 or 1%. The City does not have any Governmental Fund 
"Committed To" fund balances for this fiscal year ended. Committed To amounts can only be used for 
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of 
decision-making authority. Committed to amounts are established by authorization specifying the purposes 
of which the amount can be used (for example legislation, resolution, ordinance). The authorization 
specifying the purposes for which amounts can be used should have the consent of both the City Council 
and Mayor. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City ofDenham Springs. At the end of the current fiscal 
year total general fund balance is $5,300,771. General fund balance has two classifications in accordance 
with GASB #54. Nonspendable - prepaid insurance fund balance of $ 189,032 or 4%, and Unassigned Rind 
balance of $5,111,739 or 96%. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare 
both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance 
represents 39 percent of total general fund expendiRires. Total fund balance represents 40 percent of total 
general fund expenditures. 

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the City ofDenham Springs' general fund increased by 
$ 1,464,259, as compared to the prior fiscal year net decrease in Rind balance of $705,600. Key factors in 
this increase are as follows: 

• General fund revenue resulted in a net increase of $3,273,208 compared to the prior fiscal year. 
Key factors to this net decrease are: 

o Increase in net tax revenues of $290,038. This increase is mostly attributable to an increase 
in sales taxes of $287,897 offset by decreases in cable franchise taxes of $18,011 and 
gaining taxes of $27,357. 

o Decrease in fines and forfeits of $96,897 compared to prior fiscal year amount. This 
decrease is attributable to a decrease in police fines, 

o Decrease in interest income of $12,034. 
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o Increase in intergovernmental revenue of $2,799,792, primarily related to grants received 
from FEMA and Louisiana Office of Community Development related to the August 2016 
flooding event. 

o Increase in miscellaneous revenue of $296,505. This is primarily related to a second 
insurance premium rebate received from LWCC in the amount of $266,502. 

Key to future revenue growth will be economic stability of Livingston Parish and the southeastern 
portion of the State of Louisiana. 

General fund expenditures resulted in a net increase of $1,208,449 compared to the prior fiscal 
year. Key factors in this net increase are; 

o General government expenditures increased by $1,570,898 or 61%. This increase was 
comprised of the purchase and remodel of City Hall at a cost of $1,574,406 and an increase 
in utility costs at City Hall of $53,746. These costs are partially offset by decreases in 
flood expenses related to the 2016 flood of $25,702 and a decrease in legal and professional 
fees of $25,210. 

o Public Safety expenditures decreased $939,407 orl2%. Included in the decreases are 
decreases in Fire Department expenses related to equipment purchases of $643,778, flood 
expenses of $28,279, and insurance of $25,789. Additionally, the Police Department 
recognized decreases in equipment purchased of $82,026, uniform costs of $26,052, 
salaries and benefits of $89,971, and equipment repairs of $20,33 8. 

o Highways and Street expenditures increased $539,681 or 33%. The increase is related to 
increases in equipment purchased of $518,148 and street maintenance and materials of 
$116,152. These increases are partially offset by a decrease in equipment maintenance 
expense of $56,542 and contract services of $49,296. 

o Culture and Recreation activities increased $36,099. The increase is related to an increase 
in park maintenance and upkeep of $24,517 and repairs to Old City Hall of $9,564. 

o Other Financing Uses decrease of $54,900 related to an operating transfer out to the Capital 
Projects fund. 

Pension and other posteniployment benefits — Substantially all employees of the City of Denham 
Springs are members of the following statewide retirement systems: Municipal Employees 
Retirement System of Louisiana (MLRS), Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of 
Louisiana (MPLRS), or Firefighters Retirement System of Louisiana. These systems are multiple 
employer (cost-sharing), public employee retirement systems (PLRS), controlled and administered 
by separate State appointed board of trustees. 

Additional information on the City of Denham Springs' pension arrangements and post-
employment benefits can be found in Notes 11 and 12 in the notes to the financial statements. 

Of concern is the related retirement benefit erijoyed by City employees. The City continues to 
monitor the State administered retirement system employer rates. For this fiscal period the rate for 
all plans the City participates in are as follows: 

Prior Current 
Employer Employer Rate 

Rate Rate Increase 
Municipal Employees' Retirement 

System of Louisiana 14.00% 14.00% 

Municipal Police Employees' 
Retirement System of Louisiana 32.25% 32.50% 0.25% 

Firefighters' Retirement System 
ofLouisiana 26.50% 27.75% 1.25% 
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Overall retirement contributions decreased $13,135 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The net 
decreases break down as follows: 

FY FY Increase 
18-19 19-20 (Decrease) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement 
System of Louisiana $ 449,289 $ 450,257 $ 968 

Municipal Police Employees' 
Retirement System 539,004 519,163 (19,841) 

Firefighters' Retirement System 
of Louisiana 34E944 347,682 5,738 

Total $1,330,237 $1,317,102 $ (13,135) 

Pennanent Fund has a total nonspendable — permanent fund principal fund balance of $1,137,248, 
compared to the prior year nonspendable - permanent fund principal balance of $1,059,668. This is the 
Cemetery Care Permanent Fund used to account for principal trust amounts received and related interest 
income. The interest income portion of the trust can be used to maintain the City's cemetery. 

Special revenue fund - witness fee fund has a restricted fund balance of $163,292, compared to a prior 
year restricted fund balance of S163,85 8. This fund is used to account for the cost of court appearances by 
police officers at the City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II to provide testimony. 

Proprietary funds. The City of Denham Springs' proprietary funds provide the same type of infonnation 
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

In the Utility Enterprise fund, charges for seiwices decreased $239,877. Attributable to this net decrease are 
decreases in charges for gas services of $475,497, offset by increases in charges for water services of 
$136,559, charges for sewer services of $91,808, and charges for sanitation services of $7,253. 

Operating expenses decreased $365,796. This decrease is primarily attributable to decreases in natural gas 
purchased of $244,980 and repairs and maintenance of $220,927. The decreases are offset by increases in 
personnel and benefits costs of $105,014. 

Unrestricted Net Position of the Utility Enterprise Fund at the end of the year amounted to $12,287,521. 
The factors concerning the enterprise fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of 
Denham Springs' business-type activities. 

The Denham Springs Sewerage District No. 1 (DSSD #1) unrestricted net position - (deficit) at the end of 
the year amounted to ($8,931,075), compared to unrestricted net position - (deficit) for the prior fiscal year 
of ($8,326,947). Net investment in capital assets is $3,308,084. Sewer operations generated a decrease in 
net position of $267,050. As of June 30,2020 the DSSD #1 was billing 2,472 customers and the average 
bill was $38.80per month per customer. The Denham Springs Sewerage District No. I owed $9,083,100 to 
the City of Denham Springs Utility Fund as of June 30, 2020. This amount represents cash transfers in 
support of DSSD #1 debt sinking payments and operational costs. Of concern, the assumptions for 
financing the Denham Springs Sewerage District No. 1 are based on an initial customer count of 2,701 and 
the average charge being $37.55 per month to pay the debt sendee and estimated operational cost. 
Recommended is the Denham Springs Sewerage District No. 1 rate structure be increased to meet debt 
service and operational cost. 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Major differences between the original budget and the final amended budget of the General Fund are 
briefly summarized as follows: 

Revenues: 

Total final budgeted revenues decreased by $667,300 over the original budget. Key to this decrease is: 

• A decrease in FEMA Disaster Grants of $422,397 and a decrease in OCD-DRU grants of $25,937, 
in response to recovery from the 2016 flood. 

• Sales tax revenue decreased by $250,000. 
• Decreases in Permits and Licenses of $23,000 and gaming taxes of $20,000. 
• Decreases in police fines by $202,500. 
• Decreases in other grants of $50,000. 
• An increase in insurance premium rebates of $332,857. 

Expenditures: 

Total budgeted appropriations were decreased by $2,226,759. The largest decreases were flood recovery 
related in General Government and Public Safety. These budgeted decreases are related to the relocation 
of City Hall and the rebuild of the animal shelter. 

Other Financing (Uses); 

The budget was decreased for operating transfers out to Capital Projects Fund of $94,535 for general fund 
infrastructure improvements. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City of Denham Springs' investment in capital assets for its governmental and 
business-type activities as of June 30, 2020, amounts to $66,301,131 (net of accumulated depreciation). 
This investment in capital assets includes land, ser\4tudes acquisition cost, buildings and systems, 
improvements, machinery and equipment, roads, highways, and drainage. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following governmental activities: 

• A new City Hall building was purchased and remodel of the building began, a street sweeper, 
sewer vacuum truck, dump truck, crack sealer, and trackloader were all purchased for the Street 
department, and 3 new police units were acquired for the Police department. 

• Completed during the year was a repaying project for River Road North at a cost of $712,965 The 
City paid design costs and 20% of the constmction costs. This cost share was funded with Road 
Transfer Credits the city had available. LA DOTD funded the remaining 80% of the construction 
costs. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following business-type activities: 

• The City had Gas system expansion costs of $100,352 placed in service during the year. 
Additionally, the City has incurred $613,141 for water projects and $609,474 for sewer projects 
that are in progress. These are upgrade and repairs from damage incuixed during the August 2016 
flood. 
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C of Denham Springs 
Capital Assets 

(Net of Accumulated Depreciation) 
June 30.2020 and 2019 

GDvemmental 
Activilies 

Busmess-Type 
Activities Total 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

Land and Right-of-Ways S 17SL721 $ 1,314,460 S 4785,343 $ 4785,343 $ 6,067,064 $ 5,599,803 
Building and In^rovements 1,994,624 1,808,148 258,853 262,607 2753,477 2,070,755 
Gas Svstem - - 1,549,901 1,560,190 1,549,901 1,560,190 
Water S)^tem - - 7,704,344 8,061,669 7,704,344 8,061,669 
Sewer System - - 38,942,482 40391,533 38,942,482 40,391,533 
Machinerv' and Equpnent 3,093.158 2,762,110 844,110 437,060 3,937,268 3,199,170 
Infrastructure 2,886.758 3,180,045 - - 2,886,758 3,180,045 
Construction in Progress 1,316.798 349,530 1,643,039 256740 2,959,837 605.770 

Total $ 11,073,059 S 9,414793 $ 55,228,072 $ 55,254,642 $ 66,301.131 $ 64,668,935 

Additional information on the City of Denham Springs' capital assets can be found in note 8 of this report. 

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Denham Springs had total debt 
outstanding of 549,682,805. This debt is secured by utility service charges and lawfully available funds. 
There are no general obligation bonds outstanding by the City of Denham Springs at June 30, 2020. 

City of Denham Springs 
General Obli^tion and Revenue Bonds 

June 30, 2020 and 2019 

Govemmental 
Activities 

Business-T ype 
Activities 

Revenue Bonds 

Total 
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

- - 49,682,805 51,477,555 49,682,805 51,477,555 

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 9 of this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

• The revised June 2020 unemployment rate for the City of Denham Springs was 7.8 percent, which 
is higher than the revised rate of 4.6 percent a year ago. This compares favorably to both the state's 
revised average unemployment rate of 10.4 percent and the revised national average rate of 11.2 
percent. 

• The occupancy rate of the City's central business district has remained from 97-100 percent for the 
past several years. 

• Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Denham Springs' budget for the 2021 fiscal 
year. Current fiscal year end June 30,2020 unassigned fund balance in the general fund is $5,111,739. The 
City adopted a 2021 fiscal year general fund budget setting anticipated revenue of $13,802,961 and 
anticipated appropriation expenditures of $14,052,881 thereby anticipating a net loss of 5249,920. 
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Budgeted general fund revenues anticipate a net decrease of S550,983 compared to the FYE 2020 amended 
adopted budget. The variances in the budgeted revenues are due to FEMA grants related to the August 
2016 flood event to be received for ongoing recovery efforts. 

Budgeted general fund expenditures anticipate a net increase of $1,216,477 compared to the FYE 2020 
amended adopted budget. The variance in the expenditures are related to flood recovery related to the 
August 2016 flood. 

From August 11, 2016 through August 15, 2016, areas of South Louisiana experienced record-breaking 
rainfall resulting in significant flooding in certain areas. The City of Denham Springs and surrounding 
areas incurred damages as a result of the flooding. Several City properties including City Hall flooded 
during this event. The City is currently remodeling a building in downtown Denham Springs that was 
purchased for City Hall. Based upon preliminary analysis, management does not anticipate any material 
adverse effect on the City's operations. However, until the full consequences of this flood event are 
realized, there is uncertainty of the effect, if any, that this event may have on the City's future revenue 
sources as well as rebuilding of the affected location. 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Denham Springs' finances for 
all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of this infonnation 
provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the City Treasurer, c/o 
City of Denham Springs, P.O. Box 1629, Denham Springs, Louisiana 70727-1629. 
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Exhibit A-1 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (DEFKTTl 

JUNE 30, 2020 

Primary Govermiient Coinpoiieiit Units 
Mar-shal of Denliam Springs at 

Citv Court City Court Springs River-side Landing 
of Denham of Denham Economic Economic 

Goveiumental Brrsiness-Type Spriirgs - Sprtngs - Developrirenr Development 
Activities Activities Total War-d 11 Ward n District District 

ASSETS 

Cash and Casii Equivalents $ 5,729,899 $ 4.798,546 S 10.528,445 $ 227,656 S 73.659 S $ 
Receivables. Net 257.426 753,796 1,011,222 95 14,020 5,791 -
Due from Other Governments 1,566.733 1.013,106 2.579,839 - - - -
Due fi"om Compouent Unit 51.395 - 51,395 - - - -
Inventories 10,157 271,186 281.343 - - - -
Prepaid Items 189.032 84,669 273.701 - - - -
Restricted .Assets: 

Cash - 2,444,506 2,444.506 - - 4.521,645 -
Receivable - - - - - 611 -
Due from Other Governments - - - - - 1,471,240 -

Capital Assets: 
Land and Constnsction in Progress 3,098.519 5,928.382 9,026,901 - - 7.303,750 -
Otlier Capital Assets, Net of Depi'eciarion 7.974,540 49.299,690 57,274,230 75.455 59.138 21,502.064 -

Net Pension Asset - - - 14,650 14.376 - -
Total Assets 18.877,701 64.593,881 83.471,582 317.856 161.193 34.805.101 -

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOL"RCES 

OefeiTed Amount on Refunding - 5.134,397 5.134,397 - - 304,697 -
Defened Outflows - Related to Pensions 2,738.946 574,820 3.313.766 62.439 15.310 -

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,738.946 5,709.217 8,448,163 62,439 15,310 304,697 -
LIABILITIES 

Accoimts Pay^Ie and Accrued Expenses 1,135.421 2,457.308 3,592.729 24,471 17,696 79,047 -
Due to Primary Government - - - 1.266 14.354 - 35.775 
Non-Ciment Liabilities: 

Drte Witimi One Year 219,0.52 1.904,164 2,123,216 331 1.381 2,430.000 -
Due in More Tlian One Year: 

Other' Aniormts Due in More Titan One Year 657,157 48.031,408 48.688.565 - 1.063 7,900.000 -
Net Pension Liabilitv 10,088.109 1,885,795 11,973,904 276,793 - - -

Total Liabilities 12.099,739 54.278,675 66,378,414 302,861 34,494 10,409.047 35.775 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Inflows - Related to Pensions 1,198,043 147.340 1,345,383 38,085 37.788 - -

NET POSITION (DEFICIT) 

Net Investment iir Capital Assets 11.073,059 12.520,637 23,593,696 75.455 57.757 25,804.797 -
Restricted for: 

Cemetery Car e: 
Nonexpendable 1,137,248 - 1,137,248 - - - -

Civil Fees - - - 142.124 - - -
Witness Fees 163.292 - 163.292 - - - -
Otlrer 3,269 - 3,269 - - - -

Unrestricted (Deficit) (4,058,003) 3,356,446 (701.557) (178,230) 46,464 (1,104,046) (35,775) 

Total Net Position (Deficit) $ 8,318,865 $ 15,877,083 S 24,195.948 S 39,349 S 104,221 S 24.700,751 $ (35,775) 

The accompanying notes aie an integral part of this statement-



CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

STATEMENT OF ACITVTTIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020 

Exhibit A-2 

Net (Expense) Reventie and 
Changes in Net Position 

Comjjouen! Units 

Piogjam Revenues Primasy Government City Com7 
Marsha! of 
City Court 

Denham 
Springs 

Springs at 
Riverside Landing 

Fnnctlons'Pioaramt Expenses 

Operating 
Charges for Grants and 

Sei'vices Contributions 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 
Governmental 

Activities 
Bnsiness-Type 

Activities Total 

of Denham 
Springs -
Wardn 

of Denham 
Springs -
Wardn 

Economic 
Development 

District 

Economic 
Development 

District 

Pfiinary Goverument: 
Govemnientai Actbities: 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Highways and Streets 
Health 

Citltuie and Recreation 

S 2.639.104 
7,292.904 
1.961,810 

55,587 
178,390 

$ - S 
394,851 
10,820 

85.400 
739.500 
895.795 

20,749 

S 1.473,212 
287,710 
526,955 

S (1,080,492) 
(5,870,843) 

(528,240) 
(35.587) 

(157.64!) 

$ - : S (1.080.492) 
(5,870.843) 

(528.240) 
(35,587) 

(157,641) 

S $ S $ 

Total Governmental Activities 12,107,795 405.67! 1,741,444 2,287,877 (7.672.803) . (7,672,803) . . . . 
Business-Type Activities; 

Gas 
Water 
Sewer 
Sanitation 

2,724,211 
2,230,902 
5.507.610 

840.490 

3,672.678 
3.427.674 
3,495,222 

767,718 

47.440 
37.129 

156.034 

47,171 
545,056 
776,794 

- 1,043,078 
1,778,957 

(1,079,560) 
172,772) 

1.043,078 
1.778,957 

(1.079.560) 
(72,772) 

. -
- -

Total Business-Type Activities 11,303.213 11,36332 240.603 1.369,021 - 1,669,703 1,669.703 - - - -
Total Primary Govetisnient S 23,411,008 $ 11,768.963 S 1.982,047 S 3,656,898 (7,672.803) 1,669.703 (6,003,100) . . . . 

Component Units: 
Ci^' Comt of Denham Springs - Ward II 
Marshal of City Coitrt of Denhani Springs -

Wardn 
Deniiam Springs Economic Development 

Distiict 
Springs at Riverside Landing 

Economic Development District 

S 691,210 

472,390 

1.901.659 

$ 551.579 S 

222.293 

37,832 

28,255 

74.889 

s 18,172 

: - : 

(93,204) 

(175.208) 

(1,863,827) 

Total Component Units $ 3,065,259 $ 811.704 S 103,144 s 18.172 . . . (93,204) (175,208) (1,863,827) -
General Revenites: 

Taxes; 
Property 
Sales 
Occupational and Permits 
Franchise 

Miseellaneoivs 
Inteiest Income 
Insurance Proceeds 
Net Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Capital Assets 
Payments from the Cifv of Denham Springs 

326,552 
7,687,752 
1,043,182 

680.415 
771.851 
44.647 

22.095 
65,328 
79,987 
32,755 

326.552 
7,687.752 
1.043,182 

680,415 
793,946 
109,975 

79.987 
32.755 

976 
193 

46,860 

15,957 
66 

186.210 

6,881,542 

46,483 

-

Total General Revenues 10.554.399 200.165 10,754,564 48.029 202,233 6.928.025 . 
Change in Net Position 2,881.596 1,869,868 4,751,464 (45,175) 27,025 5,064,198 -

Net Position (Deficit) - Beginning of Year 5,437.269 14,007.215 19.444,484 84,524 77.196 19.636,553 (35.775) 

Net Position (Deficit) - End of Year S 8.318.865 S 15,877,083 i 24,195,948 S 39,349 S 104,221 S 24,700,751 $ (35,775) 

The accompauying notes are an integraJ part of this statement. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2020 

Exhibit B-1 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Receivables; 

Ad Valorem Taxes, Net 
Other 

Due from Other Governments 
Due from Component Units 
Prepaid Insurance 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 
Payroll Taxes Payable 
Retirement and Group Insurance Payable 
Accrued Salaries and Wages 
Other Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 
Fund Balances: 

Nonspendable: 
Prepaid Insurance 
Pennanent Fund Principal 

Restricted For: 
Witness Fees 
Other Purposes 

Assigned To: 
Capital Projects 

Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

General 

4,350,746 

10,073 
247,353 

1,563,938 
51,395 

189,032 

6,412,537 

831,139 
10,085 

130,117 
112,333 
28,092 

1.111.766 

189,032 

5,111,739 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 1,376,839 

2.773 

1,379,612 

2.810 

2.810 

1,137,248 

163,292 
3,269 

72,993 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

5,727,585 

10,073 
247,353 

1,566,711 
51,395 
189,032 

7,792,149 

833,949 
10,085 

130,117 
112,333 
28,092 

1.114.576 

189,032 
1,137,248 

163,292 
3,269 

72,993 
5,111,739 

5,300,771 1,376,802 6,677,573 

$ 6,412,537 $ 1,379,612 $ 7,792,149 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit B-2 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30. 2020 

Fund Balances-Total Governmental Funds S 6,677,573 

Amounts Reported for Governmental 
Activities in the Statement of Net 
Position are Different Because: 

Capital Assets Used in Governmental Activities 
are not Financial Resources and are not 
Reported in the Governmental Funds 

Governmental Capital Assets 22,219,679 
Eess Accumulated Depreciation (11,169,004) 11,050,675 

Eong-Term Eiabilities are not Due and 
Payable in the Current Period and 
Therefore are not Reported in the 
Governmental Funds: 

Compensated Absences Payable (852,259) 
Net Pension Liability (10,005,670) 

Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
are not Reported in Governmental Funds 2,711,184 

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
are not Reported in Governmental Funds (1,191,391) 

The Motor Pool Internal Servdce Fund is Used by Management 
to Charge the Cost of Vehicle Repairs to Individual 
Funds. The Assets and Liabilities of the Internal 
Service Fund are Included in Governmental 
Activities in the Statement of Net Position -
Motor Pool Internal Service Fund Net Position (71,247) 

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 8,318,865 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BAEANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020 

Exhibit B-3 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Licenses and Permits 
Fines and Forfeits 
Interest 
Fees 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Cunent: 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Highways and Streets 
Health 
Culture and Recreation 

Capital Outlay; 
Highways and Streets 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of 
Revenues over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds from Disposition of Assets 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 
Fund Balances at End of Year 

General 

8,857,987 
1,043,182 

360,880 
41,741 
17,576 

3,753,611 
518,564 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

2,906 
10,319 

232 
79,670 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 8,857,987 
1,043,182 
360,880 
44,647 
27,895 

3,753,843 
598,234 

14,593,541 93,127 14,686,668 

4,125,508 15,881 4,141,389 
6,692,899 - 6,692,899 
2,181,365 - 2,181,365 

35,587 - 35,587 
119,023 - 119,023 

_ 79,651 79,651 

13,154,382 95,532 13,249,914 

1,439,159 (2,405) 1,436,754 

25,100 _ 25,100 

25,100 - 25,100 

1,464,259 (2,405) 1,461,854 

3,836,512 1,379,207 5,215,719 

$ 5,300,771 9 i 1,376,802 $ 6,677,573 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit B-4 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds S 1,461,854 

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities 
are Different Because; 

Govermnental Funds Report Capital Outlays as Expenditures. However, in 
the Statement of Activities, the Cost of Those Assets is Alloeated Over 
their Estimated Useful Lives and Reported as Depreciation Expense. 

Capital Outlay 2,821,219 
Depreciation Expense (913,513) 

1,907,706 

In the Statement of Activities, Only the Gain on the Sale of Capital Assets 
is reported. However, in the Governmental Funds, the Proceeds from 
the Sale Increase Financial Resources. Thus, the Change in Net Position Differs 
from the Change in the Fund Balance by the Cost of the Capital Assets Sold. 

Add Accumulated Depreciation on Capital Assets Retired 1,589,062 
Less Cost Basis of Capital Assets Retired During the Year (1,834,336) 

Some Expenses Reported in the Statement of Activities do not Require the 
use of Current Financial Resources and are not Reported as Expenditures 
in Governmental Funds. 

(Increase) Decrease in Compensated Absences Payable 22,396 
(Increase) Decrease in Pension Expense (469,957) 

Proportionate Share of Non-employer Contributions to the Pension Plans do not 
Provide Current Financial Resources and, Therefore, are not reported as 
Revenues in the Governmental Funds. 302,723 

Internal Service Funds are Used by Management to Charge the Costs of 
Certain Activities to Individual Funds. The Net Revenue (Expense) of 
the Internal Service Fund is Reported with Governmental Activities. (97,852) 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities S 2,881,596 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

Exhibit B-5 

FOR TI m YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Budgeted Amounts Variance With 
Original Final Actual Final Budget 

Revenues 
Taxes: 

Ad Valorem Taxes $ 309,000 ; ̂ 320,000 $ 326,552 $ 6,552 
Alcohoiic Beverage Tax 50,000 50,000 54,140 4,140 
Cable TV Franchise Tax 130,000 135,000 135,534 534 
Chain Store Tax 22,000 22,000 24,485 2,485 
Charitable Gaming Tax 100,000 80,000 84,643 4,643 
Electrical Franchise Taxes 550,000 550,000 543,406 (6,594) 
Sales Taxes 7,600,000 7,350,000 7,687,752 337,752 
Wrecker Franchise Tax 1,650 1,650 1,475 (175) 

8,762,650 8,508,650 8,857,987 349,337 

Licenses and Permits: 
Occupational Licenses 910,000 900,000 911,191 11,191 
Other Permits and Licenses 133,125 110,125 131,991 21,866 

1,043,125 1,010,125 1,043,182 33,057 

Fines and Forfeits: 
Ward II Court 558,000 355,500 359,703 4,203 
Forfeiture Funds - 1,177 1,177 -

558,000 356,677 360,880 4,203 

Interest Income 10,000 20,000 41,741 21,741 

Fees: 
Animal Adoption Fees 5,000 6,000 6,756 756 
Road Maintenance Fees 10,820 10,820 10,820 -

15,820 16,820 17,576 756 

(CONTINUED) 
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Exhibit B-5 
(Continued) 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Budgeted Amounts Variance With 
Original Final Actual Final Budget 

Intergovernmental: 
Federal Government: 

Law Enforcement Grants 30,000 50,000 43,096 (6,904) 
Office of Community 

Development DRU Grant 718,618 692,681 692,681 -
FEMA Disaster Grants 3,168,849 2,746,452 2,550,651 (195,801) 
Other Grant Revenue - - 26,092 26,092 

State Government: 
Fire Insurance Commissions 43,000 43,000 50,525 7,525 
On Behalf Payments for Salaries 354,000 305,000 308,832 3,832 
Other Grant Revenue 50,000 - - -

Livingston Parish School Board 
School Resource Officer 81,732 81,732 81,734 2 

4,446,199 3,918,865 3,753,611 (165,254) 

Miscellaneous: 
Insurance Premium Rebate 100,000 432,857 432,857 -
Royalties 200 200 182 (18) 
Wreck Reports 12,000 14,000 16,896 2,896 
Rent Income 250 750 725 (25) 
Miscellaneous 59,000 61,000 67,904 6,904 

171,450 508,807 518,564 9,757 

Total Revenues 15,007,244 14,339,944 14,593,541 253,597 

(CONTINUED) 
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Exhibit B-5 
(Continued) 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN EUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED) 

TOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Expenditures 
General Government: 

General Provisions; 

Budgeted Amounts 
Oriainal Final Actual 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Salaries 503,514 470,606 472,413 (1,807) 
Council Per Diems 60,000 60,000 60,000 -
Payroll Taxes, Retirement, 

and Group Insurance 197,095 181,425 179,664 1,761 
Buildings 2,624,153 1,668,759 1,344,145 324,614 
Equipment Purchased 306,300 71,780 44,257 27,523 
Flood Expenses - 130,000 127,327 2,673 
Insurance 27,825 27,825 53,239 (25,414) 
Land Purchase - - 467,261 (467,261) 
Legal and Professional 72,375 50,900 47,495 3,405 
Membership Fees and 

Educational Training 30,000 30,000 29,205 795 
Miscellaneous 72,644 96,440 75,172 21,268 
Printing, Postage and 

Office Supplies 48,000 53,000 68,132 (15,132) 
Rental Equipment 16,000 15,000 15,038 (38) 
Repairs and Maintenance 37,700 40,194 53,194 (13,000) 
Small Tools and Supplies 500 4,000 4,000 -
Telephone 45,000 60,240 63,131 (2,891) 
Travel 9,000 8,750 6,542 2,208 
Utilities 23,270 58,000 57,476 524 

Total General Provisions 4,073,376 3,026,919 3,167,691 (140,772) 

:metery: 
Contracted Sen-ices 52,326 51,300 51,300 -
Insurance 225 225 486 (261) 
Miscellaneous 340 340 292 48 
Repairs and Maintenance 2,900 - 810 (810) 
Small Tools and Supplies 200 200 98 102 

Total Cemetery 55,991 52,065 52,986 (921) 

(CONTINUED) 
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Exhibit B-5 
(Continued) 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Budgeted Amounts 

General Government (Continued): 
Tax; 

Salaries 
Payroll Taxes, Retirement, 

and Group Insurance 
Collection Fees 
Equipment Purchased 
Insurance 
Legal and Professional 
Miscellaneous 
Printing, Postage and 

Office Supplies 
Small Tools and Supplies 
Tax Roll 

Total Tax 

Ward Court: 

Orisinal Final 

63,284 

21,980 
122,000 

1,000 
960 
500 
400 

2,500 
250 

5.000 

63.284 

2T 
121,000 

960 
500 
950 

3,000 
250 

5.000 

217.874 216.824 

Actual 

61.558 

21. 
124,554 

826 
2,392 

48 
341 

2,635 
249 

4.955 

219,358 

Variance With 
Final Budaet 

1,726 

(3,554) 
(826) 

(1,432) 
452 
609 

365 
1 

45 

(2,534) 

Salaries 51,550 51,550 51,550 -
Payroll Taxes, Retirement, 

and Group Insurance 13,039 13,113 13,595 (482) 
Additional Court Costs 20,000 17,500 15,958 1,542 
Building Maintenance 4,500 - - -
Insurance 1,625 1,625 3,063 (1,438) 
Payments to Component Units 233,071 233,071 233,070 1 
Utilities - - 3,000 (3,000) 

Total Ward Court 323,785 316,859 320,236 (3,377) 

(CONTINUED) 
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Exhibit B-5 
(Continued) 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Budgete( i Amounts Variance With 
Original Final Actual Final Budget 

General Government (Continued): 
Planning and Zoning: 

Salaries 192,764 191,264 192,487 (1,223) 
Payroll Taxes, Retirement, 

and Group Insurance 80,183 78,161 78,374 (213) 
Demolition Expense - 212 212 -
Equipment Purchased - - 826 (826) 
Insurance 6,625 6,625 10,276 (3,651) 
Legal and Professional 35,000 3,000 8,735 (5,735) 
Membership Fees and 

Educational Training 13,000 13,000 11,231 1,769 
Miscellaneous 10,060 9,560 4,459 5,101 
Printing, Postage and 

Office Supplies 5,500 4,500 3,366 1,134 
Repairs and Maintenance - - 5 (5) 
Small Tools and Supplies 2,500 1,750 1,000 750 
Vehicle Expense 6,000 6,000 4,587 1,413 

Total Planning and 
Zoning 351,632 314,072 315,558 (1,486) 

Landscaping: 
Contracted Services 50,184 49,200 49,200 -
Insurance 2,025 2,025 479 1,546 

Total Landscaping 52,209 51,225 49,679 1,546 

Total General Govermnent 5,074,867 3,977,964 4,125,508 (147,544) 

(CONTINUED) 
31 



Exhibit B-5 
(Continued) 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Budgeted Amounts 

Public Safety: 
Animal Control; 

Original Final Actual 
Variance With 
Final Budset 

Salaries 231,000 219,180 222,329 (3,149) 
Payroll Taxes, Retirement, 

and Group Insurance 41,599 49,125 48,459 666 
Animal Care Expense 66,500 43,000 41,022 1,978 
Buildings 367,000 32,169 40,852 (8,683) 
Equipment Purchased 23,000 37,451 37,451 -
Equipment Expense 3,250 8,291 7,108 1,183 
Insurance 9,185 9,185 16,688 (7,503) 
Miscellaneous 15,325 54,495 55,276 (781) 
Small Tools and Supplies 2,300 1,300 2,660 (1,360) 
Telephone 10,000 10,000 10,544 (544) 
Utilities 11,860 11,860 10,310 1,550 

Total Animal Control 781,019 476,056 492,699 (16,643) 

re: 
Salaries 1,515,665 1,454,057 1,445,090 8,967 
Payroll Taxes, Retirement, 

and Group Insurance 769,914 710,265 721,617 (11,352) 
Legal and Professional 15,000 6,500 5,843 657 
Equipment Purehased 9,812 40,371 83,391 (43,020) 
Equipment Expense 75,000 67,000 62,286 4,714 
Insurance 138,480 138,480 157,963 (19,483) 
Membership Fees and 

Educational Training 29,500 28,000 25,893 2,107 
Miscellaneous 11,650 10,750 15,881 (5,131) 
Printing, Postage and 

Office Supplies 7,300 5,250 6,862 (1,612) 
Repairs and Maintenance 112,500 63,243 20,570 42,673 
Small Tools and Supplies 26,500 19,300 16,216 3,084 
Telephone 25,000 27,500 27,331 169 
Uniforms 12,650 20,000 19,755 245 
Utilities 24,000 19,550 19,111 439 

Total Fire 2,772,971 2,610,266 2,627,809 (17,543) 

(CONTINUED) 
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Exhibit B-5 
(Continued) 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Budgeted Amounts Variance With 
Original Final Actual Final Budget 

Public Safety (Continued): 
Police: 

Salaries 1,961,992 1,894,944 1,867,366 27,578 
Payroll Taxes, Retirement, 

and Group Insurance 1,090,302 986,871 981,771 5,100 
Equipment Purchased 143,400 111,779 117,182 (5,403) 
Equipment Expense 176,600 164,500 140,156 24,344 
Equipment Rental 30,211 30,211 23,359 6,852 
Insurance 158,630 165,130 210,539 (45,409) 
Membership Fees and 

Educational Training 39,000 30,000 25,990 4,010 
Miscellaneous 29,500 16,000 15,531 469 
Printing, Postage and 

Office Supplies 14,500 10,800 9,617 1,183 
Professional Fees 10,000 5,000 4,447 553 
Repairs and Maintenance 89,725 42,780 43,293 (513) 
Small Tools and Supplies 11,000 6,500 3,899 2,601 
Telephone 80,400 60,000 57,358 2,642 
Uniforms 60,000 35,885 35,664 221 
Utilities 33,000 33,000 36,219 (3,219) 

Total Police 3,928,260 3,593,400 3,572,391 21,009 

Total Public Safety 7,482,250 6,679,722 6,692,899 (13,177) 

Highway and Streets: 
Streets: 

Salaries 667,092 653,547 651,252 2,295 
Payroll Taxes, Retirement, 

and Group Insurance 281,870 277,131 271,750 5,381 
Contract Sendees 60,000 45,500 36,738 8,762 
Equipment Purchased 433,526 347,995 616,918 (268,923) 
Equipment Expense 115,000 96,550 84,308 12,242 

(CONTINUED) 
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Exhibit B-5 
(Continued) 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Budgeted Amounts Variance With 
Original Final Actual Final Budget 

Highway and Streets (Continued): 
Streets: 

Equipment Rental 2,490 2,490 2,740 (250) 
Flood Expenses - 15,000 13,511 1,489 
Insurance 76,190 76,190 100,983 (24,793) 
Uniforms 15,000 15,000 15,000 -
Legal and Professional 1,000 1,000 475 525 
Streets Maintenance 

and Materials 201,701 173,500 175,400 (1,900) 
Membership Fees and 

Educational Training 400 400 255 145 
Miscellaneous 34,943 55,144 56,700 (1,556) 
Small Tools and Supplies 7,500 7,500 8,663 (1,163) 
Telephone 10,000 15,000 16,161 (1,161) 
Utilities 6,764 6,764 7,699 (935) 

Total Streets 1,913,476 1,788,711 2,058,553 (269,842) 

Lighting; 
Utilities 121,594 122,000 122,812 (812) 

Total Lighting 121,594 122,000 122,812 (812) 

Total Highways 
and Streets 2,035,070 1,910,711 2,181,365 (270,654) 

Health: 
Council on Aging 209,500 9,900 29,638 (19,738) 
Food Bank Contribution 1,000 4,000 - 4,000 
Pest Control 10,000 5,000 5,949 (949) 

Total Health 220,500 18,900 35,587 (16,687) 

(CONTINUED) 
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Exhibit B-5 
(Continued) 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Budgeted Amounts Variance With 
Original Final Actual Final Budget 

Culture and Recreation: 
Culture: 

Salaries 29,734 29,734 25,515 4,219 
Payroll Taxes, Retirement, 

and Group Insurance 2,606 2,406 2,045 361 
Committee Expenses - - 1,598 (1,598) 
Insurance 2,120 2,120 7,760 (5,640) 
Legal and Professional - 600 600 -
Membership Fees and 

Educational Training 1,000 500 375 125 
Repairs and Maintenance 17,788 21,769 31,320 (9,551) 
Printing, Postage and 

Office Supplies 5,500 3,500 1,374 2,126 
Telephone 5,000 5,000 4,705 295 
Travel 1,000 250 156 94 
Utilities 6,893 6,893 6,684 209 

Total Culture 71,641 72,772 82,132 (9,360) 

Parks: 
Insurance - - 358 (358) 
Land Improvements 500 500 - 500 
Maintenance 38,350 35,850 36,533 (683) 

Total Parks 38,850 36,350 36,891 (541) 

Total Culture and 
Recreation 110,491 109,122 119,023 (9,901) 

Total Expenditures 14,923,178 12,696,419 13,154,382 (457,963) 

(CONTINUED) 
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Exhibit B-5 
(Continued) 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Budgeted Amounts Variance With 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers Out 
Proceeds from Disposition of Assets 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance at End of Year 

Original Final Actual Final Budget 

84,066 1,643,525 1,439,159 (204,366) 

(220,520) (139,985) . 139,985 
- 14,000 25,100 11,100 

(220,520) (125,985) 25,100 151,085 

(136,454) 1,517,540 1,464,259 (53,281) 

3,836,512 3,836,512 3,836,512 . 

$ 3,700,058 ^ ; 5,354,052 ! E 5,300,771 $ (53,281) 

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Exhibit C-1 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2020 

Business-Type Activities -
Governmental 

Activities -
Utility 

Enterprise 
Fund 

Denhani Springs 
Sewer District 

Number 1 

Total 
Business-Type 

Activities 

Motor Pool 
Internal 

Service Fund 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,607,107 $ 191,439 S 4,798,546 S 2,314 

Restricted Assets: 
Cash for Customer Deposits 
Revenue Bond Covenant Accounts 

1,250,308 
852,204 341,994 

1,250,308 
1,194,198 

-

2,102,512 341,994 2,444,506 -

Receivables: 
Accounts (Net of Allowance for 

Uncollectible Accounts of $260,000) 
Due from Other Governments 
Unbilled Utility Sales 

348,307 
845,063 
405,489 

168,043 
348,307 

1,013,106 
405,489 

22 

1,598,859 168,043 1,766,902 22 

Inventory, at Cost 271,186 - 271,186 10,157 

Due from Other Funds 9,083,100 182,607 9,265,707 -

Prepaid Expenses 4,308 - 4,308 -

Total Current Assets 17,667,072 884,083 18,551,155 12,493 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Prepaid Items 
Capital Assets: 

Land and Construction in Progress 
Other Capital Assets, at Cost (Net of 

Accumulated Depreciation) 

80,361 

1,899,610 

30,985,047 

4,028,772 

18,314,643 

80,361 

5,928,382 

49,299,690 22.384 

Total Noncurrent Assets 32,965,018 22,343,415 55,308,433 22,384 

Total Assets 50,632,090 23,227,498 73,859,588 34,877 

Deferred Outflows of Resources: 
Deferred Amount on Refunding of Debt 
Deferred Outflows - Related to Pensions 

2,157,419 
574,820 

2,976,978 5,134,397 
574,820 27,762 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,732,239 2,976,978 5,709,217 27,762 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 
of Resources $ 53,364,329 S 26,204,476 S 79,568,805 S 62.639 

(CONTINUED) 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION fCGNTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

Exhibit C-1 
(Continued) 

Business-Type Activities 
Governmental 

Activities -
Utility Denham Springs Total Motor Pool 

Enterprise Sewer District Business-Type Internal 
Fund Number 1 Activities Service Fund 

Current Liabilities 
(Payable from Current Assets): 

Accounts Payable $ 1,005,789 $ 7,036 S 1,012,825 S 17,796 
Accrued Salaries and Wages 54,752 - 54,752 -
Accumulated Unpaid Vacation 63,191 - 63,191 5,987 
Customers' Deposits 1,236,809 - 1,236,809 -
Current Portion of Debt 1,179,683 661,290 1,840,973 -
Other Current Liabilities 15,983 - 15,983 3,049 
Due To Other Funds 182,607 9,083,100 9,265,707 -
Accrued Bond Interest 73,207 63,732 136,939 -

Total Current Liabilities 3,812,021 9,815,158 13,627,179 26,832 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Accumulated Unpaid Vacation 189,576 - 189,576 17,963 
Debt Payable after One Year 

(Net of Unamortized Bond 
Premium or Discount) 25,829,523 22,012,309 47,841,832 -

Net Pension Liability 1,885,795 - 1,885,795 82,439 
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 27,904,894 22,012,309 49,917,203 100,402 

Total Liabilities 31,716,915 31,827,467 63,544,382 127,234 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
DefeiTed Inflows - Related to Pensions 147,340 - 147,340 6,652 

Net Position: 
Net Investment in 

Capital Assets 9,212,553 3,308,084 12,520,637 22,384 
EFnrestricted (Deficit) 12,287,521 (8,931,075) 3,356,446 (93,631) 

Total Net Position (Deficit) 21,500,074 (5,622,991) 15,877,083 (71,247) 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow 
of Resources, and Net Position $ 53,364,329 $ 26,204,476 S 79,568,805 S 62.639 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit C-2 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Business-Type Activities 

Operating Revenues: 
Charges tor Services 

Total Operating Revenues 
Operating Expenses: 

Personal Services and Benefits 
Contractual Services 
Cost of Materials 
Utilities 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Supplies 
Insurance 
Depreciation 
Overhead Allocation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Nonoperating Revenues: 

Intergovernmental 
Interest 
Amortization of Bond Premium 
Gain on Disposition of Assets 
Insurance Proceeds 
Miscellaneous 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 
Nonoperating Expenses: 

interest 
Amortization of Bond Costs 
Amortization of Bond Discoimt 
Loss on Disposal of Capital Asset 

Total Nonoperating Expenses 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions 

Capital Contributions 

Change in Net Position 
Total Net Position (Deficit) at 

Beginning of Year 
Total Net Position (Deficit) at End of Year 

Govemmenlal 
Activities -

Utility Denham Springs Total Motor Pool 
Enterprise Sewer District Business-Type Internal 

Fund Number 1 Activities Service Fund 

$ 10,179,261 S 1,184,031 8 11,363,292 $ 314,519 

10,179,261 1,184,031 11,363,292 314,519 

2.899.234 55.124 2.954.358 151,733 
1,179,903 40,470 1,220,373 380 

754,368 - 754,368 227,594 
470,742 133,694 604,436 3,120 

1.084.048 146,481 1,230,529 12.742 
360,087 70.807 430.894 6,554 
213.393 9,773 223,166 9.825 

1,641,615 474,745 2,116,360 3,666 
(222,059) 222.059 - -

8,381,331 1,153,153 9,534,484 415,614 

1,797,930 30,878 1,828,808 (101,095) 

240,603 _ 240.603 3,221 
5,837 4,555 10,392 -

54,936 - 54,936 -
32,755 - 32,755 -
79,987 - 79.987 -
22,095 - 22,095 22 

436,213 4,555 440.768 3.243 

959,724 797.195 1.756.919 . 

3,348 8,276 11,624 -
- 186 186 

: 

963,072 805,657 1,768,729 -

1,271,071 (770,224) 500,847 (97,852) 

865,847 503.174 1.369.021 -

2,136,918 (267,050) 1,869,868 (97,852) 

19,363,156 (5,355,941) 14.007.215 26,605 

$ 21,500,074 S (5,622,991) S 15,877,083 $ (71,247) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Exliibit C-3 

Biisi!iess-T>pe Activities -
GovermnenTal 

Activities -
Utility Denliarn Spriirgs Total Motor Pool 

Enterprise Sewer District Business-Type Internal 
Fund Ntunber 1 Activities Service Fund 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 
Cash Received fi om Customers $ 9.S43.5S4 S 1.046.093 $ 10,889,677 S 314.497 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for 

Goods and Services (3,423,233) (736,681) (4,159,914) (270,774) 
Cash Pajmieiits to Employees foi 

Services and Benefits (2,778,309) (55,124) (2,833,433) (146,615) 
Otlier Receipts (Payiuents) (469,909) 754,552 284,643 21 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) 
Operating Activities 3,172,133 1,008,840 4,180,973 (102,871) 

Cash Flows From Capital and 
Related Financing Activities: 

Acquisition and Constmction of Capital Assets (1,925,606) (164,184) (2,089,790) -
Proceeds from Disposition of Assets 32,755 - 32,755 -
Interest Expense Paid on Long Tenn Debt (875,496) (778,539) (1,654,035) -
Principal Paid on Long Tenn Debt (1,080,2(») (659,800) (1,740,0(») -
Capital Contributions 865,847 503,174 1,369,021 -

Net Cash Used in Capital 
and Related Financing Activities (2,982,7tX)) (1,099,349) (4,082,049) -

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 
Interest Income Received 5,837 4,555 10,392 -

Net Cash Provided by 
Investing Activities 5,837 4,555 10,392 -

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 
and Cash Equivalents 195,270 (85,954) 109,316 (102,871) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents -
Beginning of Year 6.514.349 619,387 7.133.736 105,185 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year S 6,709,619 S 533,433 $ 7,243,052 S 2,314 

Schedule of Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing [ Activities: 
Amortization of Deferred Bond Expense $ 3,348 $ 8,276 $ 11,624 $ 

Amorlization of Bond Premium and Discount (Net) $ (54,936) S 186 $ (54,750) S 

Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets S (32,755) S $ (32,755) S 

Non-employer Contributions to the Pension Plans S 58,042 S $ 58,042 S 3,221 

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to the 
Balance Sheet: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,607,107 S 191,439 $ 4,798,546 S 2,314 

Cash for Customer Deposits 1,250,308 - 1,250,308 -
Revenue Bond Covenant Accounts 852,204 341,994 1,194,198 -

Total Cash and Cash Equivalent $ 6,709,619 $ 533,433 $ 7,243,052 S 2,314 

(CONTINUED) 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Exliibit C-3 

(Continued) 

Business-Type Activities -
Govermnental 

Activities -
Utility Denliam Springs Total Motor Pool 

Enterprise Sewer District Business-Type Internal 
Fund Number 1 Activities Service Fund 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities: 
Operating Income (Loss) S L797,930 S 30,878 $ 1,828,808 S (101.095) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income 

to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 1,641,615 474,745 2,116,360 3,666 
Intergovernmental Revenues 182,561 - 182,561 -
Miscellaneous Revenues 22,095 - 22,095 21 
Insurance Proceeds 79,987 - 79,987 -
Per^ion Expense Adjustment 79,132 - 79,132 3.7.52 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in Accoimts Receivable 272,442 - 272,442 -
(Increase) Decrease in Other Receivables (630,174) (137,938) (768,112) (22) 
(Increase) Decrease in Unbilled Utility Sales (28,473) - (28,473) -
(Increase) Decrease in Due fi om Other Funds (773,772) (19,220) (792,992) -
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory (46,033) - (46,033) 2,297 
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 4,494 5,106 9,600 -
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable - Trade 451,907 (118,503) 333,404 (12,856) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries 

and Wages 16,890 - 16,890 -
Increase (Decrease) in Other Cunent Liabilities 6,881 - 6,881 1.043 
Increase (Decrease) in Due To Other Funds 19,220 773,772 792,992 -
Increase (Decrease) in Customers' Deposits 50,528 - 50,528 -
Increase (Decrease) in Accumulated 

Unpaid Vacation 24,903 - 24,903 323 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) 
Operating Activities $ 3,172,133 $ 1,008,840 $ 4,180,973 S (102,871) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fCONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -

A. Financial Reporting Entity 

The City of Denham Springs "the City" was incorporated May 8, 1903, under the 
provisions of R.S. 33:321-48. The City operates under a Mayor - City Council form of 
government and provides the following ser\dces as authorized by its charter: public safety 
(police, animal control, and fire), highways and streets, health and social ser\dces, culture-
recreation, education, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general admin­
istrative services. 

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
these financial statements present the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana, and its 
component units, entities for which the City of Denham Springs is considered to be 
financially accountable. The discretely presented component units are reported in a 
separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are legally 
separate from the City. Each discretely presented component unit has a June 30,2020 year 
end. 

The financial reporting entity consists of (1) the primary government (all funds under the 
auspices of the Mayor and the City Council), (2) organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable and a financial benefit/burden relationship exists, 
and (3) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with 
the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, the Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus, established criteria for determining which component units 
should be considered part of the City of Denham Springs for financial reporting purposes. 
The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. 
This criteria includes; 

1. Legal status of the potential component unit. 

2. Financial accountability: 

a. The primary government appoints a voting majority of the potential component 
unit's governing body and the primary government is able to impose its will on 
the potential component unit (or) 

b. When a potential component unit is fiscally dependent on the primary 
government regardless of whether the organization has separately elected 
officials or boards. 
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3. Financial benefits/burden relationship between the City and the potential component 
unit, and misleading to exclude which covers other potential component units for 
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government 
are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be 
misleading. 

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
these financial statements present the City of Denham Springs (the primary government) 
and its component units. Based on the criteria above, the City of Denham Springs has 
included the following component units in the financial reporting entity; 

BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT 

The City of Denham Springs created the Denham Springs Sewer District No. 1 on 
January 26, 2009, under the authority of Louisiana Revised Statute 33:3911 et. seq. The 
Denham Springs Sewer District No. 1 is a separate legal entity and is governed by the 
Mayor and the City Council of the City of Denham Springs and thus the governing body is 
substantively the same as the governing body of the primary government and is reported as 
a proprietary fund in the basic financial statements of the City of Denham Springs. The 
creation of this District also created a financial benefit and/or burden relationship between 
the primary government and the component unit. The purpose of the Sewer District is to 
install sewer infrastructure into unincorporated areas of Livingston Parish and within the 
designated boundaries of the District, to provide sewer services to residences of the area, 
and to set rates and collect sewer fees once the system is installed. The Sewer District is 
connecting into the City of Denham Springs sewer treatment facility as the infrastructure is 
installed. 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 

Component units that are legally separate from the City but are financially accountable to 
the City, or whose relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City's 
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete are discretely presented. The 
component units column of the government-wide financial statements include the financial 
data of these discretely presented component units. They are reported in a separate column 
to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City. 

Funding for the following state constitutionally defined agencies is included in the City's 
general fund. These officials however, have certain statutorily defined sources of funds for 
their own operating and/or capital budget discretion. These fiinds have been discretely 
presented in the Citj-^'s government-wide financial statements: 
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City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II - The Judge of the Court is an elected official 
provided by the Louisiana State Constitution. Fiscal interdependency exists between the 
City and the City Court in that the City is required to pro\dde the City Court office 
facilities and the City pays a portion of the Judge's compensation, and reimburses the 
Court for certain other salaries and benefits. The City Court has jurisdiction over all 
violations of City Ordinances and State misdemeanor cases. The jurisdiction includes 
the incorporated area of the City of Denham Springs and Ward Two of Livingston 
Parish. The City has the ability to modify or approve their budget which comes from 
the General Fund. There are certain funds collected by the City Court, pursuant to state 
statute, which are under the control of the courts. The City's government-wide financial 
statements discretely presents the City Court of Denham Springs - Ward IPs financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Marshal of City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II - The Marshal is an elected official 
provided by the Louisiana State Constitution. Fiscal interdependency exists between the 
City and the Marshal in that the City is required to provide the Marshal's office 
facilities, and reimburses the Marshal's office for certain other salaries and benefits. The 
Marshal of the City Court of Denham Springs has the power of a sheriff in the execution 
of the Court's orders and mandates in making requests and preser\dng the peace. The 
City has the ability to modify or approve the budget which comes from the General 
Fund. The Marshal serves the citizenry of the City of Denham Springs and Ward Two 
of Livingston Parish. The City's government-wide financial statements discretely 
presents the Marshal's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

In addition to the state constitutionally defined agencies included above, the City created 
the Denham Springs Economic Development District which created a Louisiana nonprofit 
corporation, the Denham Springs Economic Development Corporation, and the Springs at 
Riverside Landing Economic Development District to assist the City in the creation of 
economic development, to improve employment and to othenvise improve the economic 
condition of the City of Denham Springs and surrounding areas. 

Denham Springs Economic Development District - The Denham Springs Economic 
Development District ("the District") was created by an ordinance of the City Council of 
the City of Denham Springs on December 9, 2003, pursuant to the Louisiana 
Cooperative Economic Development Law. A board of five members is provided by law. 
The board is comprised of the members of the City Council of the City of Denham 
Springs and thus the City can impose its will on the District. The District encompasses 
approximately 75 acres within the City of Denham Springs. 

The purpose of the District is to secure Sales Tax Increment Revenue bonds issued to 
provide funds for the construction of infrastructure improvements and acquiring, 
constructing and equipping the Bass Pro retail outlet and restaurant and ancillary items 
within the District. The District issued Sales Tax Increment Revenue Bonds Series 2007 
A, B, and C dated March 1, 2007 in the total amount of $41,540,000 and issued Sales 
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Tax Increment Revenue Bonds Series 2008 dated May 27, 2008 in the amount of 
$8,460,000. The proceeds were used for the purchase of 24 acres within the 75 acre 
District and for the construction of the "Bass Pro Shops" project and infrastructure. The 
bonds will be repaid from sales tax revenues generated by developments within the 
District. Collateral for the bonds is limited to the prospective developments and the City 
of Denham Springs has no liability for these bonds or for the debt servdce of these 
bonds. 

Because of the required cooperation from each of and the sales tax revenues to be given 
up by each of the following governmental entities. 

City of Denham Springs 
Livingston Parish School Board 

Livingston Parish Council 
Livingston Parish Sheriff 

Livingston Parish Gravity Drainage District #1 
State of Louisiana 

the District created the Denham Springs Economic Development Corporation on 
February 14, 2004. The Corporation's Board is composed of five members 
recommended by the City of Denham Springs, two members recommended by the 
Livingston Parish School Board, one member recommended by the Livingston Parish 
Council, and one member recommended by the Livingston Parish Sheriff for a total of 
nine members. The corporation is a private nonprofit corporation created pursuant to the 
Louisiana Nonprofit Corporation Law (Chapter 2 of Title 12 of the Louisiana Revised 
Statutes) and has been assigned the responsibilities to oversee, supervise and approve 
the construction of infrastructure improvements and acquiring, constructing, and 
equipping the Bass Pro retail outlet and restaurant and ancillary items. Ownership of the 
24 acres, facilities and infrastructure remains with the District. There was no financial 
activity within this corporation prior to March of 2007. 

The Denham Springs Economic Development Corporation has been included in the 
financial statements of the Denham Springs Economic Development District as a 
blended component unit, and the Denham Springs Economic Development District has 
been included in the City's government-wide financial statements as a discretely 
presented component unit for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Springs at Riverside Landing Economic Development District - The Springs at 
Riverside Landing Economic Development District ("the Springs") was created by an 
ordinance of the City Council of the City of Denham Springs on November 7, 2013, 
pursuant to the Louisiana Cooperative Economic Development Law. A board of five 
members is provided by law. The board is comprised of the members of the City 
Council of the City of Denham Springs and thus the City can impose its will on the 
District. The Springs encompasses approximately 33 acres within the Cit}-' of Denham 
Springs. 
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The purpose of the Springs is to secure Sales Tax Increment Revenue bonds to finance 
(E"ainage and drainage related activities, parking and lighting improvements for the 
Springs and provide for the construction and development of other public infrastructure 
in connection with the Springs. The bonds would be repaid from sales tax revenues 
generated by developments within the District. Collateral for the bonds would be limited 
to the prospective developments and the City of Denham Springs w-ould have no liability 
for these bonds or for the debt servdce of these bonds. As of June 30, 2020, no bonds 
had been issued. 

RELATED ORGANIZATIONS 

City officials are also responsible for appointing members of the board of another 
organization. The City's accountability does not extend beyond making the appointments. 

Denham Springs Housing Authority - The Denham Springs Housing Authority is a 
legally separate government entity formed to administer housing programs funded by 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The City governing 
authority appoints a majority of the Authority's members; however, there is no financial 
relationship between the Authority and the primary government. 

The Denham Springs Parks and Recreation District #3 of Livingston Parish is a related 
organization of the City, how-ever the City officials have no responsibility for the District. 
The District does however include the geographic area of the City. 

Denham Springs Parks and Recreation District (PARD) - PARD is a legally separate 
parish agency that provides parks and recreational services to the residents of Livingston 
Parish District #3. District #3 includes the geographic area within the City of Denham 
Springs. 

PARD sets its own ad valorem tax, can incur debt and owns property. The City has no 
budget approval, management designation or commission member removal powers. 
PARD finances capital and operating budgets directly from the parish constituents 
wdthin District #3, and has no financial benefit/burden relationship with the City of 
Denham Springs. 

The following agency is a public trust established pursuant to State Statutes to finance debt 
for various public purposes within Livingston Parish. The City Council appoints the board 
members of the agency. The agency is fiscally independent from the City, issues its own 
debt, approves its budgets, and sets its rates and charges. The primary government has no 
authority to remove board members, designate management, or approve or modify rates. 
The City is not obligated in any manner for the debt issues of this agency. 

Denham Springs/Livingston Housing and Mortgage 
Finance Authority 
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Complete financial statements for each of the City of Denham Springs component units and 
related organizations can be obtained at the Office of the Legislative Auditor of the State of 
Louisiana, 1600 North Third Street, P.O. Box 94397, Baton Rouge, EA 70804-9397, or at 
each of the agencies administrative offices. 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary 
government and its component units. Govef^nmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally 
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods, ser\fices, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly 
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary flmds. 
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as 
separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund 
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when 
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met. 
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Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the currentfinancial resources 
measurementfocus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available 
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay 
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due 
within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the 
current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only 
when cash is received by the City. 

The City reports the following major governmental fund: 

The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The utility enterprise fund accounts for the provision of gas, water, sewer and sanitation 
services to the residents of the City of Denham Springs and some residents of the 
parishes of Livingston and East Baton Rouge. All activities necessary to provide such 
services are accounted for in this fund, including but not limited to, administration, 
operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and billing and collections. 

The Denham Springs Sewer District Number 1 fund (a blended component unit) 
accounts for the provision of sewer services to customers outside the limits of the City 
of Denham Springs but within a certain geographical area of Livingston Parish. All 
activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including 
but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt 
servdce, and billing and collections. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the 
acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. The capital 
projects fund excludes those type of capital related outflows financed by proprietary 
funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private organizations or 
other governments. 
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The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes 
other than debt ser\dces or capital projects. 

The internal service fund accounts for services such as vehicle fuel and repairs and 
maintenance to vehicles provided to other departments or agencies of the City, on a 
cost reimbursement basis. 

The debt seivice fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. 

The permanentfund is used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the 
extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the 
City's programs - that is, for the benefit of the City or its citizenry. 

The statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America as applied to governmental units and promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Both the government-wide financial 
statements and the proprietary fund financial statements follow guidance included in GASB 
Statement No. 62 - Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in Pre-November 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are other charges between the 
City's utility functions and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges 
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various flinctions 
concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital 
grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues 
include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
The principal operating revenues of the City's utility fund and of the City's internal ser\ice 
fiinds are charges to customers for sales and services. The City also recognizes as operating 
revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to 
the system. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund and internal servdce fund include the 
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues 
and expenses. 
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When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy 
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Equity 

1. Deposits and Investments -

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand 
deposits and short-term investments, with original maturities of three months or less 
from the date of acquisition. 

State statutes authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, 
commercial paper, corporate bonds, repurchase agreements and the State Treasurer's 
Investment Pool. 

Investments (certificates of deposit with original maturities greater than 90 days) are 
reflected at fair value. 

Deposit and Investment policies of the component units are similar to those of the 
primary government except that the restricted cash and investments of the Denham 
Springs Economic Development District have been placed in trust and are to be 
invested in accordance with the bond indenture to which these funds were derived. 

2. Receivables and Payables -

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other 
funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" 
(i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances 
between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a 
nonspendable fund balance classification in applicable governmental funds to 
indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available 
financial resources. At June 30,2020, there were no advances between funds. 

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for 
uncollectibles. Trade accounts receivable based on agings and estimated charge-off 
percentages comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for uncollectibles. The 
property tax receivable allowance is equal to three percent of the current year 
property tax levy plus one hundred percent of any unpaid prior year tax at June 30, 
2020. 
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Property taxes are levied in September or October each year on property values 
assessed as of the same date. Billed taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the 
following year, at which time the applicable property is subject to lien, and penalties 
and interest are assessed. 

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items -

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. 
Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed 
rather than when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and 
are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Also included in prepaid items is prepaid insurance on the issuance of bonds. Prepaid 
insurance on the issuance of bonds is recognized as an expense in a systematic and 
rational manner over the duration of the related bonds. 

4. Restricted Assets-

Primary Government -

Certain resources set aside for repayment of the City's Enterprise Fund bonds (2008 
Revenue Bonds, 2014, 2015, and 2016 Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds, and the 
2016 Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds) and the Sewer District Number 1 2009 
Revenue Bonds are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they 
are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond 
covenants. The "revenue bond debt service" accounts are used to segregate resources 
accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months. 

Certain proceeds and resources of the City's Utility Enterprise Fund are set aside to 
reimburse customers their utilit}-' deposits upon discontinuance of service. 

Component Unit -

Certain proceeds of the Denham Springs Economic Development District revenue 
bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as 
restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank 
accounts within a trust and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. The 
"revenue bond construction" accounts are used to report those proceeds of revenue 
bond issuances that are restricted for use in construction. The "revenue bond debt 
service" accounts are used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service 
payments over the next twelve months. 

5. Capital Assets -

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets 
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, 
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individual cost of more than $2,000 (amount not rounded). Such assets are recorded 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constmcted. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at acquisition value. 

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets, the City of 
Denham Springs chose to not include such assets acquired prior to 1980. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset 
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of 
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets 
constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. 

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component 
units, is depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Assets Years 

Buildings 15-40 
Building Improvements 10-25 
Public Domain Infrastructure 50 
System Infrastructure 20-50 
Equipment 3 - 15 

6. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources -

The statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred outflows 
and (or) inflows of financial resources. Deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred 
inflows of resources represents an acquisition of a net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until that time. 

The City and the Denham Springs Economic Development District's have deferred 
outflows of resources on the statement of net position that are a result of deferrals 
concerning bonded debt. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference 
in the varying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. Defeixed amount on 
reflinding of debt is reported in the deferred outflow sections of the statement of 
position. 

The City, the City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II, and the Marshal of City 
Court of Denham Springs - Ward II have deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
on the statement of net position that are related to pensions. See pension Note 11. 
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7. Compensated Absences -

It is the City's policy to pennit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation 
and sick pay benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since 
the City does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from 
service with the City. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-
wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these 
amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as 
a result of employee resignations and retirements. 

8. Pensions-

The City, the City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II, and the Marshal of City Court 
of Denham Springs - Ward II are participating employers in cost-sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit plans as described in Note 11. For purposes of measuring 
the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of each of the plans, and additions to/deductions from the plans' fiduciary 
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plans. 
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments 
are reported at fair value. 

9. Long-Term Obligations-

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type acthdties, or 
proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. 
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums 
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face 
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on 
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 

10. Net Position-

Net position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of 
resources, less liabilities, less deferred inflows of resources. The net investment in 
capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any debt proceeds used for the 
acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets. 

53 



CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fCONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by 
liabilities and defeixed inflows of resources related to those restricted assets. The 
restricted component of net position is used when there are limitations imposed on 
their use of an asset by external parities such as creditors, grantors, laws or 
regulations of other governments. 

The mirestricted component of net position is the net amount of assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not 
included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted 
component of net position. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use for a particular 
project or purpose, it is the government's policy to use restricted resources first, then 
unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

11. Fund Equity -

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance and is reported in accordance 
with the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54. 
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as 
follows: 

Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in 
nonspendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. 

Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of state or 
federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 

Committed - Amounts that can only be used for the specific purposes determined by 
a fonnal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority. The 
City Council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City of Denham 
Springs that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, 
commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance 
remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to 
remove or revise the limitation. 

Assigned - Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be 
used by the City for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as 
committed. The City Council has by resolution authorized the finance director to 
assign fund balance. The Council may also assign fund balance as it does when 
appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and 
appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, 
assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action 
does not normally have to be taken for removal of an assignment. Conversely, as 
discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove or revise a 
commitment. 

54 



CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fCONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

Unassigned - All amounts not included in other spendable classifications; positive 
amounts are only in the general fund. The Cit}-' has not adopted a policy to maintain 
the general fund's unassigned flmd balance above a certain minimum level. 

The details of the fund balances are included in the Balance Sheet - Governmental 
Funds (Exhibit B-1). City Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) flmd balance 
commitments by passage of an ordinance or resolution. This is typically done 
through adoption and amendment of the budget. As noted above, restricted funds are 
used first as appropriate. Assigned Funds are reduced to the extent that expenditure 
authority has been budgeted by the City Council or the Assignment has been changed 
by the City Council. Decreases to flmd balance first reduce Unassigned Fund balance; 
in the event that Unassigned becomes zero, then Assigned and Committed Fund 
Balances are used in that order. 

12. Post-Employment Health Care Benefits -

Retiree Benefits -

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the City provides 
postretiremen! healthcare benefits to all employees who retire from the City, as per 
the requirements of a local ordinance. The group insurance is paid by the City and 
reimbursed by the retired employee. There is no associated cost to the City under 
this program, and there are only six (6) participants in the program as of June 30, 
2020. Since the retiree healthcare benefit program is reimbursed to the City by the 
participants and the number of retirees opting to use this benefit has been historically 
low, the City determined any postemployment benefit accrual would be immaterial to 
the financial statements as the only potential accrual would be the implicit benefit of 
the retirees of paying the insurance group rate. 

COBRA Benefits-

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the City 
provides healthcare benefits to eligible former employees and eligible dependents. 
Certain requirements are outlined by the federal government for this coverage. The 
premiums are paid by the City and reimbursed by the insured. This program is 
offered for a duration of eighteen (18) months after the termination date. There is no 
associated cost to the City under this program, and at June 30, 2020, there are no 
participants in the program. 

13. Use of Estimates -

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America includes the use of estimates that 
affect the financial statements. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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14. Current Accounting Pronouncements -

In January 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB 
Statement No 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is to improve 
guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and 
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This 
Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local 
governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is 
controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a 
fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary 
component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary 
activities. An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in 
the basic financial statements. Governments with activities meeting the criteria 
should present a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in 
fiduciary net position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a business-
type activity that normally expects to hold custodial assets for three months or less. 
This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: 
(1) pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) 
private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds. Custodial funds generally should 
report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that 
meets specific criteria. A fiduciary component unit, when reported in the fiduciary 
fund financial statements of a primary government, should combine its information 
with its component units that are fiduciary component units and aggregate that 
combined information with the primary government's fiduciary funds. This 
Statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary 
fund when an event has occurred that compels the government to disburse fiduciary 
resources. Events that compel a government to disburse fiduciary resources occur 
when a demand for the resources has been made or when no further action, approval, 
or condition is required to be taken or met by the beneficiary to release the assets. 
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2019. Earlier application is encouraged. 

In May 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB 
Statement No 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the 
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial 
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of 
governments* financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized 
as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of 
the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the 
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying 
asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an 
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease 
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and 
consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. 
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The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
June 15, 2021. Earlier application is encouraged. Leases should be recognized and 
measured using the facts and circumstances that exist at the beginning of the period 
of implementation (or, if applied to earlier periods, the beginning of the earliest 
period restated). However, lessors should not restate the assets underlying their 
existing sales-type or direct financing leases. Any residual assets for those leases 
become the carrying values of the underlying assets. 

In June 2018, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB 
Statement No 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the 
relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of 
borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost 
incurred before the end of a construction period. This Statement establishes 
accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction 
period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in 
accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, 
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30,1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which are superseded by this 
Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is 
incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement 
focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will 
not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type 
activity or enterprise fund. This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements 
prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus, interest cost 
incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an 
expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2020. Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of this 
Statement should be applied prospectively. 

In March 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB 
Statement No 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability 
Payment Arrangements The primary objective of this Statement is to improve 
financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public 
partnership arrangements (PPPs). This Statement also provides guidance for 
accounting and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements (APAs). As 
defined in this Statement, an APA is an arrangement in which a government 
compensates an operator for services that may include designing, constructing, 
financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying nonfinancial asset for a period of 
time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. The requirements of this Statement 
are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,2022, and all reporting periods 
thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. 
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In May 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB 
Statement No 96 Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. This 
Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for 
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government 
end users (governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a 
SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset-an intangible asset-and a 
corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays 
other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and 
(4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards 
for SBITAs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as 
amended. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is 
encouraged. 

In June 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB 
Statement No 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. The 
primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparabihty 
related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a 
potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary 
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2) 
mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension 
plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and 
employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee 
benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; 
and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and 
financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred 
compensation plans ( Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan 
and for benefits provided through those plans. The requirements of this Statement 
that are related to the accounting and financial reporting for Section 457 plans are 
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,2021. For purposes of determining 
whether a primary government is financially accountable for a potential component 
unit, the requirements of this Statement that provide that for all other arrangements, 
the absence of a governing board be treated the same as the appointment of a voting 
majority of a governing board if the primary government performs the duties that a 
governing board typically would perform, are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier application of those requirements is 
encouraged and permitted by requirement as specified within this Statement. 

Management is currently evaluating the effects of the new GASB pronouncements. 
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(2) Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability -

A. Budgetary Information 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America for all governmental funds, except the Debt 
Service Fund and the Cemetery Care Permanent Fund which are not budgeted. All annual 
appropriations lapse at fiscal yearend. 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

1. The City Treasurer prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Mayor and 
Council no later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

2. A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public notified that the 
proposed budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public 
hearing is called. 

3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of 
the call for the hearing. 

4. After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to 
finalize and implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an 
ordinance prior to the commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being 

5. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, 
program, or function to another or involving increases in expenditures resulting from 
revenues exceeding amounts estimated require the approval of the City Council. 

Activities of the General Fund, the Capital Project Fund, and the Special Revenue Fund are 
included in the annual appropriated budget. The City is not required to prepare and does 
not prepare an annual appropriated budget for its Debt Service Fund, Enterprise Fund, 
Internal Service Fund or Cemetery Care Permanent Fund. 

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. The City's 
department heads may make transfers within a department. Transfers of appropriations 
between departments require the approval of the City Council. The legal level of budgetary 
control is the department level. Any increase in departmental budgets must be approved by 
the City Council. 

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended from time to time by the City 
Council. For the fiscal year ended June 30,2020, the City Council approved the decrease 
in the original expenditures and transfers out of the General Fund from $15,143,698 to 
$12,836,404. 
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The total General Fund decrease amounted to S2307,294. The General Fund budget as 
amended was decreased $1,290,000 for building improvements for City hall and animal 
control that were not completed in 2020, decreased approximately $308,000 in equipment 
purchased, decreased approximately $200,000 for Council on Aging building improve­
ments that did not occur in the current year, decreased approximately $ 188,000 for salaries, 
Hood expenses increased approximately $145,000, payroll taxes, retirement, and group 
insurance decreased approximately $178,000, decreased approximately $66,000 in legal 
and professional expenses, decreased approximately $136,000 in operating transfers out, 
and repairs and maintenance expense decreased approximately $93,000. These areas were 
the major budget increases and decreases. 

Budgetary data for the discretely presented component units are not presented in these 
financial statements. 

(3) Deposits and Investments -

The City has established a consolidated bank account with a local bank into which monies are 
deposited and from which all disbursements are now being made. The purpose of the 
consolidation account is to reduce administrative charges and provide a single cash balance 
available for the maximization of investment earnings. Each fund shares in the investment 
earnings of the consolidated account according to its average cash balance. Cash is transferred 
from those funds with available cash resources to cover any negative cash balances, if any, in 
other funds at year-end. 

The City also invests excess funds in interest bearing demand deposit accounts. At June 30,2020, 
the City had no certificates of deposit investments. 

The discretely presented component units maintain deposit accounts similar to the Primary 
Government. 

A. Primary Government 

As reflected in Exhibit A-1, the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana has cash totaling 
$ 12,972,951. Under state law, these deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance 
or the pledge of securities owned by the bank. These pledged securities are held by and are 
in the name of the fiscal agent bank but pledged to the City. The following is a summary of 
cash and investments at June 30, 2020. 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Deposits in Bank Accounts per 
Balance Sheet: 

Cash and C^h Equivalents $5,729,899 $7,243,052 $12,972,951 
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Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits 

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits 
may not be returned to it. To mitigate this risk, state law requires for these deposits (or the 
resulting bank balances) to be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of 
securities by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the 
federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent 
bank. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding 
or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. The pledged securities are 
deemed by Louisiana State Law to be under the control and possession and in the name of 
the City regardless of its designation by the financial institution in which it is deposited. 
As of June 30, 2020, none of the City's bank balance of $12,965,160 was exposed to 
custodial credit risk. Neither the City of Denham Springs nor its discretely presented 
component units has a policy for custodial credit risk. 

B. Deposits - Discretely Presented Component Units 

The discretely presented component units are required to invest funds within the same state 
statutes as the primary government. Component unit deposits (including demand deposit 
accounts and all certificates of deposits) at June 30,2020, are summarized below. 

Marshall of Denham Springs 
City Court of City Court of Economic 

Denham Springs- Denham Springs- Development 
Ward II Ward II District 

Deposits in Bank Accounts 
Per Balance Sheet: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $227,656 S 73,659 5 4,521,645 

Fiduciary Amounts - Not Included 
in Statement of Net Position 259,377 

487,033 S 73,659 5 4,521,645 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits 

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the component 
units' deposits may not be returned to them. To mitigate this risk, state law requires for 
these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) to be secured by federal deposit insurance or 
the pledge of securities by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities 
plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the 
fiscal agent bank. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in 
a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. The pledged 
securities are deemed by Louisiana State Law to be under the control and possession and in 
the name of the component unit regardless of its designation by the financial institution in 
which it is deposited. As of June 30,2020, none of the component unit's bank balance of 
$5,246,085 was exposed to custodial credit risk. 
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(4) Ad Valorem Taxes -

Normally, ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. 
Normally, taxes are levied by the City in September or October and are actually billed to the 
taxpayers in November. Billed taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the following year. 
Revenues from ad valorem taxes are budgeted in the year billed. 

The City's property taxes are now billed and collected by the Livingston Parish Tax Collector 
from information on assessed values received from the Livingston Parish Assessor's Office. The 
Tax Collector remits collections monthly to the City. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, taxes of 3.724 mills were levied on property with assessed 
valuations totaling $88,109,420 and were dedicated to general purposes. 

Total taxes le\ded were $328,119. Taxes receivable at June 30,2020, consisted of the following: 

Taxes Receivable - Current Roll 
Taxes Receivable - Prior Years 

Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 

$ 12,534 
37,008 

49,542 

(39,469) 

$ 10,073 

(5) Receivables -
Receivables as of June 30,2020, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, 
are as follows: 

Less: Total -
Ad Valorem Franchise Unbilled Allowance for Net 

Interest Taxes Taxes Accounts Sales Uncollectibles Receivable 
Governmental Activities: 
General Fund S 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Total Govermnental Activities 
Business Tvpe-Activities: 
Utility Fund 

Component Units: 
City Court of Denham 

Springs - Ward II 
Marshal of City Court of 

Denham Springs - Ward II 
Denham Springs Economic 

Development District 

$49,542 $118,225 S 129,128 $ $ (39,469) S 257,426 

49.542 118,225 

Total Component Units 611 

129,128 

608,307 

95 

14,020 

5.791 

19.906 

405.489 

(39,469) 

(260,000) 

257,426 

753.796 

95 

14.020 

6.402 

20.517 

$ 611 $49,542 $118,225 $757,341 $405,489 $(299,469) $1,031,739 
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(6) Due From Other Governments -

Due from Other Governments as of June 30, 2020, consists of the following: 

Livingston 
Parish State of Livingston 

School Board Louisiana Parish FEMA Other Total 
Govemmental Activities: 
General Fund 
Motor Pool Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 

$1,229,180 $ 15,597 

2.773 

S 50,525 $ 242,544 S 26,092 
22 

$1,563,938 
22 

2.773 
Total Govemmental Activities 1,229,180 18,370 50,525 242,544 26,114 1,566,733 

Business-Tvne Activities: 
Utilit}.' Fund 829.646 15,417 845,063 
Sewer District #1 Fund _ - _ 158.120 9.923 168.043 

Total Business-Type Activities - - - 987,766 25,340 1,013,106 
Comnonent Units; 
Denham Springs Economic Development 

District 1.003.203 468,037 1.471,240 

Total Component Units 1,003,203 468,037 - - - 1,471,240 

$2,232,383 S 486,407 S 50,525 51,230,310 $ 51,454 $4,051,079 

(7) Interfund Receivables, Payables - Due (To) From Primary 
Government/Component Units - Transfers In, Transfers Out -

Receivable Fund Pavable Fund Due To Due From 

Business Type-Activities: 
Denham Springs Sewer 
District Number 1 Utility Fund $9,083,100 $ 

Utility Fund - 182,607 
Utility Fund Sewer District Number 1 - 9,083,100 

Sewer District Number 1 182,607 -

$ 9,265,707 $ 9,265,707 

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1) 
interfund goods and ser\dces are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are 
recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. The Denham 
Springs Sewer District Number 1 owes the Utility Fund $9,083,100 in accumulated project costs in 
connection with the construction of the District's infrastructure and for cost for services provided 
by the Utility Fund. The Utility Fund handles the billing and collection of amounts due from 
customers of Denham Springs Sewer District Number 1. The Utility Fund and the District share 
some common customers because the Utility fund provides those customers water services. The 
Utility Fund owes Denham Springs Sewer District Number 1 $ 182,607 for impact fees collected 
and billed and unbilled sales for the month of June 2020. These balances due to and from funds 
are expected to be repaid in the subsequent year. 
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Due (To)/From Due (To)/Trom 
Primary Component 

Government 
Primary Government: 

General Fund 
Component Units: 

Springs at Riverside Landing Economic 
Development District 

City Court of Denham Springs -
Ward II 

Marshall of City Court of Denham 
Springs - Ward II 

Total 

(35,775) 

(1,266) 

a4354) 

(51,395) 

Units 

51,395 

51,395 

(8) Changes in Capital Assets -

Primary government capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows: 

Govemmental Activities: 

Capital Assets not being Depreciated; 

Land and Right-of-Ways 

Construction in Progi'ess 

T otal Capital Assets not being 
Depreciated 

Capital Assets being Depreciated: 

Building and Improvements 

Infrastructure 

Equipment 

Total Capital Assets being 
Depreciated 

Balance 

June 30. 2019 

$ 1,314,460 

349,530 

1,663,990 

5,507,105 

7,259,714 

7,077,451 

19,844,270 

Additions 

. 467,261 

1,883,466 

2,350,727 

538,174 

848,516 

1,386,690 

Deletions 

(916,198) 

(916,198) 

(1,259,425) 

(574,911) 

(1,834,336) 

Balance 

June 30, 2020 

S 1,781,721 

1,316,798 

3,098,519 

4,785,854 

7,259,714 

7,351,056 

19,396,624 

(CONTINUED) 
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Balance Balance 

June 30. 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020 
Less: Accumulated Deprecktion for: 

Buildings and Improvements 3,698,957 108,280 (1,016,007) 2,791,230 

Infrastructure 4,079,669 293,287 - 4,372,956 

Equ^ment 4,315,341 515,612 (573,055) 4,257,898 

T otal Accumulated 

Depreciation 12,093,967 917,179 (1,589,062) 11,422,084 

T otal Capital Assets being 
Depreciated, Net 7.750.303 469,511 (245,274) 7,974,540 

T otal Governmental Activities 
Capital Assets, Net $ 9,414,293 $ 2,820,238 8(1,161,472) 8 11,073,059 

Baknce Baknce 

June 30, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020 

Business-Tvoe Activities: 

Capital Assets not being Depreciated: 

Land and Right-of-Ways $ 4,285,343 $ 8 8 4,285,343 

Construction in Progress 256,240 1,386,799 - 1,643.039 

T otal Capital Assets not being 
Depreciated 4,541,583 1,386,799 - 5,928,382 

Capital Assets being Depreciated: 

Building and Improvements 583,297 8,300 - 591,597 
Gas System 5,457,717 100,352 - 5,558,069 

Water System 17,505,276 39,535 - 17,544,811 
Sewer System 57,249,582 - - 57,249,582 

Equipment 2,785,870 554,804 (211,991) 3,128,683 

Total Capital Assets being 
Depreckted 83,581,742 702,991 (211,991) 84,072,742 

(CONTINUED) 
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Balance 

June 30, 2019 Additions Deletions 

Balance 

June 30, 202( 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Building and Improvements 320,690 12,054 - 332,744 

Gas System 3,897,527 110,641 - 4,008,168 

Water System 9,443,607 396,860 - 9,840,467 

Sewer System 16,858,049 1,449,051 - 18,307,100 

Equipment 2,348,810 147,754 (211,991) 2,284.573 

Total Accumulated 

Depreciation 32,868,683 2,116,360 (211,991) 34,773,052 

Total Capital Assets being 

Depreckted, Net 50,713,059 (1,413,369) - 49,299,690 

Total Business-Type Activities 

Capital Assets, Net $ 55,254,642 $ (26,570) S S 55,228,072 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

80,133 
440,286 
339,907 
53,187 

913,513 

3,666 

Business-Tvpe Activities: 

Water 
Gas 
Sewer 
Sanitation 

Total Depreciation Expense 
Business-Type Activities 

445,175 
145,558 

1,523,693 
1,934 

2,116,360 

General Government $ 
Public Safet}'' 
Highways and Streets 
Parks and Recreation 

Capital Assets Held by Internal 
Service Funds are Charged to the 
Various Functions Based on their 
Usage of the Assets 

Total Depreciation Expense -
Governmental Activities $ 

Commitments 

Govemmeyital Activities: 

The City has seven active construction projects as of June 30,2020 in the governmental activities. The 
projects include the New Cit}-' Hall Renovations Project, Animal Shelter Rebuild and Repair Project, 
Pavilion Construction at Old City Hall Project, J Turn Project, Benton Lane Overlay Project, Hatchell 
Lane Sidewalks Projects, and the Caselle Module Upgrades Project. The New City Hall Renovations 
Project, Animal Shelter Rebuild and Repair Project, Pavilion Construction at Old City Hall Project, 
Benton Lane Overlay Project, and Caselle Module Upgrades Project are the City owued projects. The 
other two projects are State of Louisiana owned. 

917,179 
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The following schedule represents commitments in the governmental funds at June 30, 2020: 

Remainina 
Project 

New City Hall Renovations Project 
Animal Shelter Rebuild and Repair Project 
Pavilion Construction at Old City Hall Project 
Benton Lane Overlay Project 
Caselle Module Upgrades Project 

Business-Type Activities: 

Spent-to-Date 

$ 1,088,128 
44,190 
22,040 
143,485 
18.955 

S 1.316.798 

Commitment 

$ 588,835 
25,370 
22,776 
84.035 

S 721.016 

The City has four active construction projects as of June 30, 2020 in the business-type activities. The 
projects include the Rushing Road Water Well Project, Other Water Wells Project (excluding Rushing 
Road Water Well Project), Denham Springs Sewerage District Number 1 Lift/Pump Stations Project, 
and Caselle Module Upgrades. These four projects are owned by the City. 

The following schedule represents commitments in the proprietary funds at June 30, 2020: 
Remainina 

Project 

Rushing Road Water Well Project 
Other Water Wells Project 
Sewer Lift/Pump Stations Projects 
Caselle Module Upgrades Project 

Spent-to-Date 

$ 520,810 
121,136 
998,798 

2.295 

$ 1.643.039 

Commitment 

$ 13,554 
51,534 

1,024,402 

1.089.490 
Component Units 

A summary of changes in capital assets for component units is as follows; 

Citv Court of Denham Springs - Ward II: 

Balance Balance 

Govemmental Activities: 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 

Fumiture and Fixtures 

Software 

Computer Equipment 
Total 

Less: Accumulated 

Depreciation 

Capital Assets, Net 

June 30, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020 

S 14,916 S S 14,916 

70,300 2,900 - 73,200 

60,856 - - 60.856 

146,072 2,900 - 148,972 

45,140 28.377 73.517 

S 100,932 S (25,477) $ - S 75,455 
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Marshal of Citv Court of Denham Springs - Ward II; 

Balance 

June 30. 2019 Additions Deletions 

Balance 

June 30. 2020 

Governmental Activities; 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 

Oftice Equipment 

Machinery and Equipment 

Vehicles 

S 9,673 S 

23,654 

220,876 

S 

(14,950) 

$ 9,673 

23,654 

205,926 

Total 254,203 (14,950) 239,253 

Less: Accumulated 

Depreciation 167,672 27,393 (14,950) 180,115 

Capital Assets, Net $ 86,531 S (27,393) S $ 59,138 

Denham Springs Economic Development District: 

Balance 

June 30, 2019 Additions Deletions 

Balance 

June 30, 2020 

Govemmental Activities: 

Capital Assets not being Depreciated: 

Land $ 7,303,750 $ S S 7,303,750 

Total Capital Assets not being 
Depreciated 7,303,750 . 7,303,750 

Capital Assets being Depreciated; 

Buildings and Improvements 

Roads 

Utilities 

26,205,237 

6,566,631 

2,063,484 

- 26,205,237 

6,566,631 

2,063,484 

Total Capital Assets being 
Depreciated 34,835,352 34,835,352 
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Balance Balance 

June 30, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for: 
Buildings and Improvements 7,452,114 655,130 8,107,244 

Roads 3,620,933 328,332 3,949,265 

Utilities 1,173,605 103.174 1,276,779 
T otal Accumulated 

Depreciation 12,246,652 1,086,636 13,333,288 

T otal Capital Assets being 
Depreciated, Net 22,588,700 (1,086,636) 21,502,064 

T otal Govermiiental Activities 
Capital Assets, Net $ 29,892,450 $(1,086,636) $ S 28,805,814 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the component unit government as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II $ 28,377 
Marshal of City Court of Denham Springs -

Ward II 27,393 
Denham Springs Economic Development 

District 1.086.636 

$1,142,406 

(9) Long-Term Liabilities -

Primary Government -

Revenue Bonds 

Utility Enterprise Fund: The City issues bonds where it pledges income derived from the acquired 
or constructed assets to pay debt services. On December 1,2006, the City issued $23,765,000 of 
revenue bonds. On May 28,2008, the City also issued an additional $9,100,000 of revenue bonds. 
These bonds were issued to finance the funding of the upgrade of the City owned sewer treatment 
plant, the funding of the expansion of the City water distribution system to unincorporated areas of 
the City, the funding of renovations and rehabilitations of City sewer manholes, the funding of the 
reclamation of the City's sewer lagoons, the funding of a water and sewer department building, the 
Rinding of any other repairs and/or expansions needed to maintain the City's water distribution 
system, and any costs incidental to the issuance of these bonds. 
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Prior Years Advance Refundings 

On November 19,2014, the City issued $9,145,000 Series 2014 Revenue Refunding Bonds for the 
purpose of refunding S8,355,000 of the outstanding balance of the Series 2006 Utility Revenue 
Bonds and interest and redemption premium associated with the Series 2006 Bonds. The net 
proceeds of $9,045,844 (afterpayment of $303,075 in cost of issuance) plus an additional $156,727 
of the sinking fund monies were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities 
were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service 
payments on the 2006 Series bonds. This advance refunding was undertaken to decrease total debt 
service payments over the next 18 years by $620,626 and resulted in an economic gain of 
$497,760. 

On May 6, 2015, the City issued $9,440,000 Series 2015 Revenue Refunding Bonds for the 
purpose of refunding $9,145,000 of the outstanding balance of the Series 2006 Utility Revenue 
Bonds and interest and redemption premium associated with the Series 2006 Bonds. The net 
proceeds of $9,715,796 (afterpayment of $268,019 in cost of issuance) plus an additional $167,146 
of the sinking fund monies were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities 
were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service 
payments on the 2006 Series bonds. This advance refunding was undertaken to decrease total debt 
servdce payments over the next 22 years by $720,778 and resulted in an economic gain of 
$542,161. 

The advance refunding of the Series 2006 bonds resulted in a difference between the reacquisition 
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $1,322,115, $710,452 on the Series 2014 
bonds and $611,663 on the Series 2015 bonds, which was deferred and is being amortized over the 
life of the new bonds. The difference is reported in the accompanying financial statements as a 
deferred outflow of resources and is being charged to operations as a component of interest 
expense. At June 30, 2020, the unamortized balance is $1,238,744. 

On January 7, 2016, the City issued $7,885,000 Series 2016 Revenue Refunding Bonds for the 
purpose of refunding $7,155,000 of the outstanding balance of the Series 2008 Utility Revenue 
Bonds and interest associated with the Series 2008 Bonds. The net proceeds of $7,905,819 (after 
payment of $233,995 in cost of issuance) plus an additional $27,976 of the sinking fund monies 
were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 2008 
Series bonds. This advance refunding was undertaken to decrease total debt serwice paj-ments over 
the next 22 years by $358,968 and resulted in an economic gain of $251,258. 

The advance reflmding of the Series 2008 bonds resulted in a difference between the reacquisition 
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $940,387, whieh was deferred and is being 
amortized over the life of the new bonds. The difference is reported in the accompanying financial 
statements as a deferred outflow of resources and is being charged to operations as a component of 
interest expense. At June 30, 2020, the unamortized balance is $885,526. As a result of the 
issuance of the Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2016, $7,155,000 of the 2008 Series Bonds were 
eonsidered in-substance defeased and the liability for those bonds was removed from the City's 
books. The 2008 Series Bonds were paid off during fiscal year 2019. 
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On July 28, 2016, the Cit}^ issued $25,930,000 Series 2016 Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds for 
the purpose of refunding $1,225,000 of the City's 2006 Utility Revenue Bonds - Sewer Projeet, 
maturing Deeember 1,2017 toDeeember 1,2018, and$21,425,000 oftheDenham Springs Sewer 
District No. Us outstanding Series 2009 Revenue Bonds, dated November 19, 2009, maturing 
December 1, 2020 to December 1, 2039. The net proceeds of $25,591,997 (after payment of 
$529,015 in cost of issuance) plus an additional $ 191,011 of the sinking fund monies were used to 
purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with 
an escrow agent to provide for all future debt seiwice payments on the 2006 and 2009 Series bonds. 
This advance refunding was undertaken to decrease total debt service payments over the next 23 
years by $1,339,506 and resulted in an economic gain of $873,179. The principal repayment on 
the Series 2016 Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds are in varying amounts due on December 1 each 
year from 2016 through 2040 and bear an interest rate of 3.39%. The Bonds are secured by and 
payable from utility revenues. 

The advance refunding of the Series 2006 and 2009 bonds resulted in a difference between the 
reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $3,252,171, which was deferred 
and is being amortized over the life of the new bonds. The difference is reported in the 
accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow of resources and is being charged to 
operations as a component of interest expense. At June 30, 2020, the unamortized balance is 
$3,010,127. As a result of the issuance of the Sewer Revenue Reflmding Bonds Series 2016, 
$1,255,000 ofthe 2006 Series Bonds and $21,425,000 ofthe 2009 Series Bonds were considered 
in-substance defeased and the liability for those bonds was removed from the City's books. The 
2009 Series bonds were paid off during fiscal year 2020. The 2006 Series Bonds were paid off 
during fiscal year 2017. 

Denham Springs Sewer District Number 1: On November 1, 2009, the Louisiana Local 
Government En\dronmental Facilities and Community Development Authority issued $23,750,000 
in revenue bonds on behalf of the Denham Springs Sewer District Number 1. These bonds were 
issued for the purpose of (1) financing the cost of acquiring, constructing, extending and improving 
the sewerage infrastructure within the District and (2) paying capitalized interest on the bonds for a 
period of eighteen months, and (3) paying the cost of issuance ofthe bonds. $21,425,000 of these 
bonds were refunded during the 2017 fiscal year through the issuance of the Series 2016 Sewer 
Revenue Refunding Bonds. 
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The revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2020, are as follows: 

Original Interest Final Balance 
Description/Purpose Issue Amount Rate Maturity June 30., 2020 

Business-Type Activities: 

Utility Enterprise Fund; 
2014 Utility Revenue 
Refunding Bonds $ 9,145,000 1.00 to 4.88% 12-01-2031 $ 8,835,000 

2015 Utility Revenue 
Reftinding Bonds $ 9,440,000 2.00 to 4.00% 12-01-2036 8,525,000 

2016 Utility Revenue 
Refunding Bonds $ 7,885,000 1.20 to 4.00% 12-01-2038 7,425,000 

2016 Sewer Revenue 
Refunding Bonds $ 1,433,929 3.39% 12-01-2039 1,326,401 

Denham Springs Sewer 
District Number 1: 

2016 Sewer Revenue 
Refunding Bonds $24,496,071 3.39% 12-01-2039 22,673,599 

Total Revenue Bonds $48,785,000 
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Revenue bond debt sendee requirements to maturity, including interest requirements, are as 
follows: 

Year Ending 
Jime 30, Principal Interest Total 

2021 $ 1,785,000 $ 1,620,460 $ 3,405,460 
2022 1,835,001 1,574,194 3,409,195 
2023 1,885,001 1,523,663 3,408,664 
2024 1,930,000 1,468,991 3,398,991 
2025 1,995,000 1,407,055 3,402,055 

2026-2030 10,975,000 6,905,782 17,880,782 
2031-2035 12,910,000 3,943,830 16,853,830 

2036-2040 15,469,998 1,375,426 16,845,424 

Total Revenue Bon^ $48,785,000 $ 19,819,401 $68,604,401 

The 2014 Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds requires the following funds to be maintained: 

A debt service fund designed to achieve proper mailing of principal and interest payments as due on 
the Revenue Bond. 

The City is required to pay monthly one-sixth (1/6) of the interest due on the next interest payment 
date due on the bonds into an interest account of the Debt Service Fund. In addition, the City is 
required to pay monthly one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal due on the next principal payment date 
due on the bonds into a principal account of the Debt Service Fund. At June 30, 2020, the Debt 
Service Fund requirements for the interest and principal accounts were fully funded with an actual 
balance of $61,070. 

The 2015 Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds requires the following funds to be maintained: 

A debt service fund designed to achieve proper mailing of principal and interest payments as due on 
the Revenue Bond. 

The City is required to pay monthly one-sixth (1/6) of the interest due on the next interest payment 
date due on the bonds into an interest account of the Debt Service Fund. In addition, the City is 
required to pay monthly one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal due on the next principal payment date 
due on the bonds into a principal account of the Debt Service Fund. At June 30, 2020, the Debt 
Service Fund requirements for the interest and principal accounts were fully funded with an actual 
balance of $453,979. 

The 2016 Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds requires the following funds to be maintained: 

A debt service fund designed to achieve proper mailing of principal and interest payments as due on 
the Revenue Bond. 
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The City is required to pay monthly one-sixth (1/6) of the interest due on the next interest payment 
date due on the bonds into an interest account of the Debt Service Fund. In addition, the City is 
required to pay monthly one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal due on the next principal payment date 
due on the bonds into a principal account of the Debt Ser\dce Fund. At June 30, 2020, the Debt 
Service Fund requirements for the interest and principal accounts were fully funded with an actual 
balance of $210,515. 

The 2016 Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds requires the following funds to be maintained: 

A debt service fiind designed to achieve proper mailing of principal and interest payments as due on 
the Revenue Bonds. 

The City is required to pay monthly one-sixth (1/6) of the interest due on the next interest payment 
date due on the bonds into an interest account of the Debt Service Fund. In addition, the City is 
required to pay monthly one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal due on the next principal payment date 
due on the bonds into a principal account of the Debt Service Fund. At June 30, 2020, the Debt 
Service Fund requirements for the interest and principal accounts were fully funded with an actual 
balance of $468,470. 

For fiscal year end 2019, the City met the bond covenant that requires the Utility Enterprise Fund 
net revenues combined with the Denham Springs Sewer District Number 1 net revenues in each 
fiscal year equal to a least one hundred twenty-five percent of the required deposits to the debt 
service funds. 

Loan Commitment 

On June 13,2017, a Community Disaster Loan (CDL) application was approved for the City. The 
City was approved for a loan amount up to $4,913,474 with an interest rate of 1.75%. The loan 
would mature June 12, 2022 unless the tenns of the note is extended by the federal govemment. At 
June 30,2020, the balance on the note is $-0- as the City had not made any draws on the loan. The 
intent of the loan is to replace lost operating revenues due to the significant natural disaster. The 
August 2016 flooding event and subsequent damages to the surround areas enabled the City to 
qualify for the loan and management initially applied for the loan because of the uncertainty of the 
effects of the fioodine event on its revenue sources. 
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities. Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30,2020 is 
as follows: 

Balance Balance Due Within 

June 30,2019 Additions Reductions June 30,2020 One Year 

Governmental Activities: 

Compensated Absences S 898,283 $ 724,710 S 746,784 S 876,209 $ 219,052 

Net Pension Liability 9,529,181 558,928 - 10,088,109 -

Governmental Activities 

Long-T erm Liabilities $10,427,464 $ 1,283,638 S 746,784 810,964,318 S 219,052 

Business-Type Actmties: 

Revenue Bonds; 

2014 Utility Revenue 

Refanding Bond S 8,900,000 $ S 65,000 S 8,835,000 $ 65,000 

2015 Utility Revenue 

Refunding Bond 9,245,000 - 720,000 8,525,000 735,000 
2016 Utilhy Revenue 

Refunding Bond 7,710,000 - 285,000 7,425,000 285,000 

2009 Denliam Springs Sewer 

District No. 1 Project 500,000 - 500,000 - -

2016 Sewer Revenue 

Refunding Bond 24,170,000 - 170,000 24,000,000 700,000 

Adjust for Deferred Amount; 

For Issuance Premiums 952,741 - 54,936 897,805 55,973 

For Issuance Discounts (186) - (186) - -

Total Bond Payable 51,477,555 - 1,794,750 49,682,805 1,840,973 

Compensated Absences 227,864 195,027 170,124 252,767 63,191 
Net Pension Liability 1,866,703 19,092 - 1,885,795 -

Business-T ype Actiyities 

Long-Term Liabilities $53,572,122 $ 214,119 $ 1,964,874 851,821,367 $1,904,164 

The internal ser\dce fund serves predominantly the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term 
liabilities for them are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At year-
end $23,950 of compensated absences for the internal service fund is included in the above 
amounts. Also, for the governmental activities compensated absences are generally liquidated by 
the General Fund and the Motor Pool Internal Service Fund. 

See Note 11 for details on the Net Pension Liability. 
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Component Units -
Denham Springs Economic Development District: 

The following is a summary of the changes in general long-term debt of the Denham 
Springs Economic Development District for the year ended June 30, 2020: 

Due 
Balance Within 

June 30,2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 One Year 
Governmental Activities: 

2011A Series $ 15,815.000 $ $5,485,000 $ 10,330.000 $2,430,000 

Long-Temi Liabilities $ 15,815,000 $ - $ 5,485,000 $ 10,330,000 $2,430,000 

The District issued 2007A, 2007B and the 2007C Series bonds on March 1, 2007 with a 
maturity date of January 1, 2037. 2008 Series bond were issued on May 27, 2008 with a 
maturity date of January 1, 2037. 

These bonds were issued for the purchase of 24 acres within the 75 acre District and for the 
construction of the "Bass Pro Shops" project and infrastructure. The bonds will be paid 
from the dedicated portion of the sale tax revenues generated from the District. Additional 
collateral for these bonds is limited to the "Bass Pro Shop" development and the City of 
Denham Springs has no liability for these bonds. 

On July 16, 2009, the 2007 Series B Bonds and the 2008 Series Bonds were converted 
from taxable variable rate sales tax increment revenue bonds to non-taxable variable rate 
sales tax increment revenue bonds. In addition, the 2007 Series C Bonds were converted 
from taxable fixed rate subordinate sales tax increment bonds to non-taxable fixed rate 
subordinate sales tax increment bonds. The conversion was done in an effort to reduce 
future interest payments. 

On December 22, 2011, the District issued $30,000,000 Series 201 lA and issued 
$16,200,000 Series 201 IB Sales Tax Increment Refunding Bonds for the purpose of 
advance refunding the outstanding balance of the Series 2007 and 2008 bonds and to 
amend and restate the trust indenture including changes to the interest rate, letter of credit, 
and remarketing requirements. This advance refunding was undertaken to decrease total debt 
servdce payments over the next 25 years by $6,346,526 and resulted in an economic gain of 
$6,560,010. The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price 
and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $896,168, which was deferred and is being 
amortized over the life of the new bonds. The difference is reported in the accompanying 
financial statements as a deferred outflow of resources and is being charged to operations as a 
component of interest expense. At June 30, 2020, the unamortized balance is $304,697. 
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In accordance with the initial Trust Indenture on the Series 2011A and Series 201 IB Bonds, 
the District entered into the First Supplemental Trust Indenture dated November 1, 2016 for 
the purpose of extending the Initial Bank Rate on the outstanding bonds. The interest bank 
rate with respect to the Series 2011A Bonds was defined as 3.09% through December 31, 
2016, and 2.88% effective January 1, 2017 through the Initial Bank Rate Period which is the 
period from November 30, 2016 until the earliest to occur of the conversion of the Series 
2011A Bonds to a fixed rate or a weekly rate, or January 1,2023. Also in accordance with the 
First Supplemental Trust Indenture after December 31,2017, the District shall be required to 
redeem the Series 2011A bonds from excess revenues in the excess revenue account at least 
twice each calendar year. The interest bank rate with respect to the Series 201 IB Bonds was 
not changed as a result of the First Supplemental Trust Indenture. The Series 201 IB Bonds 
were redeemed in full as of April 30, 2017. 

At June 30, 2020, long-term debt consists of the following Sales Tax Increment Revenue 
Bonds dated December 1, 2011 for the 2011A Series; 

Series 2011A Sales Tax Increment 
Revenue Refunding Bonds with Interest 
Bank Rate of 2.88% through the Initial 
Bank Rate Period; Convertible to Fixed 
Rate or Weekly Rate on January 1, 2023 
with Final Maturity January 1, 2037 $ 10,330,000 

The annual requirements to amortize the bonds outstanding using estimated current 
interest rates of 2.88% for the Series 201 lA is shown in the followine schedule. 

Year Ending 

Jime 30, 

2011 Series A Year Ending 

Jime 30, Principal Interest Total 

2021 $ 2,430,000 $ 263,880 $ 2,693,880 

2022 975,000 220,500 1,195,500 

2023 1,025,000 192,060 1,217,060 

2024 1,075,000 162,180 1,237,180 

2025 1,130,000 130,824 1,260,824 

2026-2030 3,695,000 188.532 3,883,532 

Total $10,330,000 $ 1,157,976 $11,487,976 

Bond Reserve Fund covenant requires the maintenance of a separately identifiable account designated 
as the "Debt Service Reserve Fund" in wEich $2,000,000 is to be maintained. At June 30, 2020, the 
District maintained a balance of $2,082,529 which was $82,529 more than the bond deposit 
requirements at year end. Bond covenants require that the monies in the Debt Service Reserve Fund be 
retained solely for the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the Bonds payable as to which 
there would otherwise be default. 
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Marshal of City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II: 

The following is a summary of the changes in general long-term debt of the Marshal of City 
Court of Denham Springs - Ward II for the year ended June 30, 2020; 

Due 
Balance Within 

June 30, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 One Year 
Governmental Activities: 

Capital Leases $ 6,663 $ - $ 4,219 $ 2,444 $ 1,381 

Capital Lease Pavable. 

The Marshal entered into another capital lease agreement on January 31, 2017 for linancing 
the purchase of a copier. The lease requires monthly payments of principal and interest of 
$120 for sixty months with a final payment due March 1, 2022. At June 30, 2020, the book 
value (net of depreciation) of the copier was $784. 

The capital leases payable at June 30, 2020, are as follows: 

Original 
Lease Interest Final Balance 

Description/Purpose Amount Rate Maturitv June 30.2020 
Capital lease to finance 

the purchase of a copier $ 6,666 2.90% 03/01/22 $ 2,444 

Capital lease payments to maturity including interest requirements are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest Total 

2021 $ 1,381 $ 53 $ 1,434 
2022 1.063 15 1.078 

Total $ 2.444 $ 68 $ 2,512 

(10) Customers' Deposits -

Meter deposits are paid by customers upon application for utility ser\4ces and are returnable to 
them upon termination of service. Receipts from meter deposits are deposited in the Utility 
Operating Fund and refunds of deposits on tennination of service are made from the same 
account. 

The City has a certificate of deposit and a demand deposit account which is designated 
specifically for Customers' Deposits. At June 30, 2020, customers' deposits amounted to 
$1,236,809 and the balances of the certificate of deposit and the demand deposit account for 
Customers' Deposits amounted to $1,250,308 and are included as Restricted Assets on the 
Statement of Net Position. 
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(11) Pension Plans-

The City follows the requirements of GASB Statement 68. Accoimtmg and Financial Reporting 
for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement 71, Pension 
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, an amendment to 
GASB 68. These standards revise and establish new financial reporting requirements for 
governments that provide their employees with pension benefits. These standards require the City 
to record its proportionate share of each of the pension plans net pension liability and report the 
following disclosures; 

General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan Descriptions: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 

All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week, not covered by another pension 
plan, under age 60 at date of employment, and are paid wholly or in part from City funds are 
eligible to participate in the Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) - Plan "B". The 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana is the administrator of a cost- sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The MERS was originally established by Act 
356 of the 1954 regular session of the Legislature of the State of Louisiana. MERS issues a 
publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.mersla.com. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) is the administrator of a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. Membership in MPERS is mandatory for 
any full-time police officer employed by a municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in 
law enforcement, empowered to make arreste, providing he or she does not have to pay social 
security and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. Benefit provisions are authorized 
within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211- 11:2233. MPERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that can be obtained at www.lampers.org. 

Firefighters' Retirement System 

The Firefighters' Retirement System (FRS) is the achninistrator of a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan. Membership in FRS is a condition of employment for 
any full-time firefighters who earn more than $375 per month and are employed by any 
municipality, parish, or fire protection district of the State of Louisiana in addition to 
employees of the FRS. Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 434 of 1979 and 
amended by LRS 11:2251- 11:2272. Any person who becomes an employee as defined in RS 
11:2252 on and after January 1, 1980 shall become a member as a condition of employment. 
FRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at 
www. lafirefightersret.com. 
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Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 

The judge of the City Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two (component unit) is a member of 
the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS). The City pays a portion of his 
salaiy and related benefits. LASERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan 
administered by the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS). Section 401 of 
Title 11 ofthe Louisiana Revised Statutes (La. R.S. 11:401) grants to LASERS Board of Trustees 
and the Louisiana Legislature the authority to review administration, benefit terms, investments, 
and funding of the plan. LASERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be 
obtained at www.lasersonline.org. 

Benefits Provided: 

The following is a description of the plans and their benefits and is provided for general 
infonnation purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more 
complete information. 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 

1. Retirement 

Any member of Plan B who was hired before January 1, 2013 can retire providing the 
member meets one of the following criteria: 

1. Any age with thirty (30) years of creditable serv ice. 
2. Age 60 with a minimum often (10) or more years of creditable service. 
3. Any age with ten (10) years of creditable servdce eligible for disability benefits. 
4. Survivor's benefits require five (5) years creditable service at death of member. 

Eligibility for Retirement for Plan B members hired on or after January 1,2013 is asfollows; 

1. Age 67 with seven (7) or more years of creditable service. 
2. Age 62 with ten (10) or more years of creditable service. 
3. Age 55 with thirty (30) or more years of creditable service. 
4. Any age with twenty five (25) years of creditable service, exclusive of military service and 

unused sick leave. However, any member retiring under this subsection shall have their 
benefit actuarially reduced from the earliest age of which fire member would be entitled to 
a vested defeixed benefit under any provision of this section, if the member had continued 
in service to that age. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan B shall 
consist of an amount equal to two percent of fire member's monfiily average final 
compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service. However, under certain 
conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts. 
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2. Survivor Benefits 

Upon death of any member of Plan B with five (5) or more years of crediteble service, not 
eligible for normal retirement, tiie plan provides for benefits for the surviving spouse as 
outlined in the statutes. 

Any member of Plan B who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death and who leaves 
a surviving spouse will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf 
of the suiviving spouse on the date of death. Such benefits will begin only upon proper 
application and are paid in lieu of any other survivor benefits. 

3. DROP Benefits 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any member 
of Plan B who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option 
plan (DROP) for up to three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation 
in the plan, employer contributions are payable but employee contributions cease. The 
monthly retirement benefits that would be payable, had the person elected to cease 
employment and receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP Fund. 
Interest is earned when the member has completed DROP participation. Interest earnings 
are based upon the actual rate of return on the investments identified as DROP flmds for 
the period. In addition, no cost-of-living increases are payable to participants until 
employment which made them eligible to become members of die System has been 
terminated for at least one full year. 

Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, 
a participant in the DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from tiie account equal 
to the paymente into the account, a true annuity based upon his account balance in diat fund, 
or any other method of payment if approved by the board of trustees. If a participant dies 
during participation in the DROP, a lump sum equal to the balance in his account shall be 
paid to his named beneficiary or, if none, to his estate. If employment is not terminated at the 
end of die three years, payments into the DROP fund cease and the person resumes active 
contributing memberehip in the System. 

4. Disability Benefits 

For Plan B, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he has at 
least ten years of creditable service in which he would receive a regular retirement under 
retirement provisions. A member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if 
he has at least ten years of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement, and has 
been officially certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement 
caused by disability, a member of Plan B shall be paid a disability benefit equal to the 
lesser of thirty percent of his final average compensation or two percent of his final average 
compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service, whichever is greater; or an 
amount equal to two percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied by 
his years of creditable service, project©! to his earliest normal retirement age. 
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5. Cost of Living Increases 

MERS is autiiorized under state law to grant a cost of living increase to members who have 
been retired for at least one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original 
benefit for each full calendar year since retirement and may only be granted if sufficient 
funds are available from investment income in excess of nomial requiremente. State law 
allows MERS to grant an additional cost of li\dng increase to all retirees and beneficiaries 
who are age sixty-five and above equal to 2% of the benefit being received on October 1, 
1977, or the original benefit, if retirement commenced after that date. 

6. Deferred Benefits 

Plan B provides for deferred benefits for members who terminate before being eligible for 
retirement. Once the member reaches the appropriate age for retirement, benefite become 
payable. Benefits are based on statutes in effect at time of wididrawal. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

1. Retirement, Survivor Benefits, and Disability Benefits 

Memberehip Prior to January E 2013 

A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of MPERS and has 
25 years of creditable service at any age or has 20 years of creditable service and is age 50 or 
has 12 years creditable service and is age 55. A member is eligible for early retirement after 
he has been a member of the System for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an 
actuarially reduced benefit. 

Benefit rates are tiiree and one-ftiird percent of average final compensation (average monthly 
earnings during the highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was 
interrupted) per number of yeare of creditable ser\dce not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the deafti of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, tlie plan proUdes for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the 
benefits range from forty to sixty percent of the member's average final compensation 
for the survdving spouse. In addition, each child under age eighteen receives benefits 
equal to ten percent of ftie member's average final compensation or $200 per month, 
whichever is greater. 

Membership Commencing January E 2013 

Member eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, disability and survivor benefits are 
based on Hazardous Duty andNon Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub 
plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of MPERS 
and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 
5 5. Under the Non Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after 
he has been a member of the System and has 30 years of creditable seivice at any age, 25 
years of creditable service at age 55, or 10 years of creditable service at age 60. Under both 
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sub plans, a member is eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of the 
System for 20 years of creditable seiTice at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from 
age 55. 

Under the Hazardous and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are three percent 
and two and a half percent, r^pectively, of average final compensation (average monthly 
earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service was 
interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the 
benefits range fi^om twenty-five to fifty-five percent of the member's average final 
compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, each child under age eighteen receives 
ten percent of average final compensation or $200 per month whichever is greater. If 
deceased member had less than ten years of service, beneficiary will receive a refund of 
employee contributions only. 

2. Cost of Living Adjustments 

The Board of Trustees is autliOTizedto provide annual cost-of-living adjiKtments computed on 
the amount of the current regular retirement, disability, beneficiary or survivor's benefit, 
not to exceed 3% in any given year. The Board is authorized to provide an additional 
2% COLA, computed on the member's original benefit, to all regular retirees, disability, 
survivors and beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or older on the cut-off date which 
determines eligibility. 

No regular retiree, survivor or beneficiaiy shall be eligible to receive a cost-of-living 
adjustment until benefits have been received at least one full fiscal year and the payment of 
such COLA, when authorized, shall not be effective until the lapse of at least one-half of the 
fiscal year. 

Members who elect early retirement are not eligible for a cost of living adjustment until they 
reach regular retirement age. 

3. DROP Benefits 

A member is eligible to elect to enter the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) when he is 
eligible for regular retirement based on the members' sub plan participation. Upon filing 
the application for the program, the employee's active membership in MPERS is terminated 
At the entry date into the DROP, the employee and employer contributions cease. The 
amount to be deposited into the DROP account is equal to the benefit computed under die 
retirement plan elected by the participant at date of application. The duration of 
participation in the DROP is thirty six months or less. If employment is terminated after the 
diree-year period die participant may receive his benefits by lump sum payment or a ttvie 
annuit}''. If employment is not terminated, active contributing membership into MPERS 
shall resume and upon later tennination, he shall receive additional retirement benefit based 
on the additional service. For those eligible to enter DROP prior to January 1, 2004, DROP 
accounts shall earn interest subsequent to the termination of DROP participation at a rate 
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of half of one percentage point below the percentage rate of return of MPERS's 
investment portfolio as certified by the actuary on an annual basis but will never lose 
money. For those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to January 1, 2004, an irrevocable 
election is made to earn interest based on theMPERS's investment portfolio return or 
a money market investment return. This could result in a negative earnings rate being 
applied to the account. 

If the member elects a money market investment return, the funds are transferred to a 
government money market account. 

4. Initial Benefit Option Plan 

In 1999, the State Legislature authorized MPERS to establish an Initial Benefit Option 
program. Initial Benefit Option is available to members who are eligible for regular retirement 
and have not participated in DROP. The Initial Benefit Option program provides both a one­
time single sum payment of up to 36 months of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a 
reduced monthly retirement benefit for life. Interest is computed on the balance based on 
same criteria as DROP. 

Firefighters' Retirement System 

1. Retirement 
Employees with 20 or more years of service who have attained age 50, or employees who 
have 12 years of service who have attained age 55, or 25 years of service at any age are 
entitled to annual pension benefits equal to 3 1/3% of their average final compensation based 
on the 36 consecutive months of highest pay multiplied by their total years of service, not to 
exceed 100%. Employees may elect to receive their pension benefits in the form of a joint and 
survivor annuity. 

If employees terminate before rendering 12 years of service, they forfeit the right to receive 
the portion of their accumulated plan benefits attributable to their employer's contributions. 
Benefits are payable over the employees' lives in fiie form of a monthly annuity. An employee 
may elect an unreduced benefit or any of seven options at retirement. The options are as 
follows: 

1. At death, their beneficiary will receive a lump sum payment based on the present value 
of the employee's annuity account balance. 

2. At death, their beneficiary will receive a life annuity equal to the employee's 
reduced retirement allowance. 

3. At death, their beneficiary will receive a life annuity equal to 1/2 of the employee's 
reduced retirement allowance. 

4. Any other benefit certified by the actuary and approved by the Board of Trustees that 
will be equivalent in value to the employee's retirement allowance limited to a spouse 
and/or minor children. 
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5. The member can select a reduced option 2 benefit. However, if the beneficiary 
predeceases the retiree, the benefit will convert to the maximum. This option is limited 
to a spouse and/or minor children or handicapped children. 

6. The member can select a reduced option 3 benefit. However, if the beneficiary 
predeceases the retbee, the benefit will convert to the maximum. This option is limited 
to a spouse and/or minor children. 

7. The member can select to receive a guaranteed 2 1/2% COLA every year beginning 
when the member reaches age 55. In exchange for this COLA, the member takes an 
actuarially reduced benefit upon retirement. 

2. Death Benefits 

If an active employee dies and is not eligible for retirement, bis survivors shall be paid; 

1. If the employee is not eligible to retire and dies in the line of duty, their spouse will 
receive monthly, an annual benefit equal to 2/3 of the employee's average final 
compensation. If death is not in the line of duty, the spouse will receive monthly, an 
armual benefit equal to 3.0% of the member's average final compensation multiplied 
by bis total years of service; however, the benefit shall not be less than 40.0%, or 
more than 60.0% of the employee's average final compensation. 

2. Children of deceased employees will receive the greater of $200 or 10.0% of the 
member's final average compensation per month until reaching the age of 18 or until 
the age of 22, if enrolled firll time in an institution of higher education. The surviving 
totally physically handicapped or mentally retarded child of a deceased employee, 
regardless of age, shall receive the benefits as long as they are dependent on the 
surviving spouse. 

3. If an employee, who is eligible to retire, dies before retiring, the designated 
beneficiary shall be paid under option 2, survivor benefit equal to member's benefit. 

3. Disability Benefits 

If an eligible member is officially certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board, 
be shall receive the greater retirement, if eligible for disability benefits as follows: 

1. Any member totally disabled from injury received in the line of duty, shall be paid, on 
a monthly basis, an annual pension of 60.0% of the average final compensation being 
received at the time of the disability. 

2. Any member of FRS who has become disabled or incapacitated because of continued 
illness or as a result of any injury received, even though not in the line of duty, and 
who has 5 years of creditable service, but is not eligible for retirement under the 
provisions of R. S. 11:2256 may apply for retirement under the provisions of R.S. 
11:2258 and shall be retired on 75.0% of the retirement salary to which be would be 
entitled under R. S. 11:2256 if be were otherwise eligible there under or 25.0% of the 
member's average salary, whichever is greater. 
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3. Any retired member or DROP plan participant who becomes disabled for any reason 
provided for by law shall be permitted to apply for conversion of a service retirement 
to a service connected disability retirement under R.S. 1 l:2258(B)(l)(e). 

4. Should a member who is on disability retirement die and leave a surviving spouse, the 
surviving spouse shall receive a benefit of $200 per month. When the member takes 
disability retirement, he may, in addition, take an actuarially reduced benefit in which 
case the member's surviving spouse shall receive 50% of the disability benefit being 
paid immediately prior to the death of the disabled retiree. If the surviving spouse 
remarries prior to age 55, such benefits shall cease; however, the benefits shall resume 
upon subsequent divorce or death of the new spouse, and the approval of the board of 
trustees. 

4. DROP Benefits 

After completing 20 years of creditable service and age 50 or 25 years at any age, a member 
may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to 36 months. 

Upon commencement of participation in the deferred retirement option plan, employer and 
employee contributions to FRS cease. The monthly retirement benefit that would have been 
payable is paid into the deferred retirement option plan account. Upon termination of 
employment, a participant in the program shall receive, at his option, a lump-sum payment 
from the account or an annuity based on the deferred retirement option plan account balance 
in addition to his regular monthly benefit. 

If employment is not terminated at the end of the 36 months, the participant resumes regular 
contributions to FRS. No payments may be made from the deferred retirement option plan 
account until the participant retires. 

5. Initial Benefit Option 

Effective June 16, 1999, members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in 
DROP may elect to receive, at the time of retirement, an initial benefit option (IBO) in an 
amount up to 36 months of benefits, with an actuarial reduction of their future benefits. Such 
amounts may be withchawn or remain in the IBO account earning interest at the same rate as die 
DROP account. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 

1. Retirement 

The age and years of creditable service required in cffder for a member to retire with full benefits 
are estabUshed by statute, and vary depending on the member's hire date, employer, and job 
classification. The majority of LASERS rank and file members may either retire with full 
benefits at any age upon completing 30 years of creditable service or at age 60 upon completing 
five to ten years of creditable service depending on their plan. Additionally, members may 
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choose to retire with 20 years of service at any age, witii an actuarially reduced benefit. The 
basic annual retirement benefit for members is equal to 2.5% to 3.5% of average compensation 
multiplied by the number of yeais of creditable service. 

Average compensation is defined as the member's average annual earned compensation for the 
liighest 36 consecutive months of employment for members employed prior to July 1,2006. For 
members hired July 1,2006 or later, average compensation is based on the member's average 
annual earned compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of emploj-ment. The 
maximum annual retirement benefit cannot exceed the lesser of 100% of average compensation 
or a certain specified dollar amount of actuarially determined monetary limits, which vary 
depending upon the member's age at retirement. Judges, court officers, and certain elected 
officials receive an additional annual retirement benefit equal to 1.0% of average compensation 
multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in their respective capacity. As an 
alternative to the basic retirement benefits, a member may elect to receive their retirement 
benefits under any one of six different options providing fen* reduced retirement benefits payable 
tliroughout their life, with certain benefits being paid to their designated beneficiary after their 
death. 

Act 992 of the 2010 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session, changed the benefit structure for 
LASERS members hired on or after January 1,2011. This resulted in three new plans: regular, 
hazardous duty, and judges. The new regular plan includes regular members and those members 
who were formerly eligible to participate in specialty plans, excluding hazardous duty and 
judges. Regular members and judges are eligible to retire at age 60 after five years of creditable 
service and, may also retire at any age, with a reduced benefit, after 20 years of creditable 
service. Hazardous duty members are eligible to retire with twelve years of creditable service at 
age 55, 25 years of creditable service at any age or with a reduced benefit after 20 years of 
creditable servdce. Average compensation will be based on the member's average annual earned 
compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment for all tiiree new plans. 
Menibeis in the regular plan will receive a 2.5% accrual rate, hazardous duty plan a 3.33% 
accrual rate, and judges a 3.5% accrual rate. The extaa 1.0% accrual rate for each year of service 
for court officers, the govemor, lieutenant govemor, legislators. House clerk, sergeants at arms, 
or Senate secretary, employed after January 1,2011, was eliminated by Act 992. Specialty plan 
and regular members, hired prior to January 1,2011, who are hazardous duty employees have 
the option to taansition to the new hazardous duty plan. 

A member leaving employment before attaining minimum retirement age, but after completing 
certain minimum service requirements, becomes eligible for a benefit provi(fed the member lives 
to the minimum seivdce retirement age, and does not withdraw their accumulated contributions. 
The minimum service requirement for benefits varies depending upon the member's employer 
and service classification but generally is ten years of servdce. 

2. Deferred Retirement Benefits 

The State Legislature authorized LASERS to establish a Deferred Retirement Option Plan 
(DROP). When a member enters DROP, their status changes from active member to retiree 
even though they continue to work and draw ftieir salary for a period of up to three years. The 
election is irrevocable once participation begins. During DROP participation, accumulated 

87 



CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fCONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

retirement benefits that would have been paid to each retiree are separately tracked. For 
members who entered DROP prior to January 1,2004, interest at a rate of one-half percent less 
dian the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero) will be credited to the 
retiree after participation ends. At that time, the member must choose among available 
altematives for die distribution of benefits that have accumulated in the DROP account. 
Members who enter DROP on or after January 1,2004, are required to participate in LASERS 
Self-Directed Plan (SDP) which is administered by a third-party provider. The SDP allows 
DROP participants to choose from a menu of investment options for the allocation of their 
DROP balances. Participants may diversify their investtnents by choosing from an approved list 
of mutual funds with different holdings, management styles, and risk factors. 

Members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may elect to receive at 
the time of retirement an initial benefit option (IBO) in an amount up to 36 mondis of benefits, 
with an actuarial reduction of their future benefits. For members who selected the IBO option 
prior to January 1,2004, such amount may be withdrawn or remain in die IBO account earning 
interest at a rate of one-half percent less dian the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to 
be less than zero). Those members who select the IBO on or after January 1,2004, are required 
to enter the SDP as described above. 

3. Disability Benefits 

All members with ten or more years of credited servdce who become disabled may receive a 
maximum disability retirement benefit equivalent to the regular retirement formula without 
reduction by reason of age. Upon reaching age 60, the disability retiree may receive a 
regular retirement benefit by making application to the Board of Trustees. For injuries 
sustained in the line of duty, hazardous duty personnel in the Hazardous Duty Ser\dces Plan 
will receive a disability benefit equal to 75% of final average compensation. 

4. Survivor's Benefits 

Certain eligible surviving dependents receive benefits based on the deceased member's 
compensation and their relationship to the deceased. The deceased member who was in 
state service at the time of death must have a minimum of five years of service credit, at 
least two of which were earned immediately prior to death, or who had a minimum of 
twenty years of service credit regardless of when earned in order for a benefit to be paid to a 
minor or handicapped child. Benefits are payable to an unmarried child until age 18, or age 
23 if the child remains a full-time student. The aforementioned minimum service credit 
requirement is ten years for a surviving spouse with no minor children, and benefits are to 
be paid for life to the spouse or qualified handicapped child. 

5. Permanent Benefit Increases/Cost of Living Adjustments 

As fiilly described in Title 11 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes, the System allows for the 
payment of permanent benefit increases, also known as cost-of-living adjusttnents (COLAs), 
that are funded through investment earnings when recommended by the Board of Trustees 
and approved by the State Legislature. 
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Contributions: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined 
each year. For the year ending June 30, 2020, the employer contribution rate was 14% and the 
employee rate was 5% for Plan B. Contributions to MERS from the City were $450,257 for the 
year ended June 30, 2020. 

In accordance witli state statute, the System receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue 
sharing hinds. These additional sources of income are used as employer contributions and are 
considered support from non-employer contributing entities, but are not considered special funding 
situations. The amount of non-employer contributions recognized as revenue in the government-
wide governmental activities statement of activities was SI 10,682 for the year ended June 30, 
2020. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined 
each year. For the year ending June 30,2020, the employer contribution rate was 32.50% and the 
employee rate was 10% for hazardous duty members. Uie employer contribution rate was 32.50% 
and the employee rate was 8% for non-hazardous duty members. Contributions to MPERS from 
the City were $519,163 for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

MPERS also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer conhibutions. Uie tax 
is considered support from a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year 
based on an actuarial study. The amount of non-employer contributions recognized as revenue in 
the government-wide governmental activities statement of activities was $ 110,180 for the year 
ended June 30, 2020. 

Firefighters' Retirement System 

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined 
each year. For the year ending June 30,2020, the employer contribution rate was 27.75% and the 
employee rate was 10%. Contributions to FRS from the City were $347,681 for the year ended 
June 30, 2020. 

FRS also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions. The tax is 
considered support from a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year 
based on an actuarial study. The amount of non-employer contributions recognized as revenue in 
the government-wide governmental activities statement of activities was $143,124 for the year 
ended June 30,2020. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 

Contribution requirements of active employees are governed by Section 401 ofTitle 11 ofthe 
Louisiana Revised Statutes (La. R.S. 11:401) and may be amended by the Louisiana Legislature. 
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Employee and employer contributions are deducted from a member's salary and remitted to 
LASERS by participating employers. The contribution rates in effect during the year ended 
June 30, 2020 for the plan were 11.5% for the employee and 42.4% for the employer. 

The City's contractually required composite contribution rate for the year ended June 30,2020 
was 42.4% of annual payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with 
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during 
the year, with an additional amount to finance any Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. 
Contributions to the pension plan from the Agency were $10,939 for the year ended June 30, 
2020. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2020, the City reported a liability of $11,973,904 for its proportionate share of the 
net pension liability of MERS, MPERS, FRS, and LASERS combined. For all plans, the net 
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The 
City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. The City's proportion at June 30, 2019 and 
change in proportion measured as of June 30, 2018 is as follows: 

Proportion at Change in 
Plan June 30,2019 Proportion 

MERS 4.19798% (0.07314%) 
MPERS 0.53519% (0.02162%) 
FRS 0.53389% 0.01587% 
LASERS 0.00135% (0.00006%) 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized pension expense as follows: 

Plan Pension Expense 

MERS $ 632,202 
MPERS 647,490 
FRS 591,687 
LASERS 9,504 

$ 1,880,883 

At June 30, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
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MERS KIPERS FRS LASERS Total 

Defened Outflows of Resources; 
DifFereiKes between ejq^ected and actual 

Experience 

Changes in Assumpflons 

Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension pkn investiiKnts 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
En^loyer contributions and proportionate 
share of contiibufions 

Employer contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resoiuces 

Defeired Inflows of Resources: 

Differences between expected and actual 

Experience 

Changes in Assnnptions 

Changes in propoitiou aiKl differences between 
Enpbyer contiilautions and proportionate 
sliare of contributions 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

223,871 

79 

450,257 

10,198 

272367 

315,771 

119,776 

519.163 

304.149 

224.820 

123.062 

347.681 

3,373 

20 

10,939 

10.799 

80U26 

930,764 

242,937 

1,328,040 

$ 1,061,007 1337375 ',712 15,772 3,313,' 

162.888 149.532 

114.125 283,089 

241.159 

243 

390,875 

203 553,782 

243 

791,358 

277.013 432.621 632,277 3.472 1.345.383 

$1,328,040 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the 
City's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as areduction of the 
net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 

Year ended fluie 30: MERS MPERS FRS LASERS Total 

2021 $ 142,772 $ 126.430 3 i 65,829 $ 156 S ; 335.187 

2022 105,853 4,478 (122,210) (985) (12,864) 

2023 51,505 75,747 7,666 930 135,848 

2024 33,607 78,836 43,570 iim 157,273 

2025 - - 1,440 - 1,440 

Thereafter - - 23,459 - 23,459 

$ 333,737 $ 285.491 3 i 19,754 $ 1.361 S ; 640.343 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension 
liabilit}'' as of June 30, 2019 for all plans are as follows: 
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MERS 

Inflation 2.50% 

MPERS 

2.50% 

ERS LASERS 

2.50% 2.50% 

InvestiT^nt rate of retiun 7.00% 7.125% 7.15% 7.60% 

Salary increases 

Vary from 7.4% 
in first 4 years 
of service to 
4.9% after 4 

Vary from 9.75% 
in first 2 years of 
service to 4.25% 

after 23 years 

Vary from 
14.75% in first 2 
years of service 
to 4.5% after 25 2.8% to 5.3% 

For MERS, the annuitant and beneficiary mortality rates were based on the PubG-2010(B) 
Healthy Retiree Table (set equal to 120% for males and females, each adjusted using their 
respective male and female MP2018scales), the PubG-2010(B) Employee Table (set equal to 
120% for males and females, each adjusted using their respective male and female MP2018 
scales), and the PubNS-2010(B) Disabled Retiree Table (set equal to 120% for males and 
females with the full generational MP2018 scale). 

For MPERS, the mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy with Blue Collar 
Adjustment Sex Distinct Tables projected to 2029 by Scale AA (set back 1 year for females) for 
healthy annuitants and beneficiaries, RP-2000 Disabled Lives Table for disabled annuitants (set 
back 5 years for males and 3 years for females), and RP-2000 Employee Table for active 
members (set back 4 years for males and 3 years for females). 

For ERS, mortality assumptions were set after reviewing an experience study performed on plan 
data for the period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014. The pre and post-mortality life 
expectancies of participants based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy with Blue Collar 
Adjustment Sex Distinct Tables projected to 2031 by Scale AA for employee, annuitant and 
beneficiary mortality, and the RP-2000 Disabled Lives Table for disabled annuitants (set back 5 
years for males and 3 years for females). 

For LASERS, mortality rates were based on RP-2014 Healthy Mortality Table with mortality 
improvement projected using the MP-2018 Mortality Improvement Scale for non-disabled 
members; and RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, with no projection for mortality 
improvement was selected for disabled members. 

For all plans' cost of living adjustments, the present value of future retirement benefits is based 
on benefits currently being paid by the Systems and includes previously granted cost of living 
increases. The present values do not include provisions for potential future increase not yet 
authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

For MERS, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future 
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
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target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the 
effect of rebalancing/diversification. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class included in the MERS's target asset allocation as of June 30,2019 are 
summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term Expected 
Target Asset Portfolio Real Rate 

Asset Class Allocation of Return 
Public Equity 50% 2.15% 
Public Fixed IncouK 35% OA 

Alternative 15% 0.64% 

Total 100% 4.30% 

Inflation 2.70% 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Retiun 7.00% 

For MPERS, the forecasted long-tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected 
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce 
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by 
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for 
the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting forecasted long-term rates of return is 
7.89%fortheyearended June 30,2019. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class included in the MPERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 
are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Tenn Expected 
Target Asset Portfolio Real Rate 

Asset Class Allocation of Return 
Equity 48.50% 3.28% 
Fixed Income 33.50% 0.80% 
Alternative 18% 1.06% 
Other 0% 0.00% 

Total 100% 5.14% 

Mation 2.75% 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 7. 
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For FRS, the forecasted long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future 
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the 
effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting forecasted long-term rates of return is 7.94% 
for the year ended June 30, 2019. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each 
major asset class included in the FRS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are 
summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term Expected 
Target Asset Portfolio Real Rate 

Asset Class Allocation of Retui'n 
Fixed Income 31% 2.17% 
Equity: 

U.S. Equity 21.50% 5.98% 
Non-U. S. Equity 17.50% 7.52% 
Global Equity 10% 6.59% 

Alternative: 
Real Estate 6% 4.14% 
Private Equity 4% 10.52% 

Multi-Asset Strategies: 
Global Tactical Asset Allocation 5% 4.37% 
Risk Parity 5% 4.67% 

Total 100% 

For LASERS the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined 
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for 
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the efTect of 
rebalancing/diversification. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of 
return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of 
June 30,2019 are summarized in the following table: 
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Asset Class 
Target Asset 

Allocation 
Expected Portfolio 

Real Rate of Return 

Cash 0% 0.24% 
Doirestic Equity 23% 4.83% 
International Equity 32% 5.83% 
DoiTKStic Fixed Incon^ 6% 2.79% 
International Fixed InconK 10% 4.49% 
Alternative Investments 22% 8.32% 
Risk Parity 7% 5.06% 

Total 100% 6.09% 

Discount Rate 

For MERS, the discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% which was a 
decrease of .275% from the prior measurement date of June 30,2018. For MPERS, the discount 
rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.125% which was a decrease of .075% from 
the prior measurement date of June 30, 2018. For FRS, the discount rate used to measure the 
total pension liability was 7.15% which was a decrease of. 15% from the prior measurement date 
of June 30, 2018. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.60% for 
LASERS which was a decrease of .05% from the prior measurement date of June 30,2018. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions 
will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions from participating 
employers and non-employer contributing entities will be made at actuarially determined rates, 
which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and approved by the Board of Trustees 
and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on those assumptions, the 
pension plans' fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments of current active and inactive plan members. Therefore, the long-tenn expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes 
in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the current discount rate, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or 
one percentage-point higher than the current rate as of June 30,2019 for MERS, MPERS, FRS, 
and LASERS: 
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Changes in Discoimt Rate 

PlanB: 

Net pension liability (asset) 

MPERS: 

Net pension liability (asset) 

FRS: 

Net pension liability (asset) 

LASERS: 

1 % Decrease 

6.000% 

Current 

Discount 

Rate 

7.000% 

1% Increase 

8.000% 

4,894,426 $ 3,672,448 $ 2,638,982 

Changes in Discoimt Rate 

Current 

Discoimt 

Rate 

7.125% 

1% Decrease 

6.125% 

6,772,118 $4,860,385 

Changes in Discoimt 

1% Increase 

8.125% 

$ 3,256,633 

Rate 

1% Decrease 

6.15% 

Current 

Discount 

Rate 

7.15% 

4,841,174 $ 3,343,196 

Changes in Discoimt 

1% Increase 

8.15% 

$ 2,085,907 

Rate 

Current 

Discoimt 

1% Decrease Rate 

6.60% 7.60% 

Net pension liability (asset) 

Pension Plans Fiduciary Net Position 

123,536 97,875 

1% Increase 

8.60% 

$ 76,207 

MERS issued a stand-alone audit report on its financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2019. Access to the audit report can be found on the System's website: www.mersla.com or on 
the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's official website: www.lla.state.la.us. 

MEPRS issued a stand-alone audit report on its financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2019. Access to the audit report can be found on the System's website: www.lampers.org or on 
the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's official website: www.lla.state.la.us. 
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FRS issued a stand-alone audit report on its financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2019. Access to the audit report can be found on the System's website: 
www.lafirefightersret.com or on the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's official website: 
www.lla.state.la.us. 

Detailed information about LASERS' pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued LASERS 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report at 
www.lasersonline.org or on the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's official website: 
www. 11a. state. la. us. 

Payables to the Pension Plans 

At June 30, 2020 included in liabilities are payables to the pension plans as follows: MERS 
$46,265, MPERS $50,788, FRS $33,549, and LASERS $1,159. These payables are normal 
legally required contributions to the pension plans. 

Component Units -

Citv Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two and Marshal of Citv Court of Denham Springs -
Ward Two 

General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan Descriptions: 

Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana 

Employees of the City Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two (the Court) and the Marshal of 
City Court of Denham Springs — Ward Two (the Marshal) may elect to be members of the 
Parochial Employees' Retirement System (PERS) - Plan "B", a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit plan administered by the Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana. 
PERS was established and provided for by R.S. 11:1901 of the Louisiana Revised Statute. PERS 
— Plan "B" was designed for those employers that contribute to Social Security. PERS issues a 
publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.persla.org. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 

The judge of the City Court of Denham Springs — Ward Two is a member of the Louisiana State 
Employees' Retirement System (LASERS). See pages 93 to 95 for plan description and benefits 
provided by LASERS. 

Benefits Provided: 

The following is a description of the PERS and its benefits and is provided for general 
information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more 
complete information. 
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Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana 

1. Retirement 

All pennanent parish government employees (except those employed by Orleans, Lafourche and 
East Baton Rouge Parishes) who work at least 28 hours a week shall become members on the 
date of employment. New employees meeting the age and Social Security criteria have up to 90 
days from the date of hire to elect to participate. As of January 1997, elected officials, except 
coroners, justices of the peace, and parish presidents may no longer join the System. Any 
member of Plan B can retire providing he/she meets one of the following criteria; 

For employees hired prior to January 1, 2007: 

1 - Age 55 with thirty (30) years of creditable sendee. 
2 - Age 60 with a minimum of ten (10) years of creditable service. 
3 - Age 65 wdth a minimum of seven (7) years of creditable sendee. 

For employees hired after January L 2007: 

1 - Age 55 with thirty (30) years of creditable sendee. 
2 - Age 62 with a minimum of ten (10) years of creditable service. 
3 - Age 67 wdth a minimum of seven (7) years of creditable service. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan B shall 
consist of an amount equal to two percent of the members' final average compensation multiplied 
by his years of creditable sendee. However, under certain conditions, as outlined in the statutes, 
the benefits are limited to specified amounts. 

2. Survivor Benefits 

Plan B members need ten (10) years of servdce credit to be eligible for survivor benefits. Upon 
the death of any member of Plan B with twenty (20) or more years of creditable servdce who is 
not eligible for normal retirement, the plan provides for an automatic Option 2 benefit for the 
sundving spouse when he/she reaches age 50 and until remarriage, if the remarriage occurs 
before age 55. 

A surviving spouse who is not eligible for Social Security survdvorship or retirement benefits, 
and maixied not less than twelve (12) months immediately preceding death of the member, shall 
be paid an Option 2 benefit beginning at age 50. 

3. Deferred Retirement Option Plan 

Act 338 of 1990 established the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) for the Retirement 
System. DROP is an option for that member who is eligible for normal retirement. In lieu of 
terminating employment and accepting a service retirement, any member of Plan A or B who is 
eligible to retire may elect to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) in 
wEich they are enrolled for three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in 
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the plan, employer contributions are payable but employee contributions cease. The monthly 
retirement benefits that would be payable, had the person elected to cease employment and 
receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP Fund. Upon termination of 
employment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, a participant in the 
DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from the account equal to the payments into the 
account, a true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or roll over the fund to an 
Individual Retirement Account. Interest is accrued on the DROP benefits for the period between 
the end of DROP participation and the member's retirement date. For individuals who become 
eligible to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Plan on or after January 1, 2004, all 
amounts which remain credited to the individual's subaccount after termination in the Plan will 
be placed in liquid asset money market investments at the discretion of the board of trustees. 
These subaccounts may be credited with interest based on money market rates of return or, at the 
option of the System, the funds may be credited to self-directed subaccounts. The participant in 
the self-directed portion of this Plan must agree that the benefits payable to the participant are not 
the obligations of the state or the System, and that any returns and other rights of the Plan are the 
sole liabilit}'' and responsibility of the participant and the designated provider to which 
contributions have been made. 

4. Disability Benefits 

For Plan B, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he/she was hired 
prior to January I, 2007, and has at least five years of creditable service or if hired after 
January 1,2007, has seven years of creditable service, and is not eligible for normal retirement, 
and has been officially certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. Upon 
retirement caused by disability, a member of Plan B shall be paid a disability benefit equal to the 
lesser of an amount equal to two percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied 
by his years of service, not to be less than fifteen, or an amount equal to what the member's 
normal benefit would be based on the member's current final compensation but assuming the 
member remained in continuous service until his earliest normal retirement age. 

5. Cost of Living Increases 

The Board is authorized to provide a cost of living allowance for those retirees who retired prior 
to July 1973. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for each Rill 
calendar year since retirement and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available from 
investment income in excess of normal requirements. In addition, the Board may provide an 
additional cost of living increase to all retirees and beneficiaries who are over age sixty-five 
equal to 2% of the member's benefit paid on October 1,1977, (or the member's retirement date, 

if later). Also, the Board may provide a cost of living increase up to 2.5% for retirees 62 and 
older. (RS 11:1937). Lastly, Act 270of2009 provided for further reducedactuarial payments to 
provide an annual 2.5% cost of living adjustment commencing at age 55. 
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Contributions: 

Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana 

According to state statute, contributions for all employers are actuarially determined each year. 
The required contribution rate for the period July 1, 2019 to December 31,2019 was 7.5% and 
was 7.5% for the period January 1, 2020 to June 30, 2020. Employees were required to 
contribute 3% of their annual salary for both periods. Contributions to PERS from the Court 
were $17,008 for the ye^ ended June 30, 2020. 

According to state statute, PERS also receives VA of 1 % of ad valorem taxes collected within the 
respective parishes, except for Orleans and East Baton Rouge parishes. PERS also receives 
revenue sharing funds each year as appropriated by the Legislature. Tax monies and revenue 
sharing monies are apportioned between Plan A and Plan B in proportion to the member's 
compensation. These additional sources of income are used as additional employer contributions 
and are considered support from non-employer contributing entities. For the Court, the amount 
of non-employer contributions recognized as revenue in the government-wide governmental 
activities statement of activities was $2,824 for the year ended June 30,2020. For the Marshal, 
the amount of non-employer contributions recognized in the government-wide governmental 
activities statement of activities was $2,771 for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 

Contribution requirements of active employees are governed by Section 401 of Title 11 of the 
Louisiana Revised Statutes (La. R.S. 11:401) and may be amended by the Louisiana Legislature. 
Employee and employer contributions are deducted from a member's salary and remitted to 
LASERS by participating employers. The City Court's contractually required composite 
contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was 42.4% of annual payroll, actuarially 
determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to 
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to 
finance any unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Contributions to the pension plan from the 
Court were $30,698 for the ye^" ended June 30, 2020. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30,2020, the Court reported a net pension asset of $ 14,650 for its proportionate share of 
PERS and a net pension liability of $276,793 for its proportionate sh^^e of LASERS. At June 30, 
2020, the Marshal reported a net pension asset of $14,376 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability of PERS. For PERS, the net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 
2019 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by 
an actuarial valuation as of that date. For LASERS, the net pension liability was measured as of 
June 30, 2019 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Court and the Marshal's proportion of 
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the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Court and the Marshal's long-term share 
of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. At December 31,2019, the Court's proportion was .202493% 
for PERS which was an increase of .009112% from its proportion measured as of December 31, 
2018. At June 30, 2019, the Court's proportion w^ .0038200% for LASERS which was a 
decrease of .00010% from its proportion measured as of June 30,2018. At December 31,2019, 
the Marshal's proportion was .198713% for PERS which was a decrease of .02662% from its 
proportion measured as ofDecember 31, 2018. 

For the year ended June 30,2020, the Court recognized pension benelit of $5,851 for PERS and 
pension expense of $11,731 for LASERS. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Marshal 
recognized pension expense of $4,528 for PERS. 

At June 30,2020, the Court and the Marshal reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Cftj' Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two 

PERS LASERS Total 

Defeired Outfbws of Resources: 

Differeuces between expected and actual 
Experience 

Changes in Assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 

Clianges in prop3rtion and differences between 
Einptoyer contributions and propoitiouafe 
sliare of contriburions 

Enipbyer contributions subsequent to 
the nieasurenient date 

Total Deferred Outfbws of Resources 

8,643 

1,701 

2 373 

2,181 

11,016 

Mar shal City Comt of 
Denham Springs -

Ward Two 

PERS 

425 

8,481 

8,495 30,698 39,193 

552 

5,852 

18,098 44,341 62,439 15,310 

(CONTINUED) 
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Deferred Inflows of Resomces; 

Differences between exf«cted and actual 

Experience 

Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension pbii investments 

Changes in profwition and differences between 
Eii^byer contributious and proportionate 
share of contr ibutions 

Total Defeired Inflows of Resources 

City Court of Denliam Springs - Ward Two 

PERS LASERS Total 

6^48 

30,590 

671 

37,509 

576 6,824 

30,590 

671 

Marshal City Court of 
Denharn Springs -

Ward Two 

PERS 

6,131 

576 

30,019 

1.638 

37,788 

$39,193 and $5,852 reported as defeixed outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from 
the Court and the Marshal's, respectively, contributions subsequent to the measurement date will 
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,2021. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows; 

City Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two 

Marshal City Court 

of Denham Springs -

Ward Two 

Year ended June 30: PERS LASERS Total PERS 

2021 S (1T466) S 6,847 S (4,619) 3 i (8.245) 
2022 1,151 2,633 3,784 (8,470) 
2023 (17,591) 3,587 (14,004) 2,076 
2024 - - - (13.691) 

$ (27,906) $ 13,067 $ (14,839) 3 1 (28,330) 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension 
liability as of December 31,2019 for PERS and as of June 30,2019 for LASERS are as follows: 

PERS LASERS 
Inflation 

Investment rate of retiffn 

Salary increases 

1.85% 

6.50% (net of investaient 
expense) 

5.25% (1.85% Inflation, 
3.40% Merit) 

2.50% 

7.60% 

2.8% to 5.3% 
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For PERS, mortality rates were based Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for 
Health Retirees multiplied by 130% for males and 125% for females using MP2018 scale for 
annuitant and beneficiary mortality. For employees, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans 
Mortality Table for General Employees multiplied by 130% for males and 125% for females 
using MP2018 scale. Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General Disabled 
Retirees multiplied by 130% for males and 125% for females using MP2018 scale for disabled 
annuitants. 

For PERS and LASERS' cost of living adjustments, the present value of future retirement 
benefits is based on benefits currently being paid by the Systems and includes previously granted 
cost of living increases. The present values do not include provisions for potential future increase 
not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

For PERS, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined 
using a triangulation method which integrated the CAPM pricing model (top-down), a treasury 
yield curve approach (bottom-up) and an equity building-block model (bottom-up). Risk return 
and correlations are projected on a forward looking basis in equilibrium, in which best-estimates 
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense 
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These rates are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.00% and an adjustment 
for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of return is 
7.18% for the year ended December 31, 2019. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return 
for each major asset class included in the System's target asset allocation as of December 31, 
2019 are summarized in the following table; 

Expected Portfolio 
Target Asset Real Rate of 

Asset Class Allocation Return 
Fixed Income 35% 1.05% 
Equity 52% 3.41% 
Alternative 11% 0.61% 
Real Assets 2% 0.11% 

Total 100% 5.18% 

Inflation 2.00% 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 7.18% 

For LASERS the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined 
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for 
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the effect of 
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rebalancing/diversification. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of 
return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of 
June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term 
Target Expected Real Rate 

Asset Class Allocation of Return 

Cash 0% 0.24% 
Domestic Equity 23% 4.83% 
International equity 32% 5.83% 
DouKstic Fixed Income 6% 2.79% 
International Fixed Income 10% 4.49% 
Alternative Investments 22% 8.32% 
Risk Parity 7% 5.06% 

Total 100% 6.09% 

Discount Rate 

For PERS, the discount rate used to measure the total pension liabilit}-' was 6.50% which was the 
same as the prior measurement date of December 31,2018. For LASERS, the discount rate used 
to measure the total pension liability was 7.60% which was a decrease of .05% from the prior 
measurement date of June 30,2018. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount 
rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that 
employer contributions from participating employers and non-employer contributing entities will 
be made at actuarially determined rates, which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes 
and approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. 
Based on those assumptions, the pension plans' frduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive plan 
members. Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes 
in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the Court and the Marshal's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability calculated using the current discount rate, as well as what the Court and Marshal's 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current rate as of 
December 31,2019 for PERS and as of June 30, 2019 for LASERS: 
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City Court of Denham Springs — Ward Two 

PERS: 

Net pension liability (asset) 

LASERS: 

Net pension liability (asset) 

Changes in Discount Rate 
PlanB: 

1% Decrease 
5.50% 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
6.50% 

1% Increase 
7.50% 

78,698 $ (14,650) $ (92,671) 

Changes in Discount Rate 

1% Decrease 
6.60% 

$ 349.575 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
7.60% 

; 276,793 

1% Increase 

215,64^ 

Marshal of City Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two 

Changes in Discoimt Rate 
PERS: PlanB: 

Net pension liability (asset) 

Pension Plans Fiduciary Net Position 

1% Decrease 
5.50% 

$ 77.229 

Ciffrent 

Discoimt 
Rate 

6.50% 

; 14,376 

1% Increase 
7.50% 

$ (90,941) 

PERS issued a stand-alone audit report on its financial statements for the year ended Decem­
ber 31,2018. Access to the audit report can be found on the System's website: www.persla.org 
or on the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's official website: www .11a .state. 1 a. us. 

Detailed infonnation about LASERS' pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued LASERS 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report at 
www.lasersonline.org or on the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's official website: 
www.lla.state.la.us. 

Payables to the Pension Plans 

For the City Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two, included in liabilities at June 30, 2020 is a 
payable in the amount of $4,475 to PERS and $2,851 LASERS. These payables are normal 
legally required contributions to the pension plan. 
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For the Marshal of City Court for Denham Springs - Ward Two, there is no payable to PERS at 
June 30,2020. 

(12) Deferred Compensation Plan -

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Louisiana 
Revised Statutes 42:1301 through 42:1308 and Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1954. The Louisiana Public Employees' Deferred Compensation Plan is available to all 
employees and permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred 
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable 
emergency. In accordance with the amended provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 
which were enacted into law in August 1996, all amounts deferred under the plan, all property 
and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property 
or rights, are solely the property and rights of the participants and their beneficiaries. As required 
by the amendment to the code, the City established a custodial account with a third party 
administrator who will hold the assets and income of the plan. 

Under GASB Statement No. 32, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code 
Section 45 7 Deferred Compensation Plans", governments who have no responsibility for the plan 
and are not formally considered the plan's trustee are not required to report the plan in its 
financial statements. Since the City's plan is held in a custodial account with a third party 
administrator, the assets and liabilities are not presented in the City's financial statements as of 
June 30,2020. 

At June 30, 2020, assets totaling $1,184,490 are held by Great West Life & Annuity Insurance 
Company, a deferred compensation center. 

Compensation defeixed under this plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, amounted to 
$37,858. 

(13) Litigation -

The City is a defendant in several lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not 
presently determinable, it is the opinion of the City's counsel that resolution of these matters will 
not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City of Denham Springs. 

(14) Intergovernmental Revenue -

GASB No. 24 requires government employers to disclose the amount recognized in the financial 
statements for on-behalf payments of salaries and fringe benefits. 

Supplementary salary payments are made by the State of Louisiana directly to certain groups of 
the Citj-^'s employees. The City is not legally responsible for these salaries. Therefore, the basis 
for recognizing the revenue and expenditure payments is the actual contribution made by the 
State. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the State paid supplemental salaries to the City's 
fire and law enforcement employees in the amount of $308,832. 
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(15) Risk Management-

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

The City maintains commercial insurance for all risks of loss, including (1) Worker's 
Compensation, (2) Public Official Bonds and Employees Liability, (3) Business Auto Liability, (4) 
Umbrella coverage, (5) Law Enforcement Professional Liability, (6) Fire and Extended coverage 
and (7) Flood Insurance. 

(16) Mayor and Council Members' Compensation -

The following list includes the compensation paid to the Mayor and Council Members for the 
year ended June 30, 2020. The current terms of the Mayor and Council Members expire on 
December 31, 2022. 

H. Gerard Landry, Mayor $ 82,750 
209 N. College Street East 
Denham Springs, Louisiana 70726 
Telephone: 665-8121 - Term Began: January 1, 2019 

Lori Lamm-Williams, Council Member $ 12,000 
1565 River Run Drive 
Denham Springs, Louisiana 70726 
Telephone: 445-0273 - Term Began; January 1, 2019 

Jeffery Wesley, Council Member $ 12,000 
340 Pine Street 
Denham Springs, Louisiana 70726 
Telephone: 921-4306 - Term Began; January 1, 2019 

Robert Poole, Council Member $ 12,000 
1403 Weeping Willow Drive 
Denham Springs, Louisiana 70726 
Telephone: 939-3526 - Term Began: January 1, 2019 

Laura Schmitt Smith, Council Member $ 12,000 
448 Center\ille Street, NL Hatchell Lane 
Denham Springs, Louisiana 70726 
Telephone: 445-1469 - Term Began: January 1, 2019 

Amber Dugas, Council Member $ 12,000 
210 Carroll Street 
Denham Springs, Louisiana 70726 
Telephone: 933-5762 - Term Began: January 1, 2019 
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(17) 

(18) 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Mayor -

In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513A, the following is a Schedule of 
Compensation and Benefits received by H. Gerard Landry, Mayor, the acting agency head for the 
year ended June 30, 2020: 

Purpose 

Salary 
Benefits-insurance 
Benefits-retiren^nt 
Vehicle provided by governnent 

H. Gerard Landry 

$ 82,750 
234 

11,585 
750 

$ 95.319 

Schedule of Business-Type Activities Net Income (Loss) from Operations by Department 
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 -

Total Denliam 

Operating Revenues: 
Cliarges for Services 
Delinquent Cliaiges 
Miscellaneous 

Total Oi^rating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Ditect 
General and AdmioBtratrve 

Total Operating Ejqjenses 

Operatir^ Incoire (Loss) by 

Department 

Nonoperating Revenues 
Nonoperating E?q)enses 
Capital Contfibiitions 

Clmuge ill Net Position 

Business-Type Activiies 
DepartinentalNet Income (Loss 

Change in Net Position 
Busmess-T>y« Activities 

Gas 
Department 

Wafer 
Department 

Sewer 
Department 

Sanitation 
Department 

Utility 
Enterprise 

Fund 

Springs 
Sewer District 

Number 1 

$ 3,625,853 
46,825 

$ 3,319,211 
42,864 
65.599 

$ 2,281,656 
29,465 

70 

$ 757,930 
9,788 

$ 9,984,650 
128,942 
65.669 

$ 1,184,031 

3,672,678 3,427,674 2,311,191 767,718 10,179,261 1,184,031 

2,115,193 
609,018 

1,367,732 
617.378 

2,046,154 
785,366 

743,529 
96.961 

6,272,608 
2,108,723 

992,901 
160,252 

2,724,211 1,985,110 2,831,-520 840,490 8,381,331 1,153,153 

948,467 

64,022 

47,171 

1,442,564 

88,371 
(245,792) 
545,056 

(520,329) 

283,820 
(717,280) 
273,620 

(72,772) 1,797,930 

436,213 
(963,072) 
865,847 

30,878 

4,555 
(805,657) 
503,174 

2,136,918 (267,050) 

$ 1,059,660 $ 1,830,199 $ (680,169) $ (72,772) 

$ 2,136,918 $ (267,050) 
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(19) Schedule of Business-Type Activities Operating Expenses by Department 
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 -

Total Denham 
Utility Springs 

Gas Water Sewer Sanitation Enterprise Sewer District 
Department Department Department Department Fund Number 1 

Direct Expenses: 
Natural Gas Purchases $ 754,368 $ S S S 754.368 S 
Direct Labor 660.973 434.694 560,297 - 1,655,964 -
Chlorinator Expense - 34,175 - - 34,175 -
Depreciation 145.558 445,175 1,048,948 1,934 1,641,615 474.745 
Utilities 6,364 111,100 278,160 - 395.624 133.400 
Equipment Expenses 60,911 32,006 57,397 - 150,314 16 
Equipment Rental 5,553 21,188 5,603 - 32,344 104 
Lab Fees - - 39,279 - 39,279 16,112 
Maintenance 351.508 143,124 272.522 - 767,154 146.465 
Meter Reading 110,485 135,037 - - 245,522 -
Meter Repairs 3,691 - - - 3.691 -
Overhead Allocation - - (222,059) - (222,059) 222.059 
Small Tools and Supplies 15.782 11.233 6.007 - 33.022 -
Subcontract Disposal Service - - - 741,595 741,595 -

2,115,193 1,367,732 2,046,154 743,529 6,272,608 992,901 

General and Administrative 
Expenses: 

Office Salaries 103.217 142,820 84.806 56.178 387,021 39.638 
Payroll Taxes, Retirement 

and Group Insurance 299.446 257.250 277,605 21,948 856,249 15,486 
Utilities 10.289 246 - - 10,535 -
Flood Expenses - 49,253 110,184 - 159,437 -
Maintenance and Repairs 2,472 - 980 - 3.452 -
Insurance 59.516 62,232 84.317 7.328 213,393 9.773 
Miscellaneous 61.465 27,434 167.113 3.554 259,566 70.101 
Office Expense 24.492 22.998 19,424 585 67,499 706 
Professional Fees 23.902 36,125 20.010 6.951 86,988 24.254 
Telephone 24.219 19,020 20.927 417 64,583 294 

609.018 617,378 785.366 96.961 2.108,723 160.252 
Total Operating Expenses $ 2.724,211 $ 1,985,110 S 2,831,520 S 840,490 S 8,381,331 $ 1,153,153 
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(20) Schedule of Business-Type Activities Operating Expenses by 
Function for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 -

Total 
Utility 

Enterprise 
Fund 

Personal Services and Benefits: 
Direct Labor 
Office Salaries 
Payroll Taxes, Retirement and Group Insurance 

Contractual Services: 
Chlorinator Expense 
Equipment Rental 
Lab Fees 
Meter Reading 
Subcontract Disposal Service 
Professional Fees 

Cost of Materials: 
Natural Gas Purchases 

Utilities: 
LTilities (Direct) 
LJtilities (General) 
Telephone 

Repair and Maintenance: 
Equipment Expenses 
Flood Expenses 
Maintenance 
Meter Repairs 
Maintenance and Repairs 

Supplies: 
Small Tools and Supplies 
Office Expense 
Miscellaneous 

Insurance 
Depreciation 

Overhead Allocation 

Total Operating Expenses 

.,655,964 
387,021 
856,249 

2.899,234 

34,175 
32,344 
39,279 

245,522 
741.595 

,179,903 

754,368 

395,624 
10,535 
64.583 

470,742 

150,314 
159,437 
767,154 

3,691 
3.452 

.,084,048 

33,022 
67,499 

259.566 

360,087 

213,393 
1,641,615 

(222,059) 

Denham 
Springs 

Sewer District 
Number 1 

39.638 
15.486 

8.381,331 

55.124 

104 
16.112 

24,254 

40,470 

133,400 

294 

133.694 

16 

146,465 

146.481 

706 
70,101 

70,807 

9,773 
474,745 

222.059 

1.153.153 
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(21) Cooperative Endeavor Agreement -

Under the provisions of LA. R.S. 33:9038 Sales Tax Increment Financing, a cooperative endeavor 
agreement dated December 15, 2006 was made by and among Denham Springs Economic 
Development District (the "District"), Denham Springs Economic Development Corporation (the 
"Corporation"), City of Denham Springs, State of Louisiana (the "City"), Law Enforcement 
District of the Parish of Livingston, State of Louisiana (the "Law Enforcement District"), 
Livingston Parish School Board, both in its capacity as a Participating Tax Recipient Entity (the 
"School Board") and its capacity as the Tax Collector for Sales and Use Taxes in the District (the 
"Tax Collector"), Parish of Livingston, State of Louisiana (the "Parish"), Special Sales Tax District 
No. 1 of the Parish of Livingston, State of Louisiana (the "School District"), Gravity Drainage 
District No. 1 of the Parish of Livingston, State of Louisiana (the "Gravity Drainage District") and 
The State of Louisiana (the "State"), acting by and through the Louisiana Department of Revenue 
(the "Department"). 

Pursuant to this Cooperative Endeavor Agreement, the Participating Tax Recipient Entities and the 
State have pledged and dedicated and will irrevocably pledge and dedicate an amount of Annual 
Pledged Local Increment and Annual Pledged State Increment to pay the annual principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds. The District used a portion of the proceeds of the 
Bonds to purchase the Bass Pro Site, which then has been leased by the District to the Corporation. 
The District shall deposit a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds to the Project Fund held by the 
Paying Agent/Trustee to pay Project Costs. The Corporation will contract for and monitor 
construction of the Project and sublease the Bass Pro Site and Facilities to Bass Pro Denham 
Springs Development Company, LLC. The Corporation will mortgage its leasehold interest in the 
Bass Pro Site and Facilities in favor of the Paying Agent/Trustee for the benefit of bondholders. 

In consideration of the mutual covenants contained, the parties covenant and agree to pledge and 
dedicate pursuant to the agreement their agreed upon percentages of the sales tax collected within 
the District as follows: 

Entity 
Sales and Use 

Tax Percent 
Percent of Sales Tax 

Pledged to District 

City of Denham Springs 1.50% 71.42857% 
Livingston Parish 

Law Enforcement District .50% 71.42857% 
Livingston Parish 

School Board - General Fmid 1.00% 100.00000% 
Livingston Parish 

School Board - 2"^ Sales Tax 1.00% 0.00000% 
Livingston Parish School Board -

District #1 .50% 100.00000% 
Livingston Parish Council 1.00% 71.42857% 
Livingston Parish Gravit^^ 

Drainage District #1 .50% 71.42857% 
State of Louisiana 4.00% 50.00000% 

10.00% 
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In addition, while each of the local entities pledge their sales tax revenues until the bonds are paid 
in hill, the State of Louisiana pledged their participation for not more than 20 years from date of 
closing on the bonds and not to exceed $1,500,000 per year. The bonds issued March 20,2007 and 
May 27, 2008, each have a maturity schedule of 30 years or fiscal year ending June 30, 2037. The 
2007 and 2008 bonds were refunded with the 2011 refunding bonds issued on December 22,2011 
which have the same maturity date as the refunded bonds or fiscal year ending June 30,2037. No 
participating local tax recipient entity shall be required to pledge or pay more than the annual 
pledged local increment attributable to it during any year of the term of the agreement. The term of 
this agreement shall be effective upon execution by all parties hereto and shall terminate upon the 
earlier of (i) payment in flill by the District of all principal, interest, premium, if any, and other 
requirements of the bonds or (ii) the final maturity date of the Bonds, which date shall not be 
extended beyond that final maturity date initially set forth in the Indenture without the prior written 
consent of all Participating Tax Recipient Entities. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City abated sales taxes totaling $1,328,855 under this 
cooperative endeavor agreement. 

(22) Contingency - COVID 19 -

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States and throughout the world has caused business 
disruption through mandated and voluntary closings of schools and businesses. While the 
disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is considerable uncertainty around the 
duration and its impacts on the City's citizens, employees and vendors. Therefore, the extent to 
which COVID-19 may impact the City's financial condition or results of operations cannot be 
reasonably estimated at this time. 

(23) Subsequent Event -

The City approved the lowest contractor bid for the Denham Springs Water Well Rehabilitation in 
the amoimt of $1,213,330 at the City Council meeting on July 27, 2020. 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 28, 2020, the date which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY BY PLAN 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020* 

Fiscal Year 

Employer's 
Proportion of 

the Net Pension 
Liability 

Employer's 
Proportionate 

Share of the Net 
Pension Liability 

Employer's 
Covered Payroll 

Primary Government 
Municipal Employees^ Retirement System of Louisiana: 

2015 5.06169% S 2.376,447 $ 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

5.24720% 

4.76559% 

4.34626% 

4.27112% 

4.19798% 

3.566,246 

3,950,241 

3.760,529 

3,612,648 

3.672.448 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System; 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

0.60299% 

0.63557% 

0.60684% 

0.52585% 

0.55681% 

0.53519% 

Firefighters' Retirement System: 

2015 0.67926% 

2016 0.63720% 

2017 0.57365% 

2018 0.54858% 

2019 0.51802% 

2020 0.53389% 

3,772,330 

4,979,059 

5,687,838 

4,590,865 

4,707,297 

4,860,385 

3,022,630 

3,439,056 

3,752,164 

3,144,395 

2,979,713 

3.343,196 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System: 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

0.00143% 

0.00139% 

0.00146% 

0.00146% 

0.00141% 

0.00135% 

S 89,667 

94,692 

114,400 

103,039 

96,226 

97,875 

3,557,043 

3^640,848 

3,504,307 

3,226,030 

3,165,219 

3,209,205 

1,735,777 

1,698,319 

1,696,936 

1,565,808 

1,643,294 

1,671,338 

1,319,503 

1,354,171 

1,293,446 

1,280,871 

1,233,341 

1,290,3.54 

25,800 

25,800 

25,800 

25,800 

25,800 

25.800 

Employer's 
Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension 

Liability as a 
Percentage of its 
Covered Pa>Toii 

66.81% 

97.95% 

112.73% 

116.57% 

114.14% 

114.43% 

217.33% 

293.18% 

335.18% 

293.19% 

286.45% 

290.81% 

229.07% 

253.96% 

290.09% 

245.49% 

241.60% 

259.09% 

347.55% 

367.02% 

443.41% 

399.38% 

372.97% 

379.36% 

Plan Fiduciary Net 
Position as a 

Percentage of the 
Total Pension 

Liability 

76.94% 

68.71% 

63.34% 

62.49% 

65 60% 

75.10% 

70.73% 

66.04% 

70.08% 

71.89% 

71.01% 

76.02% 

72.45% 

68.16% 

73.55% 

74.76% 

73.96% 

65.02% 

62.66% 

57.73% 

62.50% 

71.02% 

62.90% 

*For MERS, MFERS, FRS, and LASERS, the amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal 

year end. 

(CONTINUED) 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY BY PLAN 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020* 

Fiscal Year 

Employer's 
Proportion of 

the Net Pension 
(Asset) 
Liability 

Employer's 
Proportionate 

Share of the Net 
Pension (Asset) 

Liability 

Employer's 
Covered 
Payroll 

Component Units 
City Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two 

Employer's 
Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension 
(Asset) Liability as 
a Percentage of its 
Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net 
Position as a 

Percentage of the 
Total Pension 

Liability 

2015 0.29291% S 813 $ 246,552 0.33% 99.89% 

2016 0.29465% 52,461 283,195 18.52% 93.48% 

2017 0.29392% 38,182 292,795 13.04% 95.50% 

2018 0.27963% (35,183) 195,825 (17.97%) 101.97% 

2019 0.19338% 52,245 176,875 29.54% 91.93% 

2020 0.20249% (14,650) 224,997 -6.51% 102.04% 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System: 

2015 0.00352% S 219,914 S 63,270 347.58% 65.02% 

2016 0.00348% 236,827 64,800 365.47% 62.66% 

2017 0.00376% 295,256 66,600 443.33% 57.73% 

2018 0.00382% 268,883 68,000 395.42% 62.54% 

2019 0.00381% 259,839 69,600 373.33% 64.30% 

2020 0.00382% 276,793 70,008 395.37% 62.90% 

Marshal of Cit\' Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two 
Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

2015 0.30483% s 847 S 282,454 0.30% 99.89% 

2016 0.22881% 40,739 272,908 14.93% 93.48% 

2017 0.18856% 24,469 155,960 15.69% 95.50% 

2018 0.14494% (18,036) 146,976 (12.27%) 101.97% 

2019 0.22533% 60,877 235,737 25.82% 91.93% 

2020 0.19871% (14,376) 220,780 -6.51% 102.04% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will t •e displayed as they become available. 

*For PERS, the amounts presented were determined as of die calendar year-end that occurred within the fiscal year. 

For LASERS, the amounts presented have : i measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBirTIONS BY PLAN 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Contractually 
Required 

Fiscal Year Contributions 

Contributions in 
Relation to 

Contractually 
Required 

Contributions 

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess) 

Priman' Government 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

2015 $ 345,881 $ 345,881 S 

2016 332,625 332,625 

2017 354,864 354,864 

2018 419,393 419,393 

2019 449,289 449,289 

2020 450,257 450,257 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System: 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

535,536 

501,470 

498,418 

505,310 

539,004 

519.163 

S 535,536 

501,470 

498,418 

505,310 

539,004 

519,163 

Firefighters' Retirement System: 

2015 $ 396,096 $ 

2016 352,464 

2017 323,419 

2018 326,833 

2019 341,944 

2020 347.681 

$ 396,096 

352,464 

323,419 

326,833 

341,944 

347,681 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System: 

Employer's Contributions as 
Covered a % of Covered 
Payroll Payroll 

S 3,640,848 

3,501,307 

3,226,030 

3,165,219 

3,209,205 

3,216,120 

S 1,698,319 

1,696,936 

1,565,808 

1,643,294 

1,671,338 

1,594,737 

$ 1,354,171 

1,293,446 

1,280,871 

1,233,341 

1,290,354 

1.252,903 

9.50% 

9.50% 

11.00% 

13.25% 

14.00% 

14.00% 

31.53% 

29.55% 

31.83% 

30.75% 

32.25% 

32.55% 

29.25% 

27.25% 

25.25% 

26.50% 

26.50% 

27.75% 

2015 $ 10,707 $ 10,707 S $ 25,800 41.50% 

2016 9,830 9,830 25,800 38.10% 

2017 9,804 9,804 25,800 38.00% 

2018 10,346 10,346 25,800 40.10% 

2019 10,346 10,346 25,800 40.10% 

2020 10,939 10,939 25,800 42.40% 

(CONTINUED) 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS BY PLAN 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Schediile 2 
(Continued) 

Contractually 
Required 

Fiscal Year Contributions 

Contributions in 
Relation to 

Contractually 
Required 

Contributions 

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess) 

Component Units 
City Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana; 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

24,215 

25,258 

20,871 

14,676 

16,725 

17.008 

24,215 

25,258 

20,871 

14,676 

16,725 

17,008 

Louisiana State Employees'* Retirement System: 

2015 $ 26,892 $ 26,892 $ 

2016 25,375 25,375 

2017 25,840 25,840 

2018 27,909 27,909 

2019 28,035 28,035 

2020 30,698 30,698 

Marshal of City Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two 
Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

25,244 

16,695 

12.557 

17,502 

14.217 

25,244 

16,695 

12,557 

14,869 

17,502 

14,217 

Employer's 
Covered 
Payroll 

261,446 

297,295 

260,877 

188,654 

223,000 

226,773 

64,800 

66,600 

68,000 

69,600 

70,008 

72,400 

272,908 

185,800 

156,960 

192,836 

233,360 

189.567 

Contributions as 
a % of Covered 

Payroll 

9.26% 

8.50% 

8.00% 

7.79% 

7.50% 

7.50% 

41.50% 

38.10% 

38.00% 

40.10% 

40.10% 

42.40% 

9.25% 

9.00% 

8.01% 

7.71% 

7.50% 

7.50% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become 
available. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Primary Government 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

There were no changes of benefit assumptions for the year ended June 30, 2016, 2017, 2018, and 
2019. 

Other changes are as follows; 

Valuation Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 

Discount Rate 7.000% 7.275% 7.40% 7.50% 7.50% 7.75% 

Inflation Rate 2.500% 2.600% 2.775% 2.875% 2.875% 3.00% 

Projected Salary V ary from 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.75% 

Increase 7.4% in first (including (including (including (including (including 
4 years of inflation and inflation and inflation and inflation and inflation and 
service to merit) merit) merit) merit) merit) 
4.9% after 4 
years 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System: 

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

There were no changes of benefit assumptions for the year ended June 30, 2016, 2017, 2018, and 
2019. 

Other changes are as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30,2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 

Discount Rate 7.125% 7.20% 7.325% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 

Inflation Rate 2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.875% 2.875% 3.00% 

Projected Salary Vary from Vary from Vary from Vary from Vary from Vary from 
Increase 9.75% in 9.75% m 9.75% in 9.75% in 9.75% in 10% in first 

first 2 years first year of first year of first year of first year of year of 
of service to service to service to service to service to service to 
4.25% after 4.25% after 4.25% after 4.25% after 4.25% after 4.4% after 
23 years 23 years 23 years 23 years 23 years 30 years 

See auditor's report. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Firefighters' Retirement System: 

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

There were no changes of benefit assumptions for the year ended June 30, 2016, 2017, 2018, and 
2019. 

Other chanees are as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2019 June 30,2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30,2014 

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.30% 7.40% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 

Inflation Rate 2.50% 2.70% 2.775% 2.875% 2.875% 3.00% 

Projected Salaty Vary from Vary from Vary from Vary from Vary from Vary from 
Increase 14.75% in 15% in first 15% in first 15% in lirst 15% in first 15% in first 

first 2 years 2 years of 2 years of 2 years of 2 years of 2 years of 
of service to service to service to service to service to service to 
4.5% after 4.75% after 4.75% after 4.75% after 4.75% after 5.5% after 
25 years 25 years 25 years 25 years 25 years 14 years 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System: 

Changes of Benefit Terms include: 

• A 1.5% COLA, effective July 1, 2014, provided by Act 102 of the 2014 Louisiana Regular 
Legislative Session, and, 

• Improved benefits for certain members employed by the Office of Adult Probation and Parole 
within the Department of Public Safety and Corrections as established by Act 852 of 2014. 

• There were no changes of benefit assumptions for the year ended June 30,2016,2017,2018, and 
2019. 

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

ValuationDate Jime30,2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 Jime30,2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 

Discount Rate 7.60% 7.65% 7.70% 7.75% 7.75% 7.75% 

InllationRate 2.50% 2.75% 2.75% 3.000% 3.000% 3.000% 

Projected Salary 2.8% to 2.8% to 2.8% to 3% to 5.5% 3% to 5.5% 3% to 5.5% 
Increase 5.3% 5.3% 5.3% 

See auditor's report 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Component Units 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

There were no changes of benefit assumptions for the year ended June 30,2015,2016,2017,2018, 
and 2019. 

Other changes are as follows: 

December December December Deceni>er December December 
Valuation Date 31,2019 3E2018 31,2017 31,2016 31,2015 3E2014 

Discoimt Rate 6.50% 6.50% 6.75% 7.00% 7.00% 7.25% 

Inflation Rate 1.85% 2.40% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 3.00% 

Projected Salary 5.25% 4.25% 5.25% 5.75% 5.25% 5.75% 
Increase (1.85% (2.40% (2.50% (3.00% (2.50% (3.00% 

Inflation, Inflation, Inflation, Inflation, Inflation, Inflation, 
3.40% 1.85% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 
Merit) Merit) Merit) Merit) Merit) Merit) 

See auditor's report 
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, 
or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities 
and other capital assets. The capital projects fiind excludes those type of capital related outflows financed 
by proprietary funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private organizations or other 
governments. 

Capital Projects Fund - This fund is used to account for the costs of ma-jor repairs and construction of 
City streets, for the costs of improving major drainage arteries throughout the City, and for the 
construction costs and/or major renovation costs to various City buildings. 

DEBT SERVICE FUxND 

Debt service funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or 
assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. 

1994 Paving Certificates Debt Service Fund - This fund was used to account for the collection of a 
special assessment on the property owners of the Lakeland Acres Subdivision. The proceeds of such 
collections to be used to make annual payments on the 1994 Paving Certificates of Indebtedness 
incurred for the benefit of the property owners of the Lakeland Acres Subdivision. The special 
assessment debt has been paid and at June 30, 2020, only the balance of excess cash remains in the 
fund. 

PERMANENT FUND 

Permanent funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only 
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the City's programs - that is, for the 
benefit of the City or its citizenry. 

Cemetery Care Permanent Fund - This fund is used to account for principal trust amounts received 
and related interest income. The interest portion of the trust can be used to maintain the City's 
cemetery. 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt services or capital projects. 

Witness Fee Fund - This fund is used to account for the cost of court appearances by police officers at 
the City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II to provide testimony. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2020 

Exliibit D-1 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Due from Other Governments 

Total Assets 

Capital 
Projects 

Fund 

71,405 
2,773 

74,17^ 

1994 Paving 
Certificates 

Debt 
Service 

Fund 

Cemetery 
Care 

Permanent 
Fund 

3,269 S 1,138,873 

3,269 $ 1,138,873 

Wimess Fee 
Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

163,292 S 1,376,839 
2,773 

163,292 S 1,379,612 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Accounts Payable $ 1,185 S 

Total Liabilities 1,185 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable: 

Permanent Fund Principal 
Restricted For: 

Witness Fees 
Other Purposes 

Assigned To: 
Capital Projects 72,993 

3,269 

1,625 

1,625 

1,137,24^ 

163.292 

2,810 

2,810 

1,137,248 

163,292 
3,269 

72,993 

Total Fund Balances 72,993 3,269 1,137,248 163,292 1,376,802 

Total Liabilities and 
Fund Balances S 74,178 $ 3,269 S 1,138,873 J g 163,292 S 1,379,612 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit D-2 

CITY OF DENHAYl SPRINGS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal Grants 
Fees 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Capital 
Projects 

Fund 

1994 Paving 
Certificates 

Debt 
Service 
Fund 

232 

Cemetery-
Care 

Permanent 
Fund 

2,708 
79,670 

Witness Fee 
Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

10.319 
198 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

232 
10,319 

2,906 
79.670 

232 ^2,378 .0.517 93.127 

Expenditures: 
Current; 

General Govemment 
Capital Outlay: 

Highways and Streets 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
over (under) Expenditures 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

Fund Balances at End of Year 

79.651 

79.65; 

(79,419) 

152.412 3,269 

72.993 

4,798 

77,580 

.059,668 

3,269 S 1,137,248 

11.083 

(566) 

.63.858 

163.292 

15.881 

79.651 

95.532 

(2,405) 

1.379.207 

1.376.802 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



Exhibit D-3 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Budgeted Amounts Variance With 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal Grants 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Construction Costs and 

Related Expenditures 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of 
Revenues Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources: 
Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance at End of Year 

Original Final Actual Final Budget 

$ $ 232 $ 232 

- - 232 232 

220,520 84,985 79,651 5,334 

220,520 84,985 79,651 5,334 

(220,520) (84,985) 

84,985 

(79,419) 5,566 

(84,985) 

_ 84,985 _ (84,985) 

(220,520) 

152,412 152,412 

(79,419) 

152,412 

(79,419) 

$ (68,108) ; S 152,412 $ 72,993 $ (79,419) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit D-4 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

WITNESS FEE FUND -
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET (GAAP BASISI AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Revenues: 
Fees 
Interest 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original 

13,000 
200 

Final 

9,314 
200 

Actual 

10,319 
198 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

$ 1,005 
(2) 

Total Revenues 13,200 9.514 10,517 1,003 

Expenditures: 
General Government 11,422 11.467 11.083 384 

Total Expenditures 11,422 11.467 11,083 384 

Net Change in Fund Balance 1,778 (1,95.3) (566) 1,387 

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance at End of Year 

163,858 

165,636 

163.858 

161.905 

163,858 

163,292 1,387 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit E-1 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS^ 
SCHEDULE BY SOURCE 

JUNE 30, 2020 

Governmental Funds Capital Assets: 
Land and Right-of-Ways $ 1,781,721 
Land Improvements 77,711 
Buildings 4,599,25 8 
Equipment 7,184,477 
Infrastructure 7,259,714 
Construction in Progress 1,316,798 

^This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental 
funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in the internal service fund are 
excluded from the above amounts. The capital assets of the internal service fund 
are included as governmental activities in the statement of net position. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
126 

Total Capital Assets S 22,219,679 

Investments in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source: 
General Fund Revenues $ 6,222,105 
Federal Revenues and Federal Grants 2,913,009 
Donated Infrastructure 649,138 
Capital Improvement Funds: 

City's Share of Cost: 
General Fund 7,990,081 
Federal Revenue Sharing 201,482 

Federal Grants 2,007,849 
State Grants 2,236,015 

Total Investment in Capital Assets $ 22,219,679 



Exhibit E-2 

CAPITAL 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF QOWRNMENTAL FUNDS 
SCHEDULE BY FLJNCTION AND ACTI\TTY' 

Constiiiction in Fiogiess 

'This schedule presents only tlie capital asset balances related to goveinmeiita 
fmids. Accordingly, tlie capital assets reported in tlie internal sei-vice fmid art 
excluded from the above amounts. The capital assets of the internal service func 
are included as governmental activities in the statement of net position. 

JUNE 30, 2020 

Land and 
Right-

of-Ways 

Improvements 
Other Than 
Buildings Buildings 

Machinery 
and 

Equipment Infrastructure Total 
FuDction and Acthity: 

General Government: 
General Government Buildings 
Administration 
Cemetery 
Tax 
Planning and Development 
Public Service Workers 

$ 882,700 
593,355 

2,000 

$ 13,950 

11,002 

$ 897,066 

10,313 

10,647 

S 
329,345 

9,243 
70,582 

S $ 1,793,716 
922,700 

23,315 
9,243 

70,582 
10,647 

Total General Goveniment 1,478,055 24,952 918,026 409,170 - 2,830,203 

Public Safet>': 
Animal Contr ol 
Fire 
Police 

1,500 
8,250 

201.482 

34,031 

8.953 

152,237 
610,542 

1.475,445 

113,354 
2,489,382 
2.111,874 

- 301,122 
3,108,174 
3.797,754 

Total Public Safety 211.232 42.984 2,238,224 4,714,610 - 7,207,050 

Highways and Streets: 
Streets 2,748 - 122,027 2,056,459 6,715,378 8,896,612 

Health: 
Cotmcil on Aging _ _ 370,890 - - 370,890 

Culture and Recreation: 

Tomism 

Parks 89,686 9,775 
950,091 684 

3,5.54 
168,253 
376.083 

1,119,028 
479,098 

Total Cultme and Recreation 89.686 9.775 950,091 4,238 544.336 1,598,126 

Total Governmental Funds Capital 
Assets Allocated to Fimctions $ 1,781,721 $ 77,711 $ 4,599,258 $ 7,184,477 S 7,259,714 20,902,881 

1,316,798 

$ 22.219,679 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY^ 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Exhibit E-: 

Function and Activity: 
General Government: 

General Government Buildings 
Administration 
Cemetery 
Tax 
Planning and Development 
Public Service Workeo 

Council on Aging 

Culture and Recreation: 
Tourism 
Parks 

Governmental 
Funds Capital 

Assets 
6/30/19 

2,136,943 
892,181 

36,510 
8,417 

56,495 
10,647 

Transfers 

(13,738) 
(2,695) 

13,261 

Additions 

916,198 
44.257 

Govermnental 
Funds Capital 

Assets 
Deductions 6/30/20 

1.259,425 S 1.793,716 
922.700 

10,500 23,315 
9,243 

70,582 
10,647 

370,890 

1,119,028 
479.098 

Total General Government 3,141,193 (3,172) 962,107 1,269,925 2,830,203 

Public Safety: 
Animal Control 261,258 - 74,353 34,489 301,122 
Fire 3,171,586 (2,200) 83.391 144,603 3,108.174 
Police 3,907,867 - 117,182 227,295 3,797,754 

Total Public Safety 7,340,711 (2,200) 274,926 406,387 7,207,050 

Highways and Streets: 
Streets 8,432,346 5,372 616,918 158,024 8,896,612 

Health: 
370,890 

1.119,028 
479,098 

Total Culture and Recreation 1,598,126 - - 1,598,126 

Construction in Progress 349,530 1,883,466 916,198 1,316,798 

Total Governmental Funds 
Capital Assets $ 21,232,796 $ $ 3,737,417 $ 2.750,534 S 22,219,679 

'This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental 
funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in the internal service fund are 
excluded from the above amounts. The capital assets of the intemal seivdce fund 
are included as governmental activities in the statement of net position. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE 

.TUNE 30, 2020 

Schedule 3 

Insurance 

CNA Surety 

Hanover Insurance 
Company 

Coverage 

Public Official Bonds 
Mayor; Gerard Landry 

Council Members; 
Amber Dugas 
Laura Schmitt-Smith 
.Jeffrey Wesley 
Robert Poole 
Lori Lamm-Williams 

Public Employees Blanket Bond: 
City Treasurer: 

Michelle Hood 
City Clerk: 

Joan LeBlanc 
Public Employees Bond 

Property and Casualty 
Coverage -

90% Co-Insurance; 

Steel Water Tank and Tower 
110 Brignac Street 

Council on Aging Buildings 
949 Government Street 

Police Station and Jail Facility 
Contents 
447 Lamm Street 

Amount 

50,000 

10,000 
10,000 
10,000 
10,000 
10,000 

50,000 

50,000 
25,000 

326,453 

1,056,541 

1,796,753 
183,281 

Expiration 
Date 

1/01/21 

1/01/21 
1/01/21 
1/01/21 
1/01/21 
1/01/21 

12/11/20 

2/06/21 
2/18/21 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

Sewer Building 
Contents 
9300 Forest Delatte Road 

92,203 
17,738 7/01/20 

Sewer Lab Building 
Storage Building (for equipment) 
9300 Forest Delatte Road 

10,400 
20,800 7/01/20 

(CONTINUED) 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE rCONTINUED) 

.TUNE 30, 2020 

Schedule 3 
(Continued) 

Insurance Coverage Amount 
Expiration 

Date 

Hanover Insurance Company 
Company 

Animal Control Buildini 
Contents 
600-C Bowman St. 

74,654 
2,365 7/01/20 

SADD 
Office Building 
115 Hummell St. 

90,372 7/01/20 

Bronze Statue 
Contents 
140 Centerville St. 

16,000 7/01/20 

Street Department 
940 Government Street 

336,942 7/01/20 

Utility Warehouse Building 
Contents 
112 Brignac Street 

Motor Pool and Warehouse 
Building 
Contents 
401 N. Railroad Ave. 

Arts CounciERed Cross 
Building 
133 Hummel St 

Steel Water Tank and Tower 
27135 EA Hwvl6 

177,676 
36,657 

335,311 
91,050 

202,451 

662,140 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

Old City Hall Building 
Contents 
115 Mattie St. 

Steel Water Tank and Tower 
23322 Snringhill Drive 

; 859,869 
; 23,649 

;2,508,748 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

(CONTINUED) 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE rCONTINUED) 

Schedule 3 
(Continued) 

Insurance 

Liberty Mutual 

Louisiana Workers' 
Compensation 
Corporation 

AmGuard 

VFIS, Inc. 

.TUNE 30, 2020 

Coverage 

Sewer Treatment Plant 
Scheduled Equipment 
Contractor Equipment 
9300 Forest Delatte Road 

Workmen's Compensation 
Statutory 

General Liability 
Law Enforcement 
Professional Liability 

Public Officials 
and Employees Liability 
Errors and Omissions 

Business Auto 
Liability 

Vehicle Physical 
Damage - Except Fire 

Property and Casualty 
Coverage -
Fire Station Building 
Contents 
1100 HatchellLane 

Fire Station/' 
Water Department Office 
Building 
Contents 
27135 LA Hwv 16 

Fire Station Building 
Contents 

Vehicle Liability & 
Physical Damage - Fire 
930 Government Street 

Amount 

$4274,386 
Actual Cash Value 

$ 500,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,000,000 

$ 500,000 

Actual Cash Value 

240,365 
133,120 

837,959 
138,320 

. 457,912 
135,200 

; 1,000,000 

Expiration 
Date 

7/01/20 
7/01/20 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 
7/01/20 

7/01/20 
7/01/20 

7/01/20 
7/01/20 

7/01/20 

(CONTINUED) 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE rCONTINUED) 

.TUNE 30, 2020 

Schedule 3 
(Continued) 

Insurance 

Hartford Ins. 

Coverage 

Flood Insurance: 

Youth Services Office Buildin| 
Contents 
940 Government Street 

Municipal Building 
Contents 
941 Government Street 

Amount 

120,000 
50,000 

25,000 
-0-

Expiration 
Date 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

Council on Aging Building 1 
Council on Aging Building 2 
Contents 
949 Government Street 

Police Station and 
Jail Facility 
Contents 
447 Lamm Street 

Animal Control Center 
Building 
Contents 
600-C Bowman Street 

500,000 
225,000 

-0-

500,000 
300,000 

19,400 
10,000 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 
7/01/20 

Gas Department Building 
Contents 
401 E. Railroad Avenue 

Old City Hall Building 
Contents 
115 Mattie Street 

Sewer Lab Building 
Sewer Office Building 
Contents 
9300 Forrest Delatte Road 

500,000 
100,000 

500,000 
100,000 

50,000 
50,000 
25,000 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

7/01/20 

Arts Council Buildin| 
Contents 
133 Hummel Street 

100,000 
50,000 7/01/20 

(CONTINUED) 

133 



Schedule 3 
(Continued) 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE rCONTINUED) 

.TUNE 30, 2020 

Insurance 

Hartford Ins. 

Coverage 

Flood Insurance (continued); 

Cit}^ Hall Building 
Contents 
116 N. Range Ave. 

Amount 

500,000 
500,000 

Expiration 
Date 

7/01/20 

Excess Flood Coverage-Aon City Hall (Building Only) 
116 N. Range Ave. 

500,000 8/15/20 

Traveler's Insurance Crime Policy 250,000 6/30/2021 

See auditor's report. 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 



STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the City of Denham Springs' comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note 
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the govemmenf s overall financial health. 

Contents Page 

Financial Trends 146 
These schedules contain trend infonnation to help the reader understand how 
the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 156 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most 
significant local revenue source, the sales tax. 

Debt Capacity 163 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's 
ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 171 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 
reader understand the environment within which the City's financial 
activities take place. 

Operating Information 174 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the infonnation in the City's financial report relates to the 
services the City provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources; Unless otherwise noted, the infonnation in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. 
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Schedule 4 
Cl'n' OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENTS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Governmental Activities: 
Net Investment in 

Capita] Assets 
Restiicted 
Umestiicted (Deficit) 

201 

839.347 
2.328.944 

Total Govermnental Activities -
NetPosition S 11.472,010 

Business-Type .Activities: 
Net Investment in 

Capital Assets 
Restiicted 
Umestiicted (Deficit) 

Fiscal Year 

S 17,939.388 
3,993 

(755,714) 

Total Business-Type Activities -
NetPosition S 17,187,667 

2012 2013 2014 

S.303,719 $ 8,471.515 
877,924 

1,855.098 

8.151,415 
921,576 

1.907,078 

11,204,537 S 10,980,069 $ 10,936,978 

16,891,492 
4,045 

(427.300) 

16,210,790 $ 13.425,685 
25 51 

(403,066) 1,130,865 

16,468,237 S 15,807,749 $ 14,556.601 

2015 2016 

7,959.533 $ 7,833,690 S 7,578.587 
974,571 1,039.675 1,076,407 

2,002.874 (6,861,769) (6,361.194) 

2,011,596 

13,454.482 

2.293,^ 

11,743,652 S 11.092,592 

1,710,830 2,865.893 

13,958,485 

2017 

4,453,930 

10,709.842 

2.571.962 

13,281,804 

2018 2019 2020 

7.894,411 $ 8,852,195 S 9,414.293 $ 11,073.059 
1,110,623 1,161.182 1,226,795 1.303,809 

(4.551,104) (4,360,533) (5,203.819) (4,058.003) 

5,652,844 S 5.437,269 

10,489.376 S 10.804,788 

2,767,491 3,202.427 

13,256.867 14,007,215 

8,318,865 

12.520,637 

3,356,446 

15.877,083 

Primary Government: 
Net Investment in 

Capital Assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted (Deficit) 

Total Primary Goveinnient 
Net Position 

S 26,243.107 
843,340 

1,573,230 

25,363,007 
881.969 

1,427.798 

S 28.659,677 $ 27,672.774 

24,362,205 
921,601 

1,504,012 

$ 21.385,218 
974.622 

3,133,739 

19,577,342 S 18.671,179 
1,039,675 1,076,407 

(5,150,939) (3.495,301) 

26.787,818 $ 25,493.579 $ 15,466.078 S 16,252.285 

18,604.253 
1.110,623 

(1,979,142) 

19,341.571 S 20.219,081 
1,161,182 1,226,795 

(1,593,042) (2.001,392) 

17.735,734 $ 18.909.711 S 19,444.484 

23.593,696 
1,303,809 
(701,557) 

24,195.948 

The City of Denham Springs adopted the provisions of GASB 68 and 71 beginning 
July 1, 2014, and applied those provisions prospectively. 
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Schedule 5 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

Last Ten Fiscal Yeais 
(Acctual Basis of Accoutiting) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Expenses 
Govenunental Activities: 

General Govenmient $ 2,049,444 $ 2.076.944 $ 2.095,813 $ 2.023.504 $ 2,145,397 $ 2.152.354 $ 2.639.792 $ 2,437,965 $ 2.412.412 $ 2.639,104 
Public Safet>' 6,818,702 6.930.110 6.947,554 7.030.418 6,878,353 6,80.5.088 7.144.277 6,846,372 7,390.688 7.292,904 
Hialiways and Stteefs 2.406,333 1,927.226 1,995,902 1.927.344 2.453,904 1,971.847 S.776.069 2.875,109 2,077.107 1,961,810 
Health 82.048 52,623 44.438 39,680 74.835 51,650 30,273 29.310 34,409 35.587 
Culture and Recteafion 94.656 134,582 147.513 143,393 183.990 161,147 133,933 171.936 142,881 178.390 
Interest on Long-Teim 
Indebtedness 27,237 18,977 9.489 1.202 156 - - - - -
Total Governmental Activities Expenses 11,478.420 11,140,462 11,240.709 11.165,541 11,736.635 11,142,086 18.724,344 12,360.692 12,057,497 12,107.795 

Business-Type Activities: 
Gas 3.260.737 2.568,005 2,754.965 3.415,081 3.101.268 2.282.747 2.304,551 2.774.190 2.916.493 2,724.211 
Water 2.384.053 2.417.291 2,446.504 2,594,965 2.554.246 2.394.908 2,406,037 2.362.879 2.358.904 2,230.902 
Sewer 3,839.131 5.233.099 5,843.113 6.035.356 6.158,037 5,879.536 6.192.531 5.594,398 5,.597.303 5.507,610 
Sanitation 881,472 884.991 890,073 830.080 904,727 896.356 913.077 838,303 826.622 840,490 

Total Bissiuess-Type Activities 10,365.393 11.103.386 11,934.655 12.875,482 12,718.278 11.453.547 11.816,196 11,569.770 11.699.322 11,303.213 

Total Primary Government Expenses $ 21,843.813 $ 22,243,848 S 23,175.364 $ 24,041,023 $ 24,454.913 $ 22,595,633 $ 30,540,540 $ 23,930.462 $ 23,756,819 S 23,411.008 

Pi'ogi'am Revenues 
Govenunejital Activities: 

Cliarges for Services: 
Public Safety S 721,118 $ 663,914 S 764,673 $ 615,208 S 666,342 $ 543,245 S 355,745 S 465,411 $ 496,175 S 394,851 
Highways and Streets 14.510 12,850 12.850 12.850 12,8.50 12,850 12,850 11,835 11,835 10,820 

Operating Giants and Contributions 853,316 518,005 765,552 458,459 711,480 763,052 7.288.463 1,570,173 1.050.857 1,741,444 
Capital Grants and Contributions 276.453 563,364 29.762 - 337.369 - 691,742 1,157.290 344,415 2,287.87? 

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 1,865,397 1.758.133 1,572,837 1.086.517 1,728,041 1.319.147 8.348.800 3,204,709 1.903.282 4,434,992 

Business-Type Activities: 
Charges for Services: 

Nantral Gas 3,854,570 3.560.357 4,072,157 5.349.179 4,758,675 3.655.028 2.948.060 4,027,218 4.14S.175 3,672,678 
Water 2,332,431 2.879.773 2,943,436 3.354,399 3,387.207 3.446,017 3.015,738 3,187.169 3.291,115 3.427.6"4 
Sewer 2,424.324 3.000,401 3.221.524 3.594,076 3,370."35 3.458,451 3.033,149 3,194.199 3.319,161 3.495.222 
Sanitation 751.12" 791,828 "79.458 794,722 816.824 802,098 722,786 722.80" 760,465 "67.7I8 

Operating Grants and Conttibistions - 30.750 75.253 91,146 60.940 170,101 528,014 64.036 169,950 240.603 
Capital Giarits and Contributioris 2,761,000 281,339 147,779 71.938 532,141 385,893 466,531 320,451 715,543 1,369,021 

Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues 12,123.452 10,544,448 11.239.607 13,255,460 12,926.522 11,917,588 10,714,278 11,515.880 12,404,409 12.972.916 

Total Primary Govenunent Programs Revenues $ 13.988.849 $ 12,302,581 S 12,812.444 $ 14,341,977 $ 14.654.563 $ 13,236,735 $ 19,063,078 $ 14.720.589 $ 14,307,691 S 17,407.908 

Net Expease/Reveiaie 
Governmental Activities $ (9.613,023) $ (9,382.329) $ (9,667,872) $ (10.079.024) $ (10.008,594) $ (9,822.939) $ (10.375.544) $ (9.155,983) $ (10,154.215) $ (7,672,803) 
Business-Type Activities 1,758,059 (558.938) (695,048) 379.978 208,244 464.041 (1.101.918) (53,890) 705.087 1,669,703 

Total Pi imary Government Net Expense $ (7,854,964) $ (9,941,267) S (10,362,920) $ (9,699.046) $ (9,800,350) $ (9,358,898) $ (11,477.462) $ (9,209,873) $ (9,449,128) S (6,003,100) 

(CONTINUED) 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

ORANGE IN NET POSITION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Acaiial Basis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 

Schedule 5 

(Continued) 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 
General Revenues and Other Clianges in Net Position 

Govenunental Activities: 
Taxes: 
Property $ 215.189 3 ; 210,351 S i 218.788 $ 293,173 S 320.432 $ 319,365 S 275,364 S 289.60" : t 291,577 S 326.552 
Sales 6..343,589 6.627.015 6,904,506 7.249.345 7..347,545 7.281.993 8.389.648 7.823,526 7.399.855 7,687,752 
Occupational aiidpennits 959,812 996.867 1.021,659 1.020.538 1,029,019 1.070.043 1.041.368 1,055,098 1.044.131 1.043,182 
Frandiise 797,798 736.292 709,917 842,446 832.404 786.427 648,653 679.479 691.187 680,415 

Miscellaneous 571.449 538,527 584.829 622,875 584.526 636,518 1.179,183 486.758 453,842 771.851 
Interest Incoine 8,527 5,804 3,705 7,556 8,256 10,797 12,542 20.429 58,048 44.647 
Insurance Proceeds - - - - - - 988,916 - - -

Total Govemniental Activities 8,896,364 9.114.856 9,443,404 10.035.933 10,122,182 10.105.143 12.535.674 10,354,897 9.938.640 10,554,399 

Business-Type Activities: 
Miscellaneous 91.277 20,539 25.549 17,262 40.877 .10,134 128,700 14.300 23,965 22.095 
Interest Income 11.893 11,332 9.011 9,386 9.754 9,828 17,328 14.653 21,296 65.328 
Insurance Pr oceeds - - - - - - 279.209 - - 79,987 
Gain on Sale of Assets - - - - - - - - - 32,755 
Special Item - (192.363) - - - - - - - -

Total Bissiuess-Type Activities 103.170 (160,492) 34.560 26,648 50.631 39,962 425,237 28.953 45,261 200.165 

Total Primary Government $ 8.999.534 i i 8.954.364 i i 9,477,964 $ 10.062,581 $ 10,172,813 $ 10,145,105 $ 12.960,911 $ 10,383.850 ; S 9,983,901 S 10,754.564 

Change in Net Position 
Governmental Activities $ (716.659) 3 ; (267,47.3) S i (224.468) $ (43,091) $ 113.588 $ 282,204 $ 2,160,130 $ 1,198,914 : i (215,575) S 2.881.596 
Business-Type Activities 1,861,229 (719,430) (660.488) 406,626 258.875 504,003 (676,681) (24,93"7) 750,348 1.869.868 

Total Primary Govermnerit $ 1,144.570 3 ; (986,90.3) S i (884.956) $ 363,535 $ 372.463 $ 786,207 S 1,483,449 S 1,173.977 : t 5.34,773 S 4.751.464 
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Scliedule 6 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Last Ten Fiscal Teal's 
(Modified Accmal Basis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

2011 
Fiscal Year 

Z012 2013 2014 
Fiscal Yeai' 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

General Fund 

Prepaid Insurance 
Unassigned 

Total General Fund 

125.342 $ 172,462 S 112.097 $ 208,467 S 105.702 $ 88,670 S 50.376 $ 200,313 $ 65.222 $ 189.032 
2,617,281 2,107,487 2,178.728 2,283,061 2.015.310 2,355,986 4,422.595 4.341,799 3,771.290 5,111,739 

S 2,742.623 $ 2,279,949 S 2,290.825 $ 2,491,528 S 2.121.012 $ 2,444,656 S 4,472.971 $ 4,542,112 S 3.836.512 $ 5,300,771 

Ail Other Govermnental Funds 
Nonqtendable: 

Permanent Fund Principal 
Restricted For: 

Witness Fees 
Other Purposes 

Assigned To: 
Capital Projects 

Total Ail Other Governmental 
Funds 

752.020 $ 775,852 S 808,328 $ 853,534 

84,060 
3,267 

112.633 

S 951.S 

3,268 

148.456 

$ 1,026,380 

109.979 
3.269 

226,634 

117,768 
3,269 

162,034 

890,819 

145.587 
3,269 

92,983 

1.148,210 $ 1,136.605 $ 1.132.658 

923,037 S 948,401 $ 995,098 S 1.059.( 

150,101 
3,269 

167.583 

1,243,S 

158.953 
3.269 

161,357 

162,815 163.858 
3.269 3.269 

161,147 152.412 

$ 1,137,248 

163,292 
3,269 

72.993 

1.271,980 S 1,322,329 S 1.379.207 $ 1.376.802 

The City of Denham Springs adopted tlie provisions of GASB 54 beginning 
July 1, 2010, and applied those provisions letiospectively to each 
fiscal year that is presented. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Last Teo Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Schedule 7 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Licenses and Permits 
Fines and Forfeits 
Interest 
Fees 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General Govenmient 
Public Safety 
Highways and Streets 
Health 
Culture and Recreation 

Capital Outlay: 
General Government 
Highways and Streets 
Culture and Recreation 

Debt Service: 
Principal Retirement 
Interest 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

Otiier Financmg Sources (Uses) 
Capital Leases 
Insurance Proceeds 
Proceeds from Disposition of Assets 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Debt Service as a Percentage of 
Noncapital Expenditures 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

S 7,705.488 $ 7.913,056 $ 8,128.576 $ 8.657.791 S 8.738,638 $ 8.625,408 $ 9.478,989 : $ 8.958,286 S 8.567,949 S 8.857.987 
959.812 996,867 1,021,659 1,020.538 1.029,019 1.070,043 1.041,368 1.055.098 1.044.131 1.043.182 
658.025 606,737 707,249 566.769 596,819 493,339 325,256 422.245 457.777 360.880 

8.408 5.715 3.613 7,556 8.256 10.797 11.634 20,429 58,048 44,647 
57,549 50.744 52.909 43,094 64.116 45.480 32.756 40.846 35.498 27.895 

1.072,271 1,008.583 821,121 473,457 725.678 477.845 7,284,326 2,465,064 1,099,675 3,753,843 
300.089 291,198 306,231 362.995 399,068 389,994 717,434 310.228 286.774 598.234 

10,761.642 10.872,900 11,041.358 11.132.200 11.561,594 11.112,906 18.891,763 13.272,196 11.549,852 14.686,668 

1,952,557 2,039.948 2.034,979 1.970,382 2,142,114 2,087,443 2,569,637 2,324.424 2,572.660 4,141.389 
6,450.485 6.626,668 6,618.034 6.828.017 7.039,551 6.480,187 7.249,558 7.090,880 7.632,306 6.692,899 
1,537.640 1,614,129 1,624.567 1,595.646 1.661,674 1.708,065 8.360,867 2.155,051 1.641,684 2.181,365 

82.048 52,623 44,438 39.680 74,835 51,650 30,273 29.310 34.409 35.587 
73,787 86.196 141,423 124,809 1.56.141 108.028 76.281 113,224 82,924 119,023 

628.305 523,278 181,980 349.330 844,123 242,557 620,286 1.456.010 234.591 79.651 
235,807 175,213 3,828 - - - - - - -

209,594 220.214 247,028 33,744 17.314 _ _ _ _ _ 
30,378 22,405 12,375 1,494 305 - - - - -

11,200,601 11.360,674 10.908,652 10,943,102 11,936,057 10,677,930 18,906,902 13,168,899 12,198,574 13,249,914 

(438.959) (487,774) 132,706 189.098 (374,463) 434,976 (15,139) 103.297 (648.722) 1.436,754 

99.500 . . . . . . . . 
- - - - - - 988,916 - - -
- - - - - - 1.082,528 16.193 - 25.100 

337.158 235,353 260.682 284.730 496,259 316,680 - 131,9.30 80.000 -
(3.37.158) (235,353) (260,682) (284.730) (496,259) (316,680) - (131.930) (80.000) -

- 99,500 - - - - 2,071,444 16,193 - 25.100 

S (438.959) S (388,274) $ 132,706 $ 189.098 S (374,463) $ 434,976 $ 2.056,305 : S 119.490 $ (648.722) $ 1.461,8.54 

2.28% 2.32% 2,41% 0.34% 0.16% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
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Schedule 8 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Occupational Charitable 
Fiscal Property Sales Franchise Licenses Gaming 
Year Tax Tax Tax and Pennits Tax Total 

2011 215,189 6,343,589 797,798 959,812 303,092 8,619,480 
2012 210,351 6,627,015 736,292 996,867 286,920 8,857,445 
2013 218,788 6,904,506 709,917 1,021,659 240,546 9,095,416 
2014 293,173 7,249,345 842,446 1,020,538 216,595 9,622,097 
2015 320,432 7,347,545 832,404 1,029,019 179,736 9,709,136 
2016 319,365 7,281,993 786,427 1,070,043 181,399 9,639,227 
2017 275,364 8,389,648 648,653 1,041,368 111,326 10,466,359 
2018 289,607 7,823,526 679,479 1,055,098 101,497 9,949,207 
2019 291,577 7,399,855 691,187 1,044,131 112,000 9,538,750 
2020 326,552 7,687,752 680,415 1,043,182 84,643 9,822,544 
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Schedule 9 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE 
OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

Last Ten Years 
(Unaudited) 

Total Ratio of Total 
Direct Assessed Value 

Assessed Tax Estimated to Total Estimated 
Year Value Rate Actual Value Actual Value* 

2011 $ 78,768,530 2.75 $ 716,077,545 11% 
2012 77,289,790 2.75 702,634,455 11 
2013 79,817,110 2.75 725,610,091 11 
2014 82,401,100 3.60 749,100,909 11 
2015 85,650,350 3.73 778,639,545 11 
2016 85,660,850 3.73 778,735,000 11 
2017 81,148,660 3.48 737,715,091 11 
2018 84,082,230 3.48 764,383,909 11 
2019 85,189,780 3.48 774,452,545 11 
2020 88,109,420 3.72 800,994,727 11 

*Actual Valuation (Market Value) as Compared to Assessed Valuation 

Residential properties are assessed at 10% of fair market value; commercial and industrial 
properties, excluding land, are assessed at 15%. The overall assessed value is estimated to 
be 11 % of actual market value. 

SOURCE: Livingston Parish Assessor's Grand Recapitulation of the Assessment Roll for the 
Parish of Livingston. 

NOTE: Additional information concerning estimated values by types of property was not currentl} 
readily available. 
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Schedule 10 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

PROPERTY TAX RATES AND TAX LEVIES 
DIRECT AND 0\^RLAPPrNG GO\TRNMENTS 

Last Ten Years 
(Umudited) 

Cit>' of Denham Spring- Parish Special Districts Livinaston Parish School Board 
Drainage Law Juverrile Total Additional Debt Total 

Fiscal Operating Total City District Recreation Enforcement Delenriorr Parish Operatiorral Support Maintenance Construction Service School Total Direct 
Year Millage Millage Parishwide' #1 District #3 District Center Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage MiOages Overlapping 

2011 2.75 2.75 42.84 3.99 17.00 10.55 3.00 77.38 3.29 7.18 7.00 5.00 18.29 40.76 120.89 
2012 2.75 2.75 44.15 5.00 17.00 10.55 2.75 79.45 3.29 7.18 7.00 5.00 13.88 36.35 118.55 
2013 2.75 2.75 44.66 4.85 16.00 10.55 2.75 78.81 3.29 7.18 7.00 4.73 12.03 34.23 115.79 
2014 3.60 3.60 45.56 4.85 16.00 10.55 2.75 79.71 3.29 7.18 7.00 5.00 11.47 33.94 117.25 
2015 3.73 3.73 45.67 4.85 16.00 10.55 2.75 79.82 3.29 7.18 7.00 5.00 11.22 33.69 117.24 
2016 3.73 3.73 43.61 5.00 15.35 10.55 2.75 77.26 3.29 7.18 7.00 5.00 10.97 33.44 114.43 
2017 3.48 3.48 43.11 4.43 15.35 10.55 2.75 76.19 3.29 7.18 7.00 5.00 9.64 32.11 111.78 
2018 3.48 3.48 41.29 4.43 15.10 10.55 2.75 74.12 3.29 7.18 7.00 5.00 11.64 34.11 111.71 
2019 3.48 3.48 41.29 4.43 15.10 10.55 2.75 74.12 3.29 7.18 7.00 5.00 11.64 34.11 111.71 
2020 3.72 3.72 41.79 4.43 15.00 10.55 2.75 74.52 3.29 7.18 7.00 5.00 10.14 32.61 110.85 

'Parishwide - includes all or some of the following; 
Parish,'Tocal, Dixon Sinking, Couiihouse Sinking. Road Equipment-'Maintenaiice. Drainage Tax, 
Council on Aging. Courtliouse Maintenance. Health Unit. Library, and Assessor. 

SOURCE: Livingston Parish Assessor's Grand Recapitulafiorr of tlie Assessment Roll for the Parish 
of Livinaston. 
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Schedule 11 

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY^ TAXPAYERS 

CiuTent Year and Nine Years Ago 
(Unaudited) 

2020 2011 

Name of Taxpayer 

All Star Dealership Properties 

Wahnait Louisiana, LLC 

Sam's East, Inc./Ileal Estate 

Business Trust 
Home Depot #0375 
Capital One Rank 
•^Iiitney Bank/Hancock 

Bank of Louisiana 
First Guaranty Bank 
Entergy Gulf States, LLC 
Spring Park 

Property Owner, LLC 
Regions Bank 
Bellsouth/AT&T 

Telecommunications 
Bass Pro Outdoor World 
Cox Communications Inc. 

T3^e of Business 

Auto Dealership 

Retail 

Retail 
Retail 
Bank 

Bank 
Bank 
Public Utility 

Real Estate 
Bank 

T elecommimications 
Retail 
T elecommunications 

Assessed 
Valuation 

6.476,400 

2,885,120 

2,347,590 
2,091,380 
1,234,570 

1.170,170 
1.028,920 

956,770 

720,570 
671.300 

Rank 

1 

2 

3 
4 
5 

6 
7 

9 
10 

Percentage of 
Total Taxable 

Assessed Value 

7.35% 

3.27 

2.66 
2.37 
1.40 

1.33 
1.17 
1.09 

0.82 
0.76 

S 19.582.790 22.23% 

Assessed 
Valuation 

1,377.49 

2.756.69 

t.601,930 

1,287.920 
666.720 
653,790 

826.130 

2,423,180 
1,859,610 
1,192,760 

$ 14.646.220 

Rank 

5 

1 

9 
10 

Percentage of 
Total Taxable 

Assessed Value 

1.75% 

3.50 

2.03 

1.64 
0.85 
0.83 

1.05 

3.08 
2.36 
1.51 

18.60% 

Source: Livinsston Parish Assessor's Office. 
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Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 12 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

Collected Within the 
Fiscal Year of Levy Total Collections to Date 

Total Tax Collections in 
Fiscal Year Levy For Percentage Subsequent Percentage of 

Ended June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Le\'y Years Amount Levy 

2011 $ 216,457 $ 209,089 96.60 % S 5,221 $ 214,310 99.01 % 
2012 212,394 208,209 98.03 2,858 211,067 99.38 
2013 219,339 213,381 97.28 2,792 216,173 98.56 
2014 296,969 289,873 97.61 4,750 294,623 99.21 
2015 319,044 313,950 98.40 3,173 317,123 99.40 
2016 319,087 315,134 98.76 2,750 317,884 99.62 
2017 282,235 272,614 96.59 3,794 276,408 97.94 
2018 292,438 286,190 97.86 2,859 289,049 98.84 
2019 296,290 288,765 97.46 3,549 292,314 97.46 
2020 328,120 316,248 96.38 - 316,248 96.38 
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Schedule 13 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

MUNICIPAL TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY - GENERA!. SAT FS AND USE TAX 
(AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Standard Industrial 
Classification Code 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Agriculture, Forestry, 
and Fishing 

Mining 

Construction 

Manufacturing 

Transportation and 
Public Utilities 

^Tiolesale Trade 

Other Retail Trade 

Vehicle 

Food Stores 

Finance, Insurance, 
and Real Estate 

Services 

N/A N/A 

N/A N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N./A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A I/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A /A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A J/A N/A N./A 

21,758 20,324 23,540 21,423 21,431 22,165 53,211 19,640 17,655 

NA 

N/A 

NA 

Public Administration N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N./A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

J/A N/A 

I/A N/A 

I/A N/A 

N/A 

N./A 

N/A 

N/A N/A N/A 

Source; Livingston Parish School System's Sales Tax Department which is 
Collector of City of Denham Springs Municipal 1 1/2 % Sales and Use Taxes 
currently does not compile sales tax data by standard industrial code. 

2020 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

21,875 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 14 

Govenunental Activities Business - Type Activities 
Fiscal General Total Percentage 

Year Ended Obligation Certificates of Capital Capital Primary of Per sonal Per 
Jime 30 Bonds Indebtedness Lease Revenue Bonds Lease Govermnent Income Population^ Capita 

2011 $ - $ $ 418,800 $ 54,378,780 $ $ 54,797,580 N/A 10,215 $ 5,364.42 
2012 - 298,086 53,716,061 - 54,014,147 N/A 10,390 5,198.67 
2013 - 72,275 53,028,341 229,167 53,329,783 N/A 10,129 5,265.06 
2014 - 34,023 52,315,485 180,475 52,529,983 N/A 10,215 5,142.44 
2015 - 12,085 53,241,999 130,533 53,384,617 N/A 10,251 5,207.75 
2016 - 7,343 53,001,589 79,309 53,088,241 N/A 10,215 5,197.09 
2017 - 1,552 54,782,954 16,754 54,801,260 N/A 10,314 5,313.29 
2018 - - 53,169,292 - 53,169,292 N/A 10,332 5,146.08 
2019 - - 51,477,555 - 51,477,555 N/A 10,327 4,984.75 
2020 49,682,805 49,682,805 N/A 10,295 4,825.92 

Note: Details regarding tire City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to tire fmancial statements. 

Source: Population of the City of Denhain Springs obtained from tlie State Treasurer's Office. 
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Schedule 15 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 
Year 

2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds 

Less: Amounts 
Available in Debt 

Servdce Fund Total 

Percentage of 
Estimated 

Actual Taxable 
Value of Per 
Property Capita 

N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 

Note; Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

The City has had no outstanding general obligation bonds in the past ten years. 
Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics on Schedule 19. 
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Schedule 16 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

JUNE 30, 2020 
(Unaudited) 

Amounts In 
Debt Service 

Gross Debt Fund For Net Debt 

Outstanding Principal Outstanding 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT - Direct Debt 

City of Denham Springs S - S -

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES - Overlapping Debt 

City of 
Denliam Springs 

Estimated 
Percentage 

Applicable' 

100% 

Share of 

Debt 

School District #1 
Library Bonds 
Livingston Parish -

Recreation District No. 3 
Recreation District No. 3 

12,270,000 
3,240,000 

8,560,000 
150.000 

1,094,810 
975,576 

762,891 
183,588 

11,175,190 
2,264,424 

7,797,109 
(33,588) 

2020 Population 

Per Capita 

29% 
11% 

37% 
37% 

3,240,805 
249,087 

2,884,930 
(12,428) 

Total Other 
Governmental 
Agencies 24,220,000 3,016,865 21,203,135 6,362,394 

Total Direct and 
Overlapping 
Debt S 24,220,000 S 3,016,865 S 21,203,135 $ 6,362,394 

10,295 

618 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the 
City^ This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne 
by the residents and businesses of the City of Denham Springs. This process recognizes that, when considering 
the City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses 
should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore 
responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government. 

Net Overlapping Debt is computed to demonstrate the total property tax burden on the taxpayers within the 
reporting government's geographic jurisdiction and the total debt that their property taxes will be expected to 
repay. 

' The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable 
percentages were estimated by detennining the portion of the Parish's taxable assessed value that is within the 
City's boundaries and dividing it by the Parish's total taxable assessed value. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

Last Ten Years 
(Uiiandited) 

Schedule 17 

Debt Limit 

Total Net Debt 
Applicable to Limit 

Legal Debt Margin 

2011 20L Z0I3 2014 >015 2016 2017 >018 2019 

S 7,876,853 S 7,728,979 S 7,981.711 $ 8,240.110 $ 8.565.035 $ 8.566,085 S 8.114,856 8,408.223 $ 8,518.5 

>020 

8.810.942 

S 7.876,853 $ 7,728,979 S 7,981.711 $ 8,240.110 $ 8.565.035 $ 8.566,085 S 8.114,856 S 8,408.223 $ 8,518.978 $ 8.810.942 

Total Net Debt Applicable 
to the Limit as a Percentage 
of tlie Debt Limit 0.00% 0.00% O.OOI-t 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Note: LTider state finance law, the City of Denham Springs' outstanding 
general obligation debt should not exceed 10 percent of total assessed property 
value. By law, tlie general obligation debt subject to the limitation may be 
offset by amoimts set aside for repajdng general obligation bonds. 

Legal Debt Marain Calculation for Fiscal Year 2020 

Total Assessed Value $ 88.109,420 

Debt Limit (10%o of Total 
Assessed Value) $ 8,810.942 

Less: Debt Applicable to Limit: 
General Obligation Bonds -

Legal Debt Margin S 8,810.942 

150 



CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE 

Last Ten Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 18 

Year 

Utility' Revenue Bonds Special Assessment Certificates 

Year 

Gross 

Revenue' 

Other 
Financial 

Sources^ Expenses' 

Available 
for Debt 

Service 

Debt Service 

Total Coverage 

Special 
Assessment Debt Service 

Coverage Year 

Gross 

Revenue' 

Other 
Financial 

Sources^ Expenses' 

Available 
for Debt 

Service Principal Interest Total Coverage Collections Principal Interest Coverage 

2011 $ 9,563,886 $ $ 7,162,349 $ 2,401,537 $ 635,000 $ 2.471,445 " $ 3,106,445 0.77 $ - $ - $ - N/A 
2012 10,294,980 - 6,858,537 3,436,443 660,000 2,447,190 " 3,107,190 1.11 . N/A 
2013 11,126,388 - 7,262,961 3,863,427 708,888 2.425.081 3.133.969 1.23 - N/A 
2014 13,210,170 - 8,251,027 4,959,143 758,692 2.400.873 3.1.59.565 1.57 - N/A 
2015 12.445.012 - 8.204.298 4,240,714 779,692 2,283,432 3.063.124 1.38 . N/A 
2016 11,571,657 - 7,107,991 4,463,666 1,331,224 2.104.449 3.435.673 1.30 - N/A 
2017 10,672,984 - 7,909,948 2,763,036 1,662,555 1.682.839 3.345.394 0.83 - N/A 
2018 11,224,382 - 7,487,609 3,736,773 1,615,000 1,875,240 3.490.240 1.07 . N/A 
2019 11,868,000 - 7,712,714 4,155,286 1,690,000 1,820,436 3,510,436 1.18 - N/A 
2020 11,804,060 - 7,418,124 4,385,936 1,740,000 1,756,919 3,496,919 1.25 - N/A 

'Total Operating Revenues plus Non-Operaiing Revenues plus Capitalized Interest Income 

^Total Operating Expenses plus Non-Operating Expenses less Depreciation and Debt Seivice Interest 
on Revenue Bonds not capitalized 

^Transfers In 

''interest capitalized during consfniction plus Debt Service Interest on Revenue Bonds not capitalized 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

East Ten Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 19 

Year Population 

Personal 
Income 
(amounts 
expressed 

in thousands) 

Per 
Capita 

Income' 
Median 

5 Age-

Public 
School 

Enrollment 

Unemployment 
Livingston 

Parish 

Unemployment 
Labor 

Market Area"' 

2011 10,215 $ 325,164 $ 31,832 N/A 24,468 8.0 8.4 
2012 10,390 347,920 33,486 N/A 24,773 8.2 8.7 
2013 10,148 346,634 34,158 N/A 25,830 6.9 7.8 
2014 10,215 370,089 36,230 N/A 25,603 4.9 6.3 
2015 10,251 344,885 33,644 N/A 25,845 5.6 6.5 
2016 10,215 345,798 33,852 N/A 25,714 5.6 6.0 
2017 10,314 282,965 27,435 N/A 25,295 4.9 5.2 
2018 10,332 285,917 27,673 N/A 25,460 5.0 5.4 
2019 10,327 292,853 28,358 N/A 25,712 4.6 5.0 
2020 10,295 276,163 26,825 N/A 26,111 7.8 9.4 

Per State Treasurer's office years 2012-2020, United States Census Bureau year 2011. 
2 Parishwide Per Capita Income Per Louisiana Department of Labor. 

^Per Louisiana Department of Labor. 

"^Louisiana Department of Education. 

^United States Census Bureau. 

N/A - Not readily available at this time. 
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Schedule 20 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

Principal Employers 

Current Year 
(Unaudited) 

2020 

Source: Livingston Economic Development Council 

Note: Fiscal year June 30, 2012 is the first year the City of Denham Springs 
included the schedule of Principal Employers. Infonnation for nine years ago 
was not available for presentation. 

Employer Employees Rank 

Percentage 
of Total City 
Employment 

Livingston Parish School Board 647 1 9.99% 
Walmart 397 2 6.13% 
Home Depot 188 3 2.90% 
Sam's Club 170 4 2.62% 
City of Denham Springs 160 5 2.47% 
Keller Williams 160 6 2.47% 
All Star Automotive Dealerships 150 7 2.32% 
Bass Pro Shops 150 8 2.32% 
Hancock Whitney 137 9 2.11% 
B&C Sheet Metal 83 10 1.28% 

2,242 34.61% 
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Schedule 21 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

FULL-TIME EOUIVALENT CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30 
Function 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

General Government: 
General Provisions 14 14 14 14 12 10 15 16 16 16 
Cemetery - - - - - - - - - -
Business License and Permit 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Ward II Court 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 
Plamiing and Zoning 1 1 3 2 4 4 5 4 4 4 
Landscaping - - - - - - - - - -

Public Safety: 
Animal Control 10 10 13 11 13 8 7 8 10 12 
Firemen 29 29 29 26 27 26 27 27 27 27 
Firemen Administrative Staff - - - 3 2 2 2 2 3 
Policemen 34 36 33 31 33 26 26 31 27 22 
Police Evidence Officer - - - - - 1 1 1 1 1 
Police Comnumications 3 2 2 3 4 4 5 5 5 4 
Police Administrative Staff 5 5 5 5 5 4 6 5 5 5 
Police Crossing Guards 3 3 1 :> 3 3 3 3 3 
Litter* Control - - - - - - - - - -

Public Works: 
Street 21 21 20 23 20 18 20 16 15 14 

Culture and Recreation: 
Main Street Director - - - - - - 1 1 1 1 
Old City Hall Secretary 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Public Utilities: 
Natinal Gas, Water and Sewer 46 47 42 41 44 42 33 33 33 34 

Motor Pool: 
Mechanics 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Total Full-time Equivalent 174 176 170 168 173 154 157 157 154 151 

Total Full-time and 
Part-time Employees 187 186 189 175 183 174 162 163 164 154 

Note: Information provided by the City of Deuham Springs. 
The Mayor is an elected fiill-time position. This position is not included in the above schedule. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 22 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Z016 2017 >018 2019 2020 
General Government 

Election Data 
Registered Voters 
Voters at polls 
Absentee ballots 
Percent Voting 

Ward n Court 
Court Cases 
Civil 
Criminal 
Landlord and tenant (Included in Civil) 
Small Claims 
Traffic 

Public Safety 
Police Protection 
Adult aiTests 
Civil infractions 
Group A Offenses 
Group B Offenses 
Accidents w/injuiy 
Juvenile arrest 
DWI 
Parking violations 
Criminal damage to property 
Private property damage 
Total traffic violations 

Fire Protection 
Fire 
Estimated Loss Due to Fire Incidents Reported 
Overpressure rupture, explosion, overheat (no fire) 
Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident 
Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 
Servdce Call 
Good Intent Call 
False Alarm & False Call 
Severe Weather & Natural Disaster 
Special Incident Type 

6.453 
2.042 

175 
34.36% 

1.791 
L894 
N/A 

15.798 

N/A 
1.229 

772 
152 

87 
143 

N/A 
199 
N/A 

9.365 

47 
1,140.450 

3 
939 
41 
82 
46 
76 

6.370 
1.387 
177 

24.55% 

1.791 
1,779 
N/.A 

12.238 

1.012 
N/A 
1.271 
1.127 
146 
78 
147 

N/A 
183 

N/A 
10.087 

78 
266.100 

5 
875 
44 
116 
107 
87 
3 

6,514 
2.123 
N/A 

32.59% 

1,746 
1,718 
N/.A 

15,683 

853 
N/A 
1,311 
1.199 
136 
66 
102 

N/A 
119 

N/A 
9,604 

62 
491.800 

1 
1,074 

23 
134 
135 
127 

6,394 
640 
80 

11.26% 

1,815 
1,764 
N/A 

12,641 

N/A 
999 
842 
243 
59 
75 
N/A 
138 
N/A 
6.005 

74 
809,350 

4 
1.282 

32 
116 
209 
120 

1 
3 

(CONTINUED) 
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6,388 
2,407 
346 

43.10% 

2,478 
1.755 
N/A 

15.440 

936 
N/A 
984 

1,564 
169 
58 
69 

N/A 
142 
N/A 

12.125 

54 
908,700 

8 
1.223 

41 
116 
287 
141 
5 
6 

5.877 
1.668 
297 

33.43% 

1,953 
N/A 
N/A 
1,103 
10.975 

N/A 
826 
898 
119 
42 
70 
N/A 
120 
N/A 
9,147 

56 
167,800 

4 
1,045 

39 
163 
219 
107 
2 
1 

6.445 
2.933 
1,137 

63.15% 

1.207 
415 

N/A 
N/A 
3.577 

719 
711 
742 
111 
35 
76 
N/A 
101 
N/A 
8,025 

53 
665.800 

2 
908 
38 
131 
213 
150 

•r 

5.883 
1,075 
212 

21.86% 

1.641 
473 

N/A 
N/A 
6,357 

1,049 
N/A 
970 
996 
125 
53 
81 
N/A 
106 
N/A 
9,967 

56 
S 455.9( 

1,074 
23 

180 
232 
128 

1 

5,805 
1,977 
388 

40.73% 

1.880 
1,470 
N/A 
N/A 
5,629 

N/A 
813 
908 
261 
86 
97 

N/A 
102 
N/A 

6.352 

45 
520,550 
3 
1,046 

29 
136 
216 
111 

5,720 
2,686 
1,190 
67.77% 

1.782 
1,561 
N/A 
N/A 
4,872 

577 
N/A 
920 
986 
198 
35 
48 
N/A 
92 
N/A 
4.736 

56 
102,300 
6 
992 
19 

120 
205 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 22 
(Continued) 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Z016 2017 >018 2019 2020 
Natural Gas Services 

Customers 
Inside - Residential 
Inside - CommerciaLTndustrial 
Outside - Residential 
Outside - Coiiiniercial/Industiial 

Natural Gas (m inlliioii cubic feet (MCF)) 
Purchased fi'oin LA Municipal Gas Autliority 

(LMGA) 
Sold to custoinei's 

6T89 
2.175 

265 
3,676 

73 

302,402 
319.225 

6,223 
2.169 

260 
3,720 

74 

247.898 
234.112 

6,274 
2,179 

255 
3,765 

75 

278.445 
266.238 

6,325 
2,168 

254 
3.824 

79 

.321.867 
342,111 

6.362 
2,132 

262 
3.887 

81 

302,169 
287,104 

6.410 
2,144 

259 
3.923 

242,638 
266,666 

5,816 
1.762 

228 
3,745 

81 

183,224 
182,691 

5,991 
1.800 

233 
3,878 

258.735 
257.962 

6,140 
1.856 

227 
3,979 

252.373 
270.904 

6,252 
1.886 

233 
4,053 

229,570 
231.953 

Rates 
All customers inside and outside the city 

Minimum monthly charge 
Monthly gas rare - cost of gas plus .99 cents 
per CCF (hundred cubic feet) 

$ 8.25 S 8.25 S 8.25 S 8.32 $ 8.48 $ 8.41 

eff. .3-1-08 eff. 7-1-11 eff. 3-1-13 eff. 7-1-13 eff. 7-1-14 eff. 7-1-15 

8.48 8.66 .86 9.50 

eff. 7-1-16 eff. 7-1-17 eff. 7-1-18 eff. 7-1-19 

Water Services 
Customers 7.977 

Inside - Residential 3,865 
Inside - CoimnerciaLTndustrial 217 
Outside - Residential 3.476 
Outside - Commercia LTndustrial 178 
Contracted Service - Shadow Springs 

Utility System, Inc. 241 
Water (per bandi ed gallons) 

Sold to customers 8.280,542 

Rates (amount billed customers) 
Inside the corpoi ate limits 

For the first 2.500 gallons mondily minimum charge 
based on meter size - Refer to meter chail (A) 

For every 1.000 gallons or part thereof 
next 5,500 gallons $ 2.25 

For every 1.000 gallons or pait thereof 
next 17.000 gallons $ 2.10 

For every 1,000 gallons or part thereof 
all over 25.000 gallons $ 1.95 

Flat fee for filling of swimming pool or tank truck 
from fire hydrant by authorized personnel $ 75.00 

8.215 
3,930 
260 

3.828 
197 

8,561,011 

8.370 
3,950 

211 

8,156,525 

2.25 $ 

2.10 $ 

1.95 S 

75.00 S 

2.25 

2.10 

1.95 

75.00 

8,470 
3.943 
275 

4,029 
223 

7,892.791 

2.27 

2.12 

1.97 

75.64 

8,606 
3,927 
286 

4,153 
240 

7.576.( 

2.31 

2.16 

2.01 

77.12 

8,645 
3.914 
290 

4,184 
257 

7.693.095 

8.095 
3,535 
285 

4.004 
271 

8,750,638 

2.29 $ 

2.14 $ 

1.99 $ 

76.48 $ 

8.305 
3,605 

291 
4.121 

7,070,081 

2.31 S 

2.16 S 

2.01 S 

77.11 $ 

8,556 
3,668 
296 

4.303 
289 

6,871,623 

2.36 S 

2.21 S 

2.05 S 

78.76 $ 

2.41 

2.26 

2.10 

80.61 

8,754 
3,731 
300 

4.426 
297 

7,139,045 

2.46 

2.31 

2.15 

82.37 

(CONTINUED) 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 22 
(Continued) 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Z016 2017 >018 2019 2020 
Chart (A) - Moathiy miuimum ehaige 

5/8 hich $ 6.75 S 11.75 S 11.75 S 11.85 $ 12.08 ; I 11.98 S » 12.08 S 12.34 $ 12.63 S 12.91 
3/4 inch $ 9.10 s 14.10 S 14.10 s 14.22 $ 14.50 J ̂  14.38 5 ; 14.50 S 14.81 S 15.16 $ 15.49 
1 inch $ 15.15 s 20.15 s 20.15 s 20.32 $ 20.72 J ̂  20.55 2 J 20.72 $ 21.16 S 21.66 : 5 22.13 
1 1/2 inch $ 30.15 $ 35.15 s 35.15 s 35.45 S 36.15 J g 35.85 5 » 36.15 $ 36.92 $ 37.79 : S 38.61 
2 inch $ 48.30 s 53.30 $ 53.30 s 53.75 $ 54.81 J S 54.36 2 ; 54.81 $ 55.98 s 57,29 : S 58.54 
3 inch $ 91.25 $ 96.25 s 96.25 s 97.07 $ 98.98 J S 98.16 2 5 98.97 $ 101.09 $ 103.46 : i 105.71 
4 hich $ 152.20 s 157.20 s 157.20 s 158.54 s 161.65 5 > 160.32 3 ) 161.65 $ 165.11 $ 168.97 : 1 172.65 
6 inch $ 303.80 $ 308.80 s 308.80 s 311.43 s 317.55 J 5 314.93 2 1 317.54 $ 324.33 $ 331.93 : S 339.16 
8 inch $ 607.25 $ 612.25 $ 612.25 s 617.47 s 629.59 J > 624.40 2 i 629.57 $ 643.04 $ 658.10 : S 672.43 

Oiitsfde the corporate limits 
For the first 2,500 gallons monthly tninimmn charge 

based on meter size - Refer to meter chart (B) 
For every 1,000 gallons or part thereof 

next 5,500 gallons $ 2.25 S 2.25 
For every 1,000 gallons or part diereof 

next 17.000 gallons $ 2.10 S 2.10 
For every 1,000 gallons or part tliereof 

all over 25,000 gallons $ 1.95 S 1.95 
Flat fee for filling of swimming pool or tank truck 

from fire hydrant by authorized personnel $ 75.00 S 75.00 

Chart (B) - Monthiy inlnimiim charge 
5/8 inch : 
3/4 inch : 
1 hich : 
1 1/2 inch : 
2 inch : 
3 hich ; 
4 inch ; 
6 inch : 
8 inch : 

Sewei' Services 
Customers 5,600 5,654 

Inside - Residential 3.256 3.262 
Inside - CommercialTndustrial 632 645 
Outside - Residential 1.219 1,259 
Outside - CorninercialTndustiial 20 21 
Contracted Services-LP Sewer District #1 and #2 473 467 
Denham Springs Sewerage District #1 1,269 1,847 

2.25 S 

2.10 S 

1.95 

75.00 

2.27 

2.12 

1.97 

75.64 

5,719 
3,278 

653 
1,301 

22 
465 

2,089 

5.262 
3,264 

654 
1,322 

22 
471 

2,147 

(CONTINUED) 
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2.31 

2.16 

2.01 

77.12 

7.25 S 12.25 $ 12.25 S 12.35 $ 12.60 
10.90 $ 15.90 S 15.90 s 16.04 $ 16.35 
18.15 S 23.15 S 23.15 s 23.35 $ 23.81 
36.20 $ 41.20 S 41.20 s 41.55 $ 42.37 
57.95 $ 62.95 S 62.95 s 63.49 $ 64.73 

109.50 $ 114.50 s 114.50 $ 115.48 S 117.74 
182.60 $ 187.60 $ 187.60 s 189.20 s 192.91 
364.55 $ 369.55 s 369.55 $ 372.65 s 379.97 
728.70 $ 733.70 $ 733.70 s 739.96 s 754.48 

5.256 
3.257 

654 
1,324 

21 
474 

2.237 

2.29 

2.14 

1.99 

76.48 

12.50 
16.22 
23.61 
42.02 
64.20 

116.77 
191.32 
376.84 
748.26 

5.258 
3,252 

657 
1.325 

24 
470 

2.332 

2.31 

2.16 

2.01 

77.11 

12.60 
16.35 
23.81 
42.37 
64.73 

117.74 
192.90 
379.96 
754.46 

4,832 
2.951 

614 
1,245 

22 
456 

2.234 

2.36 

2.21 

2.05 

78.76 

12.87 
16.70 
24.32 
43.28 
66.11 

120.26 
197.03 
388.09 
770.60 

4,947 
3,014 

629 
1,280 

24 
463 

2,307 

2.41 

2.26 

2.10 

80.61 

13.17 
17.10 
24.89 
44.29 
67.66 

123.07 
201.65 
397.18 
788.65 

5,025 
3,069 

628 
1,305 

23 
507 

2,411 

2.46 

2.31 

2.15 

82.37 

13.46 
17.47 
25.43 
45.25 
69.13 

125.75 
206.04 
405.83 
805.83 

5,085 
3,121 

632 
1,309 

23 
563 

2,472 



CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 22 
(Continued) 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Z016 2017 >018 2019 2020 
Rates (amouut billed customers) 

(Tlie Cit>' of Deuham Spilugs and 
Denham Springs Sewerage District #1 
use tbe same rate tables) 

Residential customers inside the city 
Monrhly flat fee and 
% of water coiisuinptioii pei' 100 gallons 

Residential customers outside the city 
Monrhly flat fee and 
% of water consumption per 100 gallons 

Commercial customers inside the city 
Hotels/Motels 

Monrhly flat fee of $10.75 based on number of 
rooms and % of water consumption per 100 gal. 
Monthly flat fee of $10.98 based on number of 
rooms and % of water consumption per 100 gal. 

$ 10.00 
25% 

$ 12.00 
25% 

444 Rooms 
25% 

S 10.00 
25% 

10.00 S lO.C 
25% 25.21% 

S 12.00 S 12.00 
25% 25% 

444 Rooms 444 Rooms 
25% 25% 

S 12.10 
25.21% 

513 Rooms 
25.21% 

10.28 
25.71% 

12.37 
25.71% 

513 Rooms 
25.71% 

10.20 
26% 

12.24 
26% 

513 Rooms 
26% 

10.28 S 10.50 S 10.75 
26% 26% 27% 

12.37 
26% 

517 Rooms 
26% 

S i2.f 
26% 

517 Rooms 
26% 

i: 
r7o/„ 

517 Rooms 
27% 

10.98 
27% 

13.18 
r7o/„ 

517 Rooms 
27% 

All other commercial customers inside the city 
Monthly flat fee based on coimnercial business zone and 
Zone C-1 $21.50 27 
Zone C-2 $26.88 35 
Zone C-3 $32.25 391 
Zone C-4 $37.62 41 
Zone I-1 and 1-2 $42.99 31 
27% of water" consumption 
per 100 gallons (Month Avg. 33,007) 25% 

RIRZ 27 

27 
36 
408 
43 
32 

25% 
26 

28 
35 
401 
43 
33 

25% 
25 

28 
36 
402 
42 
33 

25.21% 
26 

26 
37 
403 
43 
32 

25.71® 

25 

28 
37 

40 
35 

26®/o 

24 

25 
34 
378 

37 
35 

26% 
21 

25 
37 
387 
41 
32 

26% 
21 

25 
36 
395 
37 
32 

27% 
22 

24 
36 
396 
37 
32 

27% 
24 

Commercial customers outside the city 
Hotels/Motels 
Monthly flat fee of $12.34 based on number of 
rooms and % of water consumption per 100 gal. 
Moutlily flat fee of $13.18 based on number of 

rooms and % of water consumption per 100 gal. 

None None 
25% 

None 
25% 

None 
25.21% 

None 
25.71®/o 

None 
26»/o 

None 
26% 

None 
26% 

None 
770/„ 

None 
27% 

(CONTINUED) 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 22 
(Continued) 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Ail other commei cial customers outside the citj' 
Monthly flat fee and hicluded w/ Included w/ Included w/ Included w/ Included w/ Included w/ included w/ Included w/ Included w/ Included w/ 
% of water consumption per 100 gallons inside City inside City inside City inside City inside City inside City inside City inside City inside City inside City 

Sanitation Sendees 
Customers 3.504 3.559 3.574 3,579 3,565 3,573 3.180 3.238 3,306 3,361 

Inside - Residential 3.355 3,396 3,414 3,422 3,405 3.413 3,032 3,087 3,154 3,210 
Inside - CoimnerciaLTndnstrial 149 163 160 157 160 160 148 151 152 151 
Sanitation Seivice Contracted Rates -

Monthly per Customer 
Twice Weekly Pickup and Weekly 

Pickup of Recycling $ 18.00 S 18.00 $ 18.00 S 18.00 $ 18.34 $ 18.20 $ 18.20 S 18.20 S 19.12 $ 19.30 

Rates (amount billed customers) 
Inside - Residential $ 17.44 S 18.00 S 18.00 s 18.00 $ 18.34 $ 18.20 $ 18.20 $ 18.20 S 19.12 $ 19.30 
Inside - Commercial/Industrial $ 15.69 $ 18.00 S 18.00 s 18.00 $ 18.34 $ 18.20 $ 18.20 $ 18.20 $ 19.12 $ 19.30 
Inside - Senior Citizens $ 1.00 S 1-00 S 1.00 s 1.00 $ 1.00 $ 1.00 $ 1.00 $ 1.00 S 1.00 $ 1.00 

Sources: 
Election Data - Livingston Paiish Registrar of Voter's Office 
Court Cases - City Court of Denham Springs - Wai^d II 
Police Protection - City of Denham Springs Police Department 
Fire Protection - City of Denliam Springs Fire Depailment 
Customer Counts and Rates - City of Denham Springs Utility Billing office 
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Schedule 23 
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION 

Sources: 
Number of Street Liglits - Enter gy 
Fire Hydrants and Miles of Water Mains - City of Denham Springs Water Department 
Sewer Lines. Pumping Stations, and Type of Sewer Treatment System - City of Denham Springs Sewei-Department 
Miles of Gas Mains - City of Denliam Springs Gas Department 
All Other Infonnation - City of DeiJiam Springs Accounting and Administrative Departments 
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2011 2012 

(Unaudited) 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 
General Govei'Dinent 

BiiildiDgs 
Municipal (City Hall, 

Ward II Court and Ward II Marsliall) 2 1 1 I 1 1 1 1 I 1 

Public Safety-
Police Protection 

Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Vehicles - Mar ked 36 32 .31 32 32 30 32 37 35 34 
Vehicles - Unmarked 7 11 10 10 10 7 6 8 10 10 
Motorcycles - Marked 4 5 5 5 5 5 « 5 5 5 

Fire Protection 
Administrative Office 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 - - -
Stations 3 3 .3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
Vehicles - Extinguishment 6 6 6 6 6 6 5 7 6 5 
Vehicles - Emer gency Medical 1 1 I 1 2 1 I - - -

Public Works 
Streets and Sidewalks 

Miles of City: 
Primary streets (State and Fedei-al) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Secondary streets (City) 45.3 45.3 45.3 45-3 45.3 45.3 45-3 45.3 45-3 45.3 
Sidewalks N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Bridges N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Buildings 2 A 2 2 2 A 2 3 1 1 
Street Liglits: 

Residential 652 652 652 652 652 613 613 613 613 613 
Street and Highway- 284 284 284 284 284 343 343 343 343 343 
Security Liglit 2 2 -> 2 2 11 11 11 11 11 

Vehicles 17 17 17 19 19 19 20 21 21 22 

Natural Gas, Water and Sewer Sei-viees 
Fire Hyckants 1,099 1,099 1.408 1,410 1,415 1,415 1,418 1.420 1,434 1,432 
Miles of natural gas mains 280 180 180 180 189 189 191 191 191 193 
Miles of water mains N/A N/A 148 148 150 150 150 150 153 153 
Miles of sanitary sewer: 

City of Denham Springs N/A N/A 68 68 68 68 69 69 69 69 
Denham Springs Sewerage District#! N/A N/A .38 38 38 38 39 40 43 43 

Nismber of sewer pumping stations: 
City of DeiJiam Springs 37 39 39 39 39 39 36 36 36 36 
Denham Springs Sewerage District #1 30 43 43 43 44 44 48 49 52 52 

Ty-pe of sewer treatment system Meclianica Mechariica Mechanica Mechanica] Mechanical Medianical Mechanical Medianical Mechanical Mechanica! 
1 System 1 System 1 System System System System System System System System 

Recreation and CMtnre 
Parks and Recreation 

Acres 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
Developed Paiks (Spring. Train Station, 
Willow & Old City Hall) 4 4 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 

Buildings (Spring. Train Station, and Old City Hall) 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAE CONTROE 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 



Hannis T. Bourgeois 
CPAs + Business Advisors 

2322 Tremont Drive • Baton Rouge, 1_A 70809 
178 Del Orleans Avenue, Suite C • Denham Springs, l_A 70726 

650 Poydras Street, Suite 1200 • New Orleans, LA 70130 
Phone: 225.928.4770 • Fax: 225.926.0945 

www. htbcpa .com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
A UDITING STANDARDS 

The Mayor and Members of 
the City Council 
City of Denham Springs 
Denham Springs, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major 
fund, the budgetary comparison statement of the general fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Denham Springs, 
Louisiana's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 28, 2020. 
We also have audited the financial statements of the City's nonmajor internal service fund and each of 
the governmental funds presented in the combining financial statements and the budgetary comparison 
schedules of the Capital Projects Fund and the Special Revenue Fund as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2020. Our report includes a reference to another auditor who audited the financial statements of 
certain decretely presented component units, as described in our report on the City of Denham Springs, 
Louisiana's financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditor's testing 
of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on 
separately by that auditor. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City's intemal control. 



A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose; however, under 
Louisiana Revised Statue 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public 
document. 

Respectfully submitted, 

(JjWYxAo } . ^ 

Denham Springs, Louisiana 
December 28, 2020 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM 

GUIDANCE 

The Mayor and Members of 
the City Council 
City of Denham Springs 
Denham Springs, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of Denham Springs's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
the City of Denham Springs's ("the City") major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
The major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit 
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 



We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal detennination of the City's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Programs 

In our opinion, the City of Denham Springs complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
perfonning our audit of compliance, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program 
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, the budgetary comparison 
statement of the general fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Denham 
Springs, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. We also have audited 
the financial statements of the City's nonmajor internal service fund and each of the governmental 
funds presented in the combining financial statements and the budgetary comparison schedules of the 
Capital Projects Fund and the Special Revenue Fund as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020. Our 
report also includes a reference to another auditor who audited the financial statements of certain 
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decretely presented component units, as described in our report on the City's financial statements. We 
issued our report thereon dated December 28, 2020, which contained unmodified opinions on those 
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the 
Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic fmancial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose; however, 
under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a 
public document. 

Respectfully submitted, 

f J ^ L—L-P 

Denham Springs, Louisiana 
December 28, 2020 



CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Federal Grantor/ Federal Agency or 
Pass - Through Grantor/ CFDA Pass-Through Federal 

Program Name Number Number Expenditures 

Federal Grants 

United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development 

Passed Through Eouisiana Office of 
Commimity Development: 

Commuity Development Block Grants/State's 
Program and Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 14.228 N/A $ 709.990 

Total United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development 709,990 

United States Department of Justice 
Body Worn Camera Policy and Implementation 16.835 N/A 27,420 

Passed Through Louisiana Highway 
Safety Commission: 

Bulletproof Vest Partnership 16.607 N/A 1.958 

Total United States Department of Justice 29,378 

United States Department of Transportation 
Passed Through Louisiana Department of 

Transportation and Development: 
Highway Planning and Construction [1] 20.205 N/A 232 

Passed Through Louisiana Highway 
Safety Commission: 

National Priority Safety Programs [2] 20.616 N/A 13.718 

Total United States Department of Transportation 13,950 

United States Department of Treasury 
Passed Through Louisiana Office of 

Community Development: 
COVlD-19 - CARES Act 21.019 N/A 33.938 

Total United States Department of Treasury 33,938 

(CONTINUED 



Federal Grantor/ Federal 
Pass - Through Grantor/ CFDA 

Program Name Number 

United States Department of Homeland Security 
Passed Through Louisiana Governor's Office of 

Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness: 
Disaster Grant - Public Assistance — 

Debris Removal 97.036 
Disaster Grant - Public Assistance — 

Public Buildings and Contents 97.036 
Disaster Grant - Public Assistance — 

Permanent Water Control Facilities 97.036 
Disaster Grant - Public Assistance — 

Permanent Utility Repair Projects 97.036 
Disaster Grant - Public Assistance — 

Emergency Protective Measures 97.036 

Total United States Department of 
Homeland Security 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Agency or 
Pass-Through 

Number 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

Federal 
Expenditures 

135,800 

2,613,857 

4,275 

550,853 

304.349 

3.609.134 

$ 4,396,390 

[1] Highway Planning and Construction Cluster — Total $232 
[2] Highway Safety Cluster - Total $13,718 

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 



CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

Note A - Significant Accounting Policies -

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of 
the City of Denham Springs and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in 
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regiilafions (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative ReqnireiJients, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards. 

Note B - Indirect Cost Rate Election -

The City did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate during the year ended June 30, 
2020. 

Note C - Sub-Receipents -

The City did not pass thru any federal awards to any sub-recipients during the year ended June 30, 
2020. 



CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

A. Summary of Auditor's Results 

As required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements fo? 
the following is a summary of the results of our audit: 

Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), 

Financial Statements 
T^e of auditor's report issued: unmodified 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
• Material weaknesses identified? 
• Significant deficiencies identified? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements 

Federal Awards 
Internal control over major programs: 
• Material weaknesses identified? 
• Significant deficiencies identified? 

Yes 
Yes 

Yes 

Yes 
Yes 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs; unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes 

X 

No 
X None Reported 

X No 

No 
X None Reported 

X No 

The following program was tested as a T3q>e "B" major program: 

Federal Grantor/ 
Pass - Through Grantor/ 

Program Name 

United States Department of Homeland Security 
Passed Through Louisiana Governor's Office of 

Homeland Security and Prepareness: 
Disaster Grant - Public Assistance 

CFDA 
Number 

97.036 

• The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000. 
• The City was detennined to be a low-risk auditee. 



CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST fCONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

B. Findings - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

None. 

C. Findings - Compliance and Other Matters 

None. 
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

A. Findings - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

None. 

B. Findings - Compliance and Other Matters 

None. 
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